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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K contains certain forwalabking statements within the meaning of Sectiok 2f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
amended, regarding, among other things, the aat®ipfinancial and operating results of the Compé&uwy this purpose, forwardoking
statements are any statements contained hereiarthabt statements of historical fact and incliule,are not limited to, those preceded k
that include the words, “estimate,” “could,” “shdil “would,” “likely,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “inte nd,” “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,”
“projected,”or similar expressions. Those statements are duigjémown and unknown risks, uncertainties anciofactors that could cat
the actual results to differ materially from thasmtemplated by the statements. The forwaaking information is based on various fac
and was derived using numerous assumptions.

Although we believe that the expectations refledtethe forwardlooking statements are reasonable, we cannot gearéuture results, leve
of activity, performance, or achievements. Actuedults or business conditions may differ materiflbm those projected or suggeste
forward-looking statements as a result of vari@aadrs including, but not limited to, those desedlin the “Risk FactorsSection of this Fori
10-K. We cannot assure you that we have identifiedhallfactors that create uncertainties. Moreovew risks emerge from time to time ¢
it is not possible for our management to predittisks, nor can we assess the impact of all r@@k®ur business or the extent to which
risk, or combination of risks, may cause actualltssto differ from those contained in any forwdodking statements. Readers should
place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

Any forward-looking statement made by us in thisrRdl0-K speaks only as of the date of this FornK1Q@Jnless required by law, \
undertake no obligation to publicly revise any fardrlooking statement to reflect circumstancesvents after the date of this Form KOsr
to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.



USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
P ART |
| tem 1. Business.
OVERVIEW

USA Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”, “We”, “USATS8r “Our”) was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsydvanidanuary 199
We are a provider of technology-enabled solutidras tacilitate electronic payment transactions ealde-added services primarily within t
unattended Point of Sale (“POStjarket. We are a leading provider in the smalldgtckeverage and food vending industry and arerehpe
our solutions to other unattended market segmentd) as amusement, commercial laundry, kiosk aner®t Since our founding, we hi
designed and marketed systems and solutions ttiitefiee electronic payment options, as well asn@ttry and machine-to-machine (“M2M”
services which include the ability to remotely ntoni control, and report on the results of distté@sliassets containing our electronic payi
solutions. Historically, these distributed asseteehrelied on cash for payment in the form of cainbills, whereas, our systems allow thel
accept cashless payments such as through the oseditfor debit cards and contactless forms, siscimobile payment.

We derive the majority of our revenues from liceasd transaction fees related to our ePort Corsezgice. Connections to our service ¢
from the sale or lease of our POS electronic paymevices or certified payment software or the isémg of similar thirdparty installed PO
terminals. The majority of ePort Connect customeag a monthly fee plus a blended transaction ratehe transaction dollar volur
processed by the Company. Customers with highezagd transaction rates might pay a lower or nateBannect monthly fee, but a hig
blended transaction rate on dollar volume processethe Company. Connections to the ePort Connestice, therefore, are the m
significant driver of the Company’s revenues, gaifirly revenues from license and transaction fees.

As of June 30, 2013, the Company had approxim&®#;000 connections to its ePort Connect servioepared to approximately 164,(
connections as of June 30, 2012, representing aiB@%ase. During the year ended June 30, 201X dngpany processed approximately
million cashless transactions totaling approxima$219 million in transaction dollars, representng6% increase in transaction volume
a 28% increase in dollars processed from the 10i®mtcashless transactions totaling approximagdly 1 million during the previous fisc
year ended June 30, 20:

Revenue Growth and I(e_'f_Drlvers
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The above chart shows the increase, during thédasfiscal years, in the number of connectioesenues and the dollar value of transac
handled by us. The vertical bars reflect total ness, broken down by license and transaction fadseguipment revenues. The solid
reflects the number of connections to our ePortnéonhservice, as of the end of each of the lastffscal years, as indicated by its npdini
on the revenue bar for each year. Similarly, théadealue of transactions handled by us duringheafcthe last four fiscal years is indica
by the dotted line and its mid-point on the revebaefor each year.

Our solutions have been designed to simplify thadition to cashless for traditionally cashly based businesses. As such, they are tu
and include our comprehensive ePort Connect seafitce POS electronic payment devices or certifieghymnt software able to proci
traditional magnetic stripe credit and debit casjtactless credit and debit cards and mobile paysn Services through ePort Connec
maintained on our proprietary operating systems iantlide merchant account setup on behalf of tretotoer, automatic processing

settlement, sales reporting, 24x7 customer supuattvalu-added, optional services. In addition, the funaldn of our solutions include tl



flexibility to execute a variety of payment applioas on a single system, transaction security,neotivity options, compliance wi
certification standards, and centralized, accuratdtime sales and inventory data to manage distribassdts (wireless telemetry and M2



Our customers range from global food service ozgions to small operators primarily in the ssdfve, small ticket retail markets includ
beverage and food vending, amusement and arcageneial laundry, car wash, tolls, and various otedf-serve kiosk applications; a
equipment developers or manufacturers who incotparar ePort Connect service into their productrixfys.

The Company also manufactures and sells energy gearent products that reduce the electrical powaswmption of equipment, such
refrigerated vending machines and glass front eepthus reducing the electrical energy costs dssutwith operating this equipment. '
derive equipment revenues through the sale of &gy management products both in the United Statdsn approximately seven count
worldwide.

We have a reliable history in cashless paymentsaaiedognized brand name, value proposition forcagtomers and reputation of innova
in our product and services. We believe that thegoing positions allow us to capitalize on industends.

THE INDUSTRY

We operate primarily in the small ticket electrop@yments industry and, more specifically, the tamated POS market. We also have
ability to accept cashless payment “on the go” ugto mobilebased payment services, which are generally higblet transactions. O
solutions facilitate electronic payments in indigstrthat have traditionally relied on cash trarisast We believe the following industry trei
will drive growth in demand for electronic paymeystems in general and more specifically withinrirerkets we serve:

[ the shift toward electronic payment transactiors @may from cash and checl
[ the increase in both consumer and merchant/opetatoand for electronic transaction functionalityd.
L] improving POS technology and NFC equipped mobilenghpayment technolog

Shift toward electronic payment transactions and away from cash and checks

There has been a shift away from paper-based meitbfoghyment, including cash and checks, towareistreinicbased methods of payme
According to The Nilson Report, December 2012, pdgased methods of payment continued to decline kD2€epresenting 38.97%
transaction dollars measured compared to 50.45%006. The four card-based systentgedit, debit, prepaid, and electronic ben
transfer—generated $4.22 trillion in the United States in2050.6% of transaction dollars measured, compire®.3% in 2006. By 201
The Nilson Report projects spending at merchantthénU.S., from the four cardased system to grow to $6.5 trillion, or 62.8%tatal
transaction dollars measured.

Increase in Consumer and Merchant/Operator Demand for Electronic Payments

Increase in Consumer Demand . The unattended, vending and kiosk POS market hsteritially been dominated by cash purchs
However, oftentimes, cash purchases at unatten@&lI&cations represent a cumbersome transactiothéoconsumer because they do
have the correct monetary value (paper or coin)therconsumer does not have the ability to contherir bills into coins. We belie’
electronic payment system providers such as USAf@&ogies that can meet consumetsmand within the unattended market will be ab
offer retailers, card associations, card issuedspa@yment processors and business owners an ergaralue proposition at the POS.

Increase in Merchant/Operator Demand . Increasingly, merchants and operators of unattepdgthent locations (e.g., vending machines
wash, tabletop games, etc.) are utilizing electrgryment alternatives as a means to improve hasimesults. The Company works witt
customers to help them drive increased revenukef tlistributed assets through this expanded nayieortunity and many continue to
positive results. In addition, electronic paymeysgtems can provide merchants and operatorstirmalsales and inventory data utilized
back-office reporting and forecasting, helping thiermanage their business more efficiently.

Increase in Demand for Networked Assets . M2M (machine-tomachine) technology includes capturing value froirel@ss modules al
electronic devices to improve business productiaitg customer service. The term M2M describes amy &f 2.way communication syste
between geographically distributed devices throaghentrally managed software application withoummbn intervention. As such, 1
Companys integrated POS and ePort Connect remote datagmamesmt capabilities fall into this category of simn. For example, tt
Company’s new ePortGO solution integrates cashgagment with software and hardware specific totéxé and forhire vehicle industry. |
addition, networked assets can provide valuablerinétion regarding consumengurchasing patterns and payment preferences, al
operators to more effectively tailor their offerintp consumers. According to a Verizon Wireless12@hitepaper (When Machines Tz
Businesses Listen) within ten years the numberaxdhimes that can be connected should exceed sikoynlunits. The Company believes t
its expertise in integrating cashless paymentscitdable network data capacity, experience wig lhiansaction volume and high quality
reliable data management capabilities make it swéted for the growing opportunities in the M2M et



POS Technology and NFC Equipped Mobile Phone Payment | mprovements

Consumer Interest in Mobile Payment. We believe that NFC-enabled POS terminals and digital wallet applicgjcsuch as ISIS, Gool
Wallet and others, stand to benefit from thesewngltrends in mobile payment. Digital wallet issestially a digital service, accessed vie
web or a mobile phone application that serves ssbatitute for the traditional credit or debit caPdloviders and consumers can also be
from other ancillary offerings such as coupons lagdlty programs.

With over 50% of the Company’s connections N&@bled (in addition to being magnetic stripe eedbhs of June 30, 2013, we believe
we are well-positioned to benefit from this emeggapace.

OUR TECHNOLOGY-BASED SOLUTION

Our solutions have been designed to be turnkeyirssidde ePort Connect service and POS electroniopat devices or certified paym
software able to process traditional magnetic stagedit and debit cards, contactless credit aibit dards, as well as NFC equipped mc
phones that allows consumers to make paymentstigihcell phones. We believe that our ability tsmble our products and services, as
as the ability to tailor them to individual custonmeeds, makes it easy and efficient for our custsrio adopt and deploy our technology,
results in a service unmatched in the small-tickegttended retail market today.

The Product The Company offers its customers several diffedewices or software to connect their distribuaisdets. These range from
QuickConnect™ Web service and encrypted magnetjuestard readers to our eP@rthardware that can be attached to the door of alstan
alone terminal.

The Network Our network is designed to transmit payment imf@tion from our terminals for processingnd sales and diagnostic data
storage and reporting to our customers. Also, teevork, through servdsased software applications, provides remote manmeg
information, and enables control of the networkedice's functionality. Through our network we have thdligbto upload software ar
update devices remotely enabling us to manage évéices (e.g., change protocol functionality, previsbftware upgrades, and cha
terminal display messages).

The Connectivity Medium3he client devices (described above) are intercctedefor the transfer of our customedsita through our ePq
Connect network that provides multiple connectiaptions such as phone line, ethernet, and wireléssater wireless connectivity optic
coverage and reliability have allowed us to serda@eater number of geographically dispersed mestdocations. Additionally, we make
easy for our customers to deploy wireless solutionsacting as a single point of contact. We havetrected with Verizon Wireless a
AT&T in the United States and Rogers Wireless im&a in order to supply our customers with wirelestsvork coverage.

Data SecurityWe are listed on the VISA Global Registry of Seevleroviders, meaning that VISA has reviewed anéated our Report ¢
Compliance (RoC) from an authorized PCI assessarRGI Level 1 Service Provider. Our entry on {lshtis valid for one year and was |
updated January 31, 2013. The VISA listing candumdl online at http://www.visa.com/splisting/sedscsp.do

OUR SERVICES

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, licensktamsaction fees generated by our ePort Con®eservice represented 84% of
Companys revenues. ePort Connect is a solution in the etpldce that provides customers with all of thdofeing, under one cohesi
service umbrella:

e Diverse POS options. Ability to connect to a brgadduct line of cashless acceptance devices ovaudt

e Card Processing Services. Through our existingioglships with card processors and card assoc&twe provide merche
account and terminal ID set up, pregotiated discounted fees on small ticket purchased direct electronic funds trans
(EFTs) to our customerdiank accounts for all settled card transactionwedsas ensure compliance with current proces
regulations

e Wireless Connectivity. We manage the wireless agtaativation, distribution, and the relationshiihmvireless providers fi
our customers, if neede

e Customer/Consumer Services. We support our ladtalase by providing 2heur help desk support, repairs, and replacem
impaired system solutions. In addition, all inbouriling inquiries are handled through a Bdur help desk, thereby eliminat
the need for our customers to deal with consunindpinquiries and potential chargebac

e Online Sales Reporting. Via the USALive online rgppg system, we provide customers with a hostaiés and operatior
data, including information regarding their creaiitd cash transactions, user configuration, regptiyymachine and region,
date range and transaction type, data reportspierations and finance, graphical reporting of saes condition monitoring fi
equipment service, as well as activation of newiasvand redeployment






M2M Telemetry and DEX data transfer. USA Techgas is able to push DEX data to customessite management syste
through its DEX partner program. USA Technologipsrates within the VDI (Vending Data Interchangandards establish
by NAMA (National Automatic Merchandising Assocat) and sends DEX files compatible with most majemote
management software syster

e Over-the-Air Update Capabilities. Automatic otke-air updates to software, settings, and securityopa from our network 1
our ePort card reader keep our customers’ hardu@ate-date and enable customers to benefit from any advaent made aft
their hardware or software purcha

e Value-added Services. Access to additional sesvguch aMORE , our loyalty and prepaid program, twier pricing, Specis
promotions such our nationwide Isis mobile paymandl loyalty promotion for vending customers, aslvesl a menu «
hardware purchasing options including JumpStartteumina-included service optiot

e Deployment Planning. Access to services to helpaipes successfully deploy cashless payment sysaehintegrated solutio
that is based on our extensive market and custerparience dat:

We enter into a processing and licensing agreenser@Port Connect Services Agreement, with ouragusts pursuant to which we act ¢
provider of cashless financial services for the@mer's distributed asset, and the customer agrees tagaw activation fee, monthly sen
fees, and transaction processing fees. Our agrdéenae® generally cancelable by the customer upoty tto sixty days notice to us.
typically takes thirty to sixty days for a new cation to begin contributing to the Company’s liserand transaction fee revenues.

The Company counts its ePort connections upon @npof an active terminal to a customer under emttrat which time activation on
network is performed by the Company, and the teaivisicapable of conducting business via the Coryigametwork and related services.
ePort connection does not necessarily mean thatniteis actually installed by the customer on achiae, or that the unit has bet
processing transactions, or that the Company hgarbesceiving monthly service fees in connectiothwhe unit. Rather, at the time
shipment of the ePort, the customer becomes obliged pay the onéme activation fee, and is obligated to pay montkervice fees |
accordance with the terms of the customer’s contréh the Company.

OUR PRODUCTS

ePort® is the Company’s core device, which is autyebeing utilized in selservice, unattended markets such as vending, anemsemn:
arcade, car wash, and various other kiosk applicatiOur ePort®roduct facilitates cashless payments by captyraygnent information ar
transmitting it to our network for authorizationttvithe payment system (e.g., credit card processAdslitional capabilities of our eP@t
consist of control/access management by authonimeds, collection of audit information (e.g., datad time of sale and sales amot
diagnostic information of the host equipment, arghgmission of this data back to our network fobivased reporting, or to a compat
remote management system. Our ePort products afkalale in several distinctive modular configuraspand as hardware, software or ¢
API Web service, offering our customers flexibilttyinstall a POS solution that best fits theiradgand customer demands.

e ePort Edge™ product became available for sale $tooers during Fiscal 2009. The ePort Edge™ isegptate design and
intended for those customers who require a mageefige-only cashless system with basic features at a Ipviee point.

e ePort® G-8 is a PCI compliant twgiece design that supports traditional magnetipesteredit/debit cards and contactless ci
The ePort G8 telemeter is also available as a -alone DEX telemetry solutiol

e ePort® G-9 was introduced in Fiscal 2013 and iseetqd to be available in Fiscal 2014sIdesigned to offer all the feature:
the C-8 plus new features that support expanded accaptatons, consumer engagement offerings and addatiagnostics

e ePort® G-10 was introduced in Fiscal 2013 and peeted to be available in Fiscal 2014s kXxpected to include all of the ad
features of the @, plus a larger screen for messaging and consimtegaction as well as expanded contact and cdasacEM\
features

e QuickConnect™ was introduced in August 2012. Quimk@ct™ is a Web service that allows a client appilbn to secure
interface with the Compang’ePort Connect service. QuickConnect™ essentigiiiaces ePort SDK (software development
which captured our eP® technology in software form for I-based devices such as kios

Other forms of our ePort technology include:
e eSuds®pur solution developed for the commercial laundiguistry that enables laundry operators to providggamers cashle

transactions via the use of their credit cardsjtaeisds and other payment mediums such as stuiden&Effective with the Apr
2013 mutually exclusive agreement with Setomatist&ys, we are no longer selling the e® solution to new customer



e ePortMobile™ is a mobile acceptance solution fedirand debit cards that is supported by USAT sreRonnect®service
ePortMobile™ is available as a download from then@s and Google Play Store and is also availabém adl-In-One solutiol
that includes the phone and data p

e ePortGO™ was introduced in August 2013. ePortGOtégiates our ePortMobile solution and ePort Consectice witl
software developed by eTaxi USA, LLC, to addressdpportunities for streamlined business procedsceedit and debit ca
acceptance in the taxi and -hire vehicle marke:

Energy Management Produc. Our Company offers energy conservation produtEndrgy Misers"®)that reduce the electrical pov
consumption of various types of existing equipmenizh as vending machines, glass front coolersadner “always-on”appliances k
allowing the equipment to selectively operate ipoaver saving mode when the full power mode is restessary. Each of the Company’
Energy Miser®products utilizes occupancy sensing technologyeterinine when the surrounding area is vacant ouped. The Ener¢
Miser® then utilizes occupancy data, product terapges, and an energy saving algorithm to seldgticentrol certain higtenerg
components (e.g., compressor and fan) to realigetredal power savings over the lotegm use of the equipment. Customers of
VendingMiser®product benefit from reduced energy consumptionsga®pending on regional energy costs, maching, pd utilization ¢
the machine. Our Energy Misers@so reduce the overall stress loads on the equifprhelping to reduce associated maintenance
Energy Miser products are not currently networle@dur ePort Connect service.

SPECIFIC MARKETS WE SERVE

Our current customers are primarily in the safve, small ticket retail markets including begerand food vending and kiosk, commel
laundry, car wash, tolls, amusement and gaming,ddfice coffee. While these industry sectors repnéonly a small fraction of our to
market potential, as described below, these arards where we have gained the most tractiordditian to being our primary markets,
believe these sectors serve as a proof-of-conoepttier unattended POS industry applications.

Vending.According to Vending Times2012 Census of the Industry, annual U.S. salekénvending industry sector were estimated t
approximately $43 billion in 2011 transacted by o&enillion machines. The Company believes thesehim@s represent a significant ma
opportunity for electronic payment conversion witempared to the Comparsyéxisting ePort Connect service base and the Ibl@rarate
of industry adoption to date. For example, in asostudy conducted by Automatic Merchandiser (Stétde Vending Industry, June 20
that included a representative 5.4 million machiceshless adoption was projected at only 7% ir220f from 4% in 2011. The increase"
attributed to higher product price points, increaseceptance of debit and credit in retail for sengburchases, Gen X and Y/millenn
joining the workforce to become vending consumeds the growing research about how cashless paysystems can increase sales. \
the continued shift to electronic payments andatieancement in mobile and POS technology, we kelikg traditional beverage and fi
vending industry will continue to look to cashlgsg/ments and telemetry systems to improve theinbas results.

Kiosk. According to IHL Consulting Group’s August 2012Mh American SelfService Kiosks Market Study, which defines, forguses ¢
their study, a kiosk as a self-standing, technologged, unmanned device deployed across six retall Fepspitality environmen
approximately $926 billion will be transacted thgbuselfservice kiosks in 2013, with compound annual grofetithe subsequent three ye
of seven percent (7%). We believe that kiosks amiming increasingly popular as credit, debit artactless payment options enable ki
to sell an increased variety of items. In additithe study points to the increasing trend towailft séfficiency, where time is the m
important commodity of the consumer. As merchamistioue to seek new ways to reach their customesugh kiosk applications, \
believe the need for a reliable cashless paymeniiger experienced with machine integration, PGhpbance and cashless payment sen
designed specifically for the unattended market & of increasing value in this market. Our erigtkiosk customers integrate with
cashless payment services via our QuickConnect™ &¥alice using one of our encrypted readers ortdf§ technologies.

Laundry. Our primary targets in laundry consist of theneoperated commercial laundry and multiusing laundry markets. According to
Coin Laundry Association, the U.S. commercial laynihdustry is comprised of 30,085,000 laundromats that our partner, Setor
Systems, estimates translates to roughly 2.5 mikiommercial washers and dryers. Additionally, maustry participant indicates there
approximately 3.4 million machines in the multi-lstlng market. While no revenue figures are availétnéhe multihousing market, the Cc
Laundry Association estimates gross revenue ifatinedromat market at nearly $5 billion annually.

Mobile MerchantNew mobilebased payment acceptance technology has madeséotraational impact on an entire base of merchtat
previously had almost no access to electrimdised payments. Goldman Sachs (Equity ResearchrtR@poe 19, 2012) sees the arrive
mobile technology at the micro/small merchant leagdiressing an estimated 13 million Ub&sed micro merchants that are likely to be
from the ability to accept electronic payment fronobile devices. The Company believes that its nedidlsed acceptance product
existing turnkey service platform align well withet markets need for integrated, mobile payment solutionsrt€O™ is an example of hc
we have utilized ePortMobile to address the speaifieds of customers in the taxi andtoe vehicle industry. IBISWorld estimates rever
in the taxi and fohire vehicle industry at $11 billion in the U.S. daeding to the Taxicab, Limousine and Paratransiogiation, there a
approximately 12,400 limousine companies operati§,000 vehicles and approximately 6,300 compabjgsrating 171,000 taxica
throughout the United States. Municipalities susiNaw York City and Washington D.C. have recen#giib mandating the use ofwehicle
credit/debit card acceptance and navigation featuréaxis.



OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
We believe that we benefit from a number of advgeegained through our over twenty year historgunindustry. They include:

1. One-Stop Shop, End-to-End Solutivve believe that our ability to offer our customerse point of contact through a bundled casl
payment solution makes it easy and efficient for customers to adopt and deploy our electronic matnsolutions and results ir
service unmatched in the small ticket, safvice retail market today. To our knowledge, otteshless payment solutions available ir
market today require the operator to set up thein @ccounts for cashless processing and manageéplautervice providers (i.¢
hardware terminal manufacturer, wireless netwoivisler, and/or credit card processor). We interfdicectly with our card process
and wireless service provider, and with our har@wsmiutions are able to offer a bundled solutioauncustomers

2. Trusted Brand NaméelThe ePort and Energy Miser brands have a strorignatreputation for quality, reliability, and innation. We
believe that card associations, payment procesandsmerchants/operators trust our system soluthandle financial transactions i
secure operating environment. Our trusted brandenarbest exemplified by our high level of custometention, over two doz
exclusive thregrear agreements with customers for use of our éPamhect service signed in fiscal 2013, nationetlleagreements wi
partners like Visa and Verizon Wireless and severaway exclusive relationships, which we have solatifiwith several leadi
organizations within the unattended POS industrgiuiding Setomatic Systems and AMI Entertainmeniildek, Inc., Innovative Fot
and Air-Serv.

3. Market LeadershipWe believe we have the largest installed base aftended POS electronic payment systems in theamukgd small-
ticket retail market for food and beverage vendamgl we continue to expand to other adjacent marketof June 30, 2013, we
approximately 214,000 connections to our networlir @stalled base supports our sales and markatingstructure by enhancing ¢
ability to establish or expand our market positiemally, we believe our installed base providegesal opportunities for referrals for n
business, either from the merchant or operatanefieployed asset or through one of our sevegtksgiic relationship:

4. Attractive Value Proposition for Our Custom¢«. We believe that our solutions provide our custenan attractive value proposition. (
solutions make possible increased purchases byigters who in the past were limited to the physiesh value on hand while makin
purchase at an unattended terminal, thereby inogadse universe of potential customers and tharngugctivity of those customers.
addition, offerings and services such as Ther Pricing and M2M telemetry provide operatorghamhe ability to pursue additior
opportunities to reduce costs and improve operagifigiencies. In addition, new consumer engagensemvices further extend 1
potential for customers to build new revenue oppaties, customer loyalty and brand distincti

5. Increasing Scale and Financial StabiliDue to the continued growth in connections to tlkenanys ePort Connect service, during
2013 fiscal year, 84% of the Compasiyevenues were from licensing and processingvigdsh are recurring in nature. We believe
this growing scale provides us improved financtabsity and the footprint to market and distributer products more effectively anc
more markets than most of our competit:

6. Customer-Focused Research and Developn@untresearch and development initiatives focusduhing features and functionality to
electronic payment solutions based on customertiapd emerging market trends. Since we began aépesain 1992, we have be
granted 86 patents (US and International) and ntiyrdave 6 patent applications pending and haveeigged considerable intellect
proprietary and kno-how associated with creating a seamless-to-end experience for our custome

OUR GROWTH OPPORTUNITY

Our objective is to enhance our position as a headirovider of technology that enables electroragment transactions and valadeel
services primarily at small-ticket, sedérvice, retail locations such as vending, kiosi@nmercial laundry, car wash, and other sir
markets. The Company believes its service-apprdaciness model creates a higlargin stream of recurring revenues that will are:
foundation for long-term value and continued gravithe key elements of our strategy are to:

Drive Growth in Connections

Leverage Existing Customers/PartneWe have a solid base of key customers across neultiiarkets, particularly in vending, that h
deployed our solutions to just a small portiontadit deployed base. As a result, they are a keypooent of our plan to drive sales. We t
worked to build these relationships, drive futuepldyments, and develop customized network intefa®©ur customers have seen
benefits of our products and services first-hardiaa believe represent the largest opportunitycédesour solution.



Expand Distribution and Sales ReaWe are intently focused on driving profitable grovthrough efficient sales channels. Added ¢
resources and new distribution relationships hadetd approximately 1,750 new ePort Connect custeme well as increased penetratic
markets such as amusement and arcade, and cominearoiry in fiscal year 2013.

Further Penetrate Attractive Adjacent MarkeWe plan to continue to introduce our turnkey solusi to various markets such as the broad
based kiosk market, car wash and other similar etaty leveraging our expertise in cashless paymegration combined with the capas
and uniqueness of our ePort Connect solution thgisawith the needs of these customers for cashiamsactions, sales analysis, rer
monitoring, and other services.

Capitalize on Opportunities in International MarketWe are currently focused on the U.S. and Canadiarkets for our ePort devices i
related ePort Connect service but may seek to lestabpresence in electronic payment markets i} Asia, and Latin America. In ori
to do so, however, we would have to invest in aolditl sales and marketing and research and develuprasources targeted towards tl
regions. At this time, the Company believes the tmedficient route to these markets will be achiewsd optimizing and coordinatii
opportunities with its global partners and cust@né&ur energy management devices have been shippedstomers located in No
America, Europe, and Asia.

Expanding the Value of our Service

Capitalize on the emerging NFC and growing mobdgments trendd/Vith over 50% of our connected base NFC and mgizijenents read
the Company believes that the continued increasmmsumer preferences towards contactless paymgmissents a significant opportur
for the Company to further drive adoption and nearkating programs.

Continuous InnovationVe continue enhancing our solutions in order tssBabur customers and the endasumers relying on our produ
at the POS locations. Our product innovation tearhaaces the design, size, and speed of data trsgsiemi as well as security ¢
compatibility with other electronic payment solutiproviders'technologies. We believe our continued innovatidhlead to further adoptic
in the unattended POS payments market.

Leverage Intellectual Proper. We have been granted 86 patents which assedugaciaims, including claims relating to unattengagimen
processing, networking and energy management devicaddition, we own numerous trademarks, copysigdesign rights and trade sec
We will continue to attempt to leverage this indetial property to add value for customers, attexmpttain an increased share of the ma
and attempt to generate licensing revenues.

SALES AND MARKETING

The Companys sales strategy includes both direct sales andnehalevelopment, depending on the particular dycsrof each of ot
markets. Our marketing strategy is diversified amdudes media relations, direct mail, confereneas] client referrals. As of August :
2013, the Company was marketing and selling itslpets through its full and part-time staff consigtof seventeen people.

Direct Sales

Our direct sales efforts are primarily focused loa beverage and food vending industry, althouglteveinue to further develop our prese
in our ancillary market segments.

Indirect Sales/ Distribution

We have entered into agreements with resellersdestdbutors in connection with our energy managenpeoducts. As part of our strateg)
expand our sales reach while optimizing resounsesalso have agreements with select resellerseircdin wash, amusement and arcade
vending markets in addition to a strategic markgtielationship in the commercial laundry markett theakes the Company the exclus
service provider to Setomatic Systems’ POS offer8gyderWash.

Marketing

Our marketing strategy includes advertising andeadh initiatives designed to build brand awarenesake clear USAE competitiv:
strengths, and prove the value of our servicesutotarget marketboth for existing and prospective customers. Atiggi include creatir
company and product presence on the web including wsatech.conand_ www.energymisers.comdigital advertising, SEO (Search Enc
Optimization), and social media; the use of direeil and email campaigns; educational and inswueti online training sessions; advertis
in vertically-oriented trade publications; participating in inlugradeshows and events; and working closely witstomers and key strate
partners on co-marketing opportunities and newgvative solutions that drive customer and consuwedeption of our services.
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IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIPS
Verizon Wireless

In April 2011, we signed an agreement to use Vergdligital wireless wide area network for transpaftdata, including credit ca
transactions and inventory management data. Thalitérm of the agreement is three years, expifipgl 2014. In August 2013, we sign
an amendment to this agreement which extendedethe until April 2016. At the end of the term, thgreement automatically renews
successive one month periods unless terminatedhsr @arty upon thirty days’ notice.

On September 21, 2011, the Company and Verizomezhtato a Joint Marketing Addendum (the “Verizogréaement”)which amended tt
agreement described above. Pursuant to the VeAgmaement, the Company and Verizon would work thgeto help identify busine
opportunities for the Comparg/products and services. Verizon may introduceGbmpany to existing or potential Verizon custontbies
Verizon believes are potential purchasers of the@anys products or services, and may attend saleswilisthe Company made to thi
customers. The Company and Verizon would collaleoosit marketing and communications materials thatldvbe used by each of then
educate and inform customers regarding their joiatketing work. Verizon has the right to list ther@panys products and services in
Data Solutions Guide for use by its sales and ntiagceemployees and in its external website. The Gamy has agreed to pay to Verizc
onetime referral fee for each customer introducedhs €ompany by Verizon that would become a custash#éne Company. The Veriz
Agreement is terminable by either party upon 45sdagtice.

VISA

As of October 12, 2011, following implementationtb& Durbin Amendment, we entered into a gear agreement with VISA to establis
new, fixed debit interchange rate. On October 822@ve entered into a first amendment pursuanthizhwthe original ongrear term we
extended until October 31, 2013, and which proviftecin automatic renewal for an additional yeammtil October 31, 2014.

Compass/Foodbuy

As per its website, Compass is a $12 billion orgatdn with locations worldwide, is the leader ianding, food service management
support services, is the largest national vendipgrating company, has over 500,000 associatiorss,isaone of the leading owners
operators of vending machines in the United St&lesapass is a division of UK-based Compass Group. PL

On June 30, 2009, we entered into a Master Purchgssement (“MPA”) with Foodbuy, LLC (“Foodbuy”the procurement company
Compass Group USA, Inc. (“Compass”) and other custs. The MPA provides, among other things, tha&fperiod of thirtysix months
Foodbuy on behalf of Compass shall utilize USATiressole credit or debit card vending system hardvead related software and coni
services provider for not less than sevefintg-percent of the vending machines of Compadiinty cashless payments solutions. The N
also provides that for a period of thigyx months from the effective date of the agreemdB&AT shall be a preferred supplier and provid
Foodbuy and its customers, including Compass, ATUS products and services. On July 1, 2009, USATGmahpass, in conjunction w
the MPA described above, entered into a Quick Stster Lease Agreement pursuant to which Compaskl @urchase ePort™ devi
utilizing USAT’s Quick Start Program. The Quick BtRrogram enables Compass to acquire USAGPort™ devices through a 36 mc¢
non-cancellable lease. Under the Quick Start Prograomgass will pay USAT a monthly amount, per termitiadt includes the lease of
ePort™ hardware and activation fee. Compass waoellddte to utilize the Quick Start Program to acgeiPorts during the three year terr
the Master Purchase Agreement referred to abovaddiition, on July 1, 2009, USAT and Compass, imjwaction with the MPA describ:
above, also entered into a new three year ePorhé&drServices Agreement pursuant to which USAT pitivide Compass with all ce
processing, data, network, communications and €irahservices, and DEX telemetry data servicesiredun connection with all Compe
vending machines utilizing ePorts. During the fispsar ended June 30, 2013, Foodbuy and its custrmeluding Compass, represer
23% of our total revenues.

The agreement had an initial term of thisix-months, and automatically renews for successiheyear periods unless terminated by €
party upon sixty days’ notice prior to the end oy @duch one year renewal period.

AMI Entertainment
On August 22, 2011, we entered into an exclusiveetyear agreement with AMI Entertainment (“AMH3 their exclusive processor of cr
and debit cards and other electronic payments imection with equipment operated on AMlhetwork in the U.S. and Canada.

agreement is subject to renewal for one year perbdreafter, subject to notice of namewal by either party. AMI manufactures var
types of amusement, entertainment and music equipfoesale to third party users.
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Setomatic Systems

In April 2013, we entered into an three-year exgkisagreement with Setomatic Systems (“Setomatig”privately owned and opera
developer and manufacturer of both open and clésmgl card payment systems, drop coin meters ardrefgc timers for the commerc
laundry industry. Under the terms of agreement,Gbenpany, through our ePort Connea@rvice, will act as the exclusive service prov
for all credit/debit card processing for Setomati8pyderWash, a credit/debit card acceptance pto@Goaversely, the Company will mar
its ePort Connect service in the United Statesdaumarket exclusively through Setomatic. In additithe agreement included the trans
of Setomatic’s existing cashless connections taCheapany.

Isis

During Fiscal 2013, the Company entered into aexjfa marketing agreement with Isis, a mobile comu@éoint venture comprised of ma
telecommunication companies; namely, Verizon Wag|AT&T Mobility and TMobile USA. As part of the agreement, the Compaiag v
participant in the Isis Mobile Wallet in their twaunch markets, Austin and Salt Lake City, duringc&l 2013 for which it received financ
and marketing support from Isis. In addition, inrih2013, the Company announced, with Isis, whathedeve is the largest nationw
loyalty program in vending. The promotion is degidrto allow any of our vending customers nationwtige ability to participate in Is
Mobile Wallet payment and loyalty rewards progrgmovided that their locations are enabled for SiartTap technology for loya
tracking. Consumers using the Isis Mobile Wallebra¢ of these terminals would be eligible to reedheir fifth vend free. Under the term:
the agreement covering the promotion, Isis, thrahghCompany, would essentially reimburse our vemdustomers for that free vend. W/
the Company continues to market and prepare cussoimethe nationwide promotion, the timing andeass of this promotion will be higt
dependent on the strategies and timing of eveatsutider the control of Isis. According to a predease issued by Isis on July 30, 2013
announced plans for its nationwide roll out latethe 2013 calendar year, following successfultpiio Austin, Texas and Salt Lake C
Utah.

JUMP START PROGRAM

In order to accelerate adoption in the marketplasewnell as increase the Companyicense and transaction fee revenues, the Cor
commenced a program for its customers referredstthe JumpStart Program (“JumpStaity)December 2009. Pursuant to the Jump
Program, customers acquire the ePort cashlessni@rati no upfront cost by paying a higher montldgice fee, avoiding the need to mal
major upfront capital investment. The Company waddtinue to own the ePort device utilized by itstomer. At the time of the shipmen
the ePort device, the customer is obligated to tpathe Company the standard dimee activation fee, is obligated to pay monthlyos
Connect service fees in accordance with the terfrhe customes contract with the Company, and the Company resetvansactic
processing fees generated from the device.

In fiscal 2013, the Company funded approximatel$o706f its net connections through JumpStart. The @uong anticipates using t
JumpsStart Program for approximately 60% to 65%t®fanticipated new (not net) connections in Fist#l4 as a result of its contint
diversification strategies that include more sofeMaased connections to its ePort Connect serviceeflsas a broader menu of purchas
programs for its ePort devices.

MANUFACTURING

The Company utilizes independent third party congmifor the manufacturing of its products. Our nfanturing process mainly consists
quality assurance of materials and testing of fieés goods received from our contract manufactuk#ies have not entered into a loteg#r
contract with our contract manufacturers, nor haeeagreed to commit to purchase certain quantitiesaterials or finished goods from 1
manufacturers beyond those submitted under roptinehase orders, typically covering short-term dasts.

COMPETITION

We are a leading provider and believe we have dhgebt installed base of unattended POS electpmiment systems in the small ticl
beverage and food vending industry. What we comngmlde our competitive advantages are describedeabbnder OUR COMPETITIVE
STRENGTHS."During the last fiscal year, our competitors haggun to increasingly and actively market prodacid services that comp
with our products and services in this vending spacluding manufacturers who may include in thw vending machines their own
another third partyg) cashless payment systems and services otherotirasystems and services. These major compefitohsde Cran
Payment Systems, MEI, Coin Acceptors Inc. (CoinGantaloupe Systems, Inc. and C&@a Refreshments USA, Inc. While we believe
products and services are superior to our compgtitnany of our competitors are much larger enisgprand have substantially gre
revenues. In addition to these competitors, thexeakso numerous credit card processors that offiet processing services to traditional
establishments that could decide to offer simitawiges to the industries that we serve.

In the cashless laundry market, our joint solutidth Setomatic Systems competes with hardware naaturfers, who provide joint solutic
to their customers in partnership with payment pssors, and with at least one competitor who pesvih integrated hardware and payi
processing solution.
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CUSTOMER CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments that subject the Company torecentration of credit risk consist principallfyaash and cash equivalents and accc
and finance receivables. The Company maintains @agltash equivalents with various financial ingtins. Approximately 41% and 46%
the Company’s trade accounts and finance receisaildune 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, wereetdrated with one and two customer
(s), respectively. Approximately 37%, 43%, and 48Pthe Companys license and transaction processing revenuesiéoydars ended Ju
30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, were cdrated with two customers: 26%, 25%, and 23%, retbply, with one; and 11%, 18'
and 25%, respectively, with another. There was emcentration of equipment sales revenue for thesyeaded June 30, 2013, 2012,
2011. The Company’s customers are principally ledah the United States.

TRADEMARKS, PROPRIETARY INFORMATION, AND PATENTS

The Company owns US federal registrations for thiowing trademarks and service marks: Blue Ligbg$ence®, Business Express®
CM2iQ®, Creating Value Through Innovation®, Energgbt®, ePort®, ePort Connect®, ePort Edge®, eSudistelligent Vending®,PC
Express®, Public PC®, SnackMiser®, TransAct®, USAchinologies® USALive®, VendingMiser®, and VM2iQ®@he Company owt
pending applications for US federal registration tbe following trademarks and service marlePort GO™, ePortMobile™ a
QuickConnect™,

Much of the technology developed or to be develdpethe Company is subject to trade secret prateciio reduce the risk of loss of tri
secret protection through disclosure, the Compamy éntered into confidentiality agreements withkiégy employees. There can be
assurance that the Company will be successful imtaiaing such trade secret protection, that thdl/bve recognized as trade secrets |
court of law, or that others will not capitalize oertain aspects of the Company’s technology.

Through June 30, 2013, 86 patents have been gramted Company, 73 United States patents and redgfo patents, and 2 United States
4 foreign patent applications are pending. Of tBg@&tents, thirteen have expired and four will exj the next two fiscal years.

The Company believes that one or more of its patdntluding U.S. Patent No. 6,505,095 entitl&ystem for providing remote auu
cashless payment, and interactive transaction déjesbin a vending machine” and U.S. Patent NA.3Z2,575 entitled MDB Transactiol
String Effectuated Cashless Vending”, are importarirotecting its intellectual property used is @-Port® control system targeted to
vending industry. The aforesaid patents expirauly 2021.

The Company filed for reexamination of U.S. Pat¥nt 7,131,575 (Reexamination Control No. 90/008)4&7d for reexamination of U.
Patent No. 6,505,095 (Reexamination Control No0@8/448). On January 6, 2009, the U.S. Patent ©ffisued an Ex Parte Reexamine
Certificate in connection with U.S. Patent No. 2,55 confirming patentability without any amendintenthe claims. On August 11, 20
the U.S. Patent Office issued an Ex Parte Reexdimm@ertificate in connection with U.S. Patent N¢gb05,095 which, among other thir
approved amendments to certain of the prior claindsapproved twelve new claims, for a total of knes.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenses, which are @ttlidselling, general and administrative expems¢éhé Consolidated Statement:
Operations, were approximately $901,000, $1,038,806 $997,000, for the years ended June 30, 2012, and 2011, respectively.

EMPLOYEES

On August 31, 2013, the Company had fifty full-tiemployees and four part-time employees.
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| tem 1A. Risk Factors.
Risks Relating to Our Business
We have a history of losses since inception andwke continue to incur losses, the price of our shasecan be expected to fall.

We experienced losses from inception through Juhe2812, with net income for the year ended June2B13. However, continu
profitability is not assured. From our inceptiomaiigh June 30, 2013, our cumulative losses fromatipes are approximately $198 milli
For our fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 204 Incurred net losses of $5,211,238 and $6,457 j@8pectively, due primarily to the f
that our revenues have not been sufficient to Bustar operations. For the year ended June 30,,20&%arned net income of $854,123. Ii
incur losses in the future, the price of our comratmtk can be expected to fall.

The occurrence of unusual or unanticipated noreperational expenses may require us to divert ourash resources from achieving ot
business plan, adversely affecting our financial péormance and resulting in the decline of our stoclprice.

Our fiscal year 2014 business plan assumes thataterial unusual or unanticipated noperational expenses would be incurred by us.d
event we would incur any such expenses, we wouidipate diverting our cash resources from our J8tag program in order to fund &
such expenses. During the fiscal year ending JOn2@L4, we anticipate utilizing substantial cassources in connection with the Jumpé
program. Any such reduction may cause our antiegbabnnections, revenues, gross profits, Adjusi&d BA, and other financial metrics f
the 2014 fiscal year and beyond to be materialiyeesbly affected. In such event, the price of mmmon stock could be expected to fall.

We may require additional financing or find it necessary to raise capital to sustain our operations ahwithout it we may not be able t
achieve our business plan.

At June 30, 2013, we had working capital deficiB¢f,290,504). We had operating cash flows of 86,98, $78,236, and ($908,227), for
fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2@%pectively, reflecting a reclassification of cased for acquisition of property for 1
JumpsStart Program. Although we believe that we hedequate existing resources to provide for oudifum requirements through at le
July 1, 2014, there can be no assurances that liveeaable to continue to generate sufficient futidseafter. Unless we maintain or grow
current level of operations and maintain or redtie number of JumpStart connections, we may neddi@ual funds to continue the
operations. We may also need additional capitalgdate our technology or respond to unusual or titipated noneperational event
Should the financing we require to sustain our wagkcapital needs be unavailable or prohibitiveipensive when we require it, |
consequences could be a material adverse effemtilbusiness, operating results, financial condidad prospects.

Our future operating results may fluctuate.

Our future operating results will depend signifittaron our ability to continue to drive revenuesifr license and transaction fees and
ability to develop and commercialize new products services. Our operating results may fluctuasetdaipon many factors, including:

fluctuations in revenue generated by our busir

fluctuations in operating expens:

our ability to establish or maintain effective t@aships with significant partners and suppliensagceptable term
the amount of debit or credit card interchangesréiat are charged by Visa and Masterc

the fees that we charge our customers for proogs&irvices

the successful operation of our netwc

the commercial success of our customers, whichddoelaffected by such factors as general econooniditons;
the level of product and price competitic

the timing and cost of, and our ability to devetoql successfully commercialize, new or enhanceduyats and service
activities of, and acquisitions or announcementsbynpetitors; an

the impact from any impairment of inventory, goolifixed assets or intangible

Our products may fail to gain substantial increasednarket acceptance. As a result, we may not geneeasufficient revenues or profi
margins to achieve our financial objectives or growh plans.

There can be no assurances that demand for oungieodill be sufficient to enable us to generatifiGant revenue or become profitable c
sustainable basis. Likewise, no assurance carnviea giat we will be able to have a sufficient numitifeePorts® connected to our network
sell equipment utilizing our network to enough foas to achieve significant revenues. Alternagtyéhe locations which utilize the netw
may not be successful locations and our revenuesdwie adversely affected. We may lose locatioilzing our products to competitors,
may not be able to install our products at competitiocations, or may not obtain future locations whigbuld be obtained by o
competitors. In addition, there can be no assur#mteour products could evolve or be improved genthe future needs of the marketpl
In any such event we may not be able to achievgymwth plans, including anticipated connectiond evenue growth.
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We may be required to incur further debt to meet fuure capital requirements of our business, includig funding our JumpStart
program. Should we be required to incur additionaldebt, the restrictions imposed by the terms of suctiebt could adversely affect ou
financial condition and our ability to respond to dhanges in our business.

If we incur additional debt, we may be subjecttte following risks:

° our vulnerability to adverse economic conditiond anmpetitive pressures may be heightel

° our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, ahges in our business and industry may be lim

° our debt covenants may affect our flexibility imphing for, and reacting to, changes in the econanayin our industry

° a high level of debt may place us at a competitiisadvantage compared to our competitors thates® leveraged a

therefore, may be able to take advantage of oppitigs that our indebtedness would prevent us fpomsuing;

° the covenants contained in the agreements govemingutstanding indebtedness may limit our abtlityoorrow addition:
funds, dispose of assets and make certain invessn

° a significant portion of our cash flows could bediso service our indebtedne
° we may be sensitive to fluctuations in interestsat any of our debt obligations are subject toalde interest rates; at
° our ability to obtain additional financing in theitfire for working capital, capital expendituresguasitions, gener

corporate purposes or other purposes may be ingp

We cannot assure you that our leverage and sutriictiesis will not materially and adversely affemir ability to finance our future operatic
or capital needs or to engage in other businesgitag. In addition, we cannot assure you thatiéalthl financing will be available whi
required or, if available, will be on terms satittay to us.

The loss of one or more of our key customers coukignificantly reduce our revenues, results of opetans, and net income.

We have derived, and believe we may continue tovelen significant portion of our revenues fromimiled number of large custome
Approximately 41% and 46% of the Compastrade accounts and finance receivables at Jun@@®®B and 2012, respectively, w
concentrated with one and two customer(s), respagti Approximately 37%, 43%, and 48% of the Comparlicense and transact
processing revenues for the years ended June 38, 2012, and 2011, respectively, were concentratddtwo customers: 26%, 25%, ¢
23%, respectively, with the first customer; and 11%%, and 25%, respectively, with the second eanstoIn August 2013, at the reques
the second customer referred to in the prior sestewe ceased providing ePort Connect servicesl®@890 ePort devices which t
previously been purchased from us by such custoierbelieve that the customer made such a reqaestesult of the customer develog
its own product and service. We continue to prove&®rt Connect services to this customer for amtthdi ePorts purchased from us by
customer. The loss of this or any other large custacould adversely affect our results of operationgrowth plans.

Our customers may buy less of our products or sesvilepending on their own technological develogm@&mduser demand for our produ
and internal budget cycles. A major customer in gpaar may not purchase any of our products or sesvin another year, which n
negatively affect our financial performance. If e required to sell products to any of our largst@mers at reduced prices or unfavor
terms, our results of operations and revenue cbaldnaterially adversely affected. Further, ther@asassurance that our customers
continue to utilize our transaction processing egldted services as our customer agreements amaljgncancelable by the customer
thirty to sixty days’ notice.

We depend on our key personnel and if they would é¥e us, our business could be adversely affected
We are dependent on key management personnelgiyarly the Chairman and Chief Executive Officeteihen P. Herbert and our Ct

Financial Officer, David DeMedio. The loss of sees of Mr. Herbert or Mr. DeMedio or other officemuld dramatically affect our busini
prospects. Our executive officers and certain ofafficers and employees are particularly valuablas because:

° they have specialized knowledge about our compadyoperations
° they have specialized skills that are importarguooperations; ¢
° they would be particularly difficult to replac

We have entered into an employment agreement withHdrbert that expires on January 1, 2014 and WithDeMedio which expires ¢
June 30, 2014, each of which contains confidetfialnd noneompete agreements. We have obtained a key péfsansiurance policy in tt
amount of $1,000,000 on Mr. Herbert. We do not heavet do not intend to obtain key person life ineaeacoverage on any other officers.
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We also may be unable to retain other existingenanagement, sales personnel, and developmerrayigeering personnel critical to
ability to execute our business plan, which coelslit in harm to key customer relationships, Idssey information, expertise or knotew
and unanticipated recruitment and training costs.

Our dependence on proprietary technology and limitd ability to protect our intellectual property may adversely affect our ability tc
compete.

Challenge to our ownership of our intellectual gdp could materially damage our business prospéris technology may infringe upon
proprietary rights of others. Our ability to exezwur business plan is dependent, in part, on bilityato obtain patent protection for ¢
proprietary products, maintain trade secret praacnd operate without infringing the proprietaights of others.

Through June 30, 2013, we had 6 pending UniteceStamd foreign patent applications, and intendl¢oapplications for additional pate
covering our future products, although there candassurance that we will do so. In addition,etean be no assurance that we will mair
or prosecute these applications. The United Statasernment and other countries have granted usa&s as of June 30, 2013. There
be no assurance that:

° any of the remaining patent applications will barged to us

° we will develop additional products that are paabfe or do not infringe the patents of oth

° any patents issued to us will provide us with anmpetitive advantages or adequate protection fopoaducts
° any patents issued to us will not be challengedlidated or circumvented by others;

° any of our products would not infringe the patesftsthers.

If any of the products are found to have infringety patent, there can be no assurance that wévevilble to obtain licenses to continu
manufacture and license such product or that wienetl have to pay damages as a result of suctngdgment. Even if a patent applicatio
granted for any of our products, there can be sarasce that the patented technology will be a cerial success or result in any profit
us.

If we are unable to adequately protect our proarietechnology, third parties may be able to compedre effectively against us, which cc
result in the loss of customers and our businesyybedversely affected. Patent and proprietarytsiditigation entails substantial legal :
other costs, and diverts Company resources asawéhie attention of our management. There can lEssurance we will have the neces
financial resources to appropriately defend or @cage our rights in connection with any such litiga.

Competition from others could prevent the Company ffom increasing revenue and achieving its growth plas.

While we are a leading provider and believe we hieelargest installed base of unattended POSrefectpayment systems in the sr
ticket, beverage and food vending industry, duthmglast fiscal year our competitors have begundreasingly and actively market prodt
and services that compete with our products andcssy in this vending space. The competition ineBichanufacturers who may includ
their new vending machines their own (or anoth@dtparty’s) cashless payment systems and services otheothagystems and servic
While we believe our products and services are réup#® our competitors, many of our competitore anuch larger enterprises and
substantially greater revenues. In addition to éhesmpetitors, there are also numerous credit pavdessors that offer card proces
services to traditional retail establishments tmild decide to offer similar services to the irtdes that we serve. Competition from of
companies, including those that are well established have substantially greater resources, mayceedur profitability or reduce ¢
business opportunities. Competition may resuloindr profit margins on our products or may reduoteptial profits or result in a loss
some or all of our customer base. To the exteritdhacompetitors are able to offer more attracte@hnology, our ability to compete co
be adversely affected.

The termination of any of our relationships with third parties upon whom we rely for supplies and seriees that are critical to oul
products could adversely affect our business and thy achievement of our business plan.

We depend on arrangements with third parties faargety of component parts used in our products.Hatee contracted with various suppl
to assist us to develop and manufacture our ePpmt@®ucts. For other components, we do not havelgwggmtracts with any of our third-
party suppliers and we purchase components as chéeme time to time. We have contracted with DB&Shbst our network in a secure, 2
environment to ensure the reliability of our netiwservices. We also have contracted with multiptedibased telecommunications provic
to ensure the reliability of our lartthsed network. If these business relationshipseanginated, the implementation of our business phay
be delayed until an alternative supplier or seryicgvider can be retained. If we are unable to &indther source or one that is compar:
the content and quality of our products could sudifed our business, operating results and finagoiadlition could be harmed.
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A disruption in the manufacturing capabilities of cur third- party manufacturers, suppliers or distributors would negatively impact oul
ability to meet customer requirements.

We depend upon thirdarty manufacturers, suppliers and distributordeiver components free from defects, competitiveunctionality an
cost, and in compliance with our specifications detivery schedules. Since we generally do not taainarge inventories of our products
components, any termination of, or significant gjgion in, our manufacturing capability or our teaship with our thirdparty
manufacturers or suppliers may prevent us frormfjlcustomer orders in a timely manner.

We have occasionally experienced, and may in thedlexperience, delays in delivery of products delivery of products of inferior quali
from thirdparty manufacturers. Although alternate manufacsuamd suppliers are generally available to produgeproducts and prodt
components, the number of manufacturers or sugpbérsome of our products and components is limitedl a qualified replacemi
manufacturer or supplier could take several morthsddition, our use of thirgarty manufacturers reduces our direct control @reduc
quality, manufacturing timing, yields and costssmption of the manufacture or supply of our praduend components, or a thipadity
manufacturer’s or suppliex’failure to remain competitive in functionalityjality or price, could delay or interrupt our atyilto manufactur
or deliver our products to customers on a timeligavhich would have a material adverse effeabanbusiness and financial performance.

Substantially all of the network service contractswith our customers are terminable for any or no regon upon thirty to sixty days’
advance notice.

Substantially all of our customers may terminatrthetwork service contracts with us for any orreason upon providing us with thirty
sixty days'advance notice. Accordingly, consistent demandafat satisfaction with our products by our custonieiitical to our financic
condition and future success. Problems, defectdjssatisfaction with our products or services datduse us to lose a substantial numb
our customers with minimal notice. If a substantiasmber of our customers were to exercise themitetion rights, it would result in
material adverse effect to our business, operaénglts, and financial condition.

Our reliance on our wireless telecommunication sefge provider exposes us to a number of risks overhich we have no control
including risks with respect to increased prices athtermination of essential services.

The operation of our wirelessly networked devicegahds upon the capacity, reliability and secudtgervices provided to us by our wirel
telecommunication services providers, AT&T Mobilepnd Verizon Wireless. We have no control overdheration, quality or maintenar
of these services or whether the vendor will imgrie services or continue to provide services #natessential to our business. In addi
subject to our existing contracts with them, oureldss telecommunication services providers magease their prices, which would incre
our costs. If our wireless telecommunication sewiproviders were to cease to provide essentiaktssror to significantly increase prices,
could be required to find alternative vendors foese services. With a limited number of vendors.cad experience significant delay:
obtaining new or replacement services, which cdedd to slowdowns or failures of our network. Irdididn, we may have to replace
existing ePort® devices that are already installed in the markegpland which are utilizing the existing vendosgervices. This coL
significantly harm our reputation and could causéallose customers and revenues.

We may accumulate excess or obsolete inventory thabuld result in unanticipated price reductions andwrite downs and adversel
affect our financial results.

Managing the proper inventory levels for componamsd finished products is challenging. In formudgtiour product offerings, we he
focused our efforts on providing products with dgeeacapability and functionality, which requires tesdevelop and incorporate the
current technologies in our products. This approgeids to increase the risk of obsolescence fodymts and components we holc
inventory and may compound the difficulties posgather factors that affect our inventory levelsluding the following:

° the need to maintain significant inventory of comeots that are in limited suppl!
° buying components in bulk for the best prici

° responding to the unpredictable demand for progl

° responding to customer requests for short-time delivery schedules; al

° failure of customers to take delivery of ordereddurcts.

If we accumulate excess or obsolete inventory epréciuctions and inventory writlswns may result, which could adversely affect r@sult:
of operation and financial condition.
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We may not be able to adapt to changing technolog@nd our customers’ technology needs.

We face rapidly changing technology and frequemt service offerings that can render existing s&viobsolete or unmarketable. Our fu
depends, in part, on our ability to enhance exgstiarvices and to develop, introduce and markefa imely and cost effective basis, r
services that keep pace with technological devetopimmand customer requirements. Developing newygtedand technologies is a comp
uncertain process requiring innovation and accuaaticipation of technological and market trendshéW changes to the product line
announced, we will be challenged to manage possibetened life cycles for existing products andticmie to sell existing products. €
inability to respond effectively to any of theseattenges may have a material adverse effect obwasiness and financial success.

Security is vital to our customers and therefore beaches in the security of transactions involving auproducts or services coul
adversely affect our reputation and results of opeations.

Protection against fraud is of key importance techasers and engsers of our products. We incorporate securityufest such as encrypti
software and secure hardware, into our productsratect against fraud in electronic payment tratisas and to ensure the privacy

integrity of consumer data. We design and testppaducts to high security standards and our pradaistl methodologies are under con:
review and improvement. We also maintain the highegl PCI validation standard as mandated byctrd industry and engage third pi
auditors not only to ensure that we meet the higindsistry standards, but also to advise us onawipg our security methods. Neverthel
our products may be vulnerable to breaches in ggaue to defects in our security mechanismsaierating system and applications in
hardware platform. Security vulnerabilities coudbpardize the security of information transmittedstored using our products. In gene
liability associated with security breaches of atified electronic payment system belongs to thstifution that acquires the financ
transaction. However, if the security of the infation in our products is compromised, our reputatod marketplace acceptance of
products will be adversely affected, which wouldedely affect our results of operations, and stthje to potential liability. If our secur
applications are breached and sensitive data iotostolen, we could incur significant costs td ooly assess and repair any damage t
systems, but also to reimburse customers for ladbsg®ccur from the fraudulent use of the data.r#és also be subject to fines and pene
from the credit card associations in the evenheflbss of confidential card information.

Our products and services may be vulnerable to sedty breach.

Credit card issuers have promulgated credit cacdrtg guidelines as part of their ongoing effddshattle identity theft and credit card fra
We continue to work with credit card issuers touasshat our products and services comply withehesges. There can be no assurar
however, that our products and services are invabie to unauthorized access or hacking. When tisemeauthorized access to credit «
data that results in financial loss, there is tbeeptial that parties could seek damages from us.

If we fail to adhere to the standards of the Visa tad MasterCard credit card associations, our registations with these associatior
could be terminated and we could be required to sfproviding payment processing services for Visa ahMasterCard.

Substantially all of the transactions handled by rtwork involve Visa or MasterCard. If we fail ¢omply with the applicable requireme
of the Visa and MasterCard credit card associatidMisa or MasterCard could suspend or terminate registration with them. Ti
termination of our registration with them or anyaoges in the Visa or MasterCard rules that wouldaiimour registration with them cot
require us to stop providing payment processingices through our network. In such event, our bessnplan and/or competitive advant:
in the market place could be materially adverséycéed.

We rely on other card payment processors; if theydil or no longer agree to provide their services,ur customer relationships could b
adversely affected and we could lose business.

We rely on agreements with other large paymentgssiag organizations, primarily Elavon, Inc. (“Edav), to enable us to provide c:
authorization, data capture, settlement and metcherounting services and access to various regottiols for the customers we se
Many of these organizations are our competitorsamndagreements are subject to termination by them.

The termination by our card processing providerghgfir arrangements with us or their failure tofpen their services efficiently al
effectively may adversely affect our relationshvpigh the customers whose accounts we serve andoaase those customers to termi
their processing agreements with us.

We are subject to laws and regulations that affecthe products, services and markets in which we opate. Failure by us to compl:
with these laws or regulations would have an adveeseffect on our business, financial condition, orasults of operations.

We are, among other things, subject to bankinglagigns and credit card association regulationduféato comply with these regulatic
may result in the suspension of our business,ithiéation, suspension or termination of servicej/anthe imposition of fines that could hi
an adverse effect on our financial condition. Aibdially, changes to legal rules and regulationsntrpretation or enforcement thereof, c«
have a negative financial effect on us or our pobddferings. To the extent this occurs, we cowddshbject to additional technical, contrac
or other requirements as a condition of our coimigto conduct our payment processing businessse hequirements could cause us to |
additional costs, which could be significant, otdse revenues to the extent we do not comply thidlse requirements.
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New legislation could be enacted regulating thesbapon which interchange rates are charged foit @elcredit card transactions, wh
could increase the debit or credit card interch&egs charged by bankcard networks. An exampledi $egislation is the so-calle@®Urbin
Amendment,to the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consunneteletion Act of 2010. The Durbin Amendment regedathe basis up
which interchange rates for debit card transactiams made to ensure that interchange rates aredmahle and proportionate to costs.”
Pursuant to regulations that were promulgated byFébderal Reserve, Visa and MasterCard have signify increased their interchange !
for small ticket debit card transactions.

On October 12, 2011, the Company and Visa enterteda one-year agreement (the “Visa Agreementitsuant to which Visa has agree
make available to the Company reduced interchagg fior debit card transactions. The interchanigebregsement fees made available tc
Company will allow the Company to continue to adcésa’s debit products without adversely impactihng Companys historical gros
profit from license and transaction fee revenues.Qatober 9, 2012, the Company and Visa enteredarirst Amendment to extend
terms of the original agreement to October 31, 20¢Bich automatically renewed for one year throu@ttober 31, 2014. If the Vi
Agreement is not extended, our financial resultsildbe materially adversely affected unless weadile to pass these significant additic
charges to our customers.

Increases in card association and debit network irchange fees could increase our operating costs otherwise adversely affect oL
operations. If we do not pass along to our customerany future increases in credit or debit card intechange fees, assessments ¢
transaction fees, our gross profits would be reduck

We are obligated to pay interchange fees and othtwork fees set by the bankcard networks to thd tssuing bank and the bankc
networks for each transaction we process throughnetwork. From time to time, card associations aedbit networks increase 1
organization and/or processing fees, known asdhterge fees that they charge. Under our procesgjragments with our customers, we
permitted to pass along these fee increases ta@watomers through corresponding increases in oagegsing fees. Passing along ¢
increases could result in some of our customersatigy their contracts with us. Consequently, ip@ssible that competitive pressures
result in our Company absorbing some or all ofitteeeases in the future, which would increase qerating costs, reduce our gross p
and adversely affect our business.

During the term of the Visa Agreement, the Compdogs not anticipate accepting any debit cards intdrchange fees that are higher 1
the rates provided under the Visa Agreement. Theafiamy will continue to accept Visa- branded dehi arepaid cards in addition to .
major credit cards, including Visa, MasterCard,ddiger and American Express at its current procgssites. If the Visa Agreement is
extended, our financial results would be materialfiversely affected unless we are able to pase thigsificant additional charges to
customers.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock

We do not expect to pay cash dividends in the foresable future and therefore investors should not ditipate cash dividends on thei
investment.

The holders of our common stock and series A cdiblempreferred stock are entitled to receive divids when, and if, declared by our b
of directors. Our board of directors does not idtém pay cash dividends in the foreseeable futoue,nstead intends to retain any anc
earnings to finance the growth of the businessdte, we have not paid any cash dividends on awnuan stock or our series A converti
preferred stock and there can be no assuranceabhtdividends will ever be paid on our commonistoc

In addition, our articles of incorporation prohiltite declaration of any dividends on our commorthkstonless and until all unpaid
accumulated dividends on the series A convertibédepred stock have been declared and paid. Thr&egitember 15, 2013, the unpaid
cumulative dividends on the series A convertiblef@gmed stock are $11,928,550. As of June 30, 2648h share of series A convert
preferred stock was convertible into 0.1938 of arehof common stock at the option of the holder snslubject to further adjustment
provided in our Articles of Incorporation. The uigband cumulative dividends on the series A conbleripreferred stock are convertible i
shares of our common stock at the rate of $1,00Ge@re at the option of the holder. During theryeraled June 30, 2013, none of our s
A convertible preferred stock and no cumulativefgmmed dividends were converted into shares of comstock.

Our articles of incorporation also provide that pneferred stock has a liquidation preference évercommon stock in the amount of $10
share plus accrued and unpaid dividends. As of 30n2013, the liquidation preference was $16,024,0

Upon certain fundamental transactions involving theCompany, such as a merger or sale of substantialpll of our assets, we may t
required to distribute the liquidation preference then due to the holders of our series A preferred stk as well as cash payments
certain of our warrant holders which would reduce he amount of the distributions otherwise to be madéo the holders of our commo!
stock in connection with such transactions.

Our articles of incorporation provide that upon arger or sale of substantially all of our assetspn the disposition of more than 50
our voting power, the holders of at least 60% ef pneferred stock may elect to have such transattated as a liquidation and be entitle
receive their liquidation preference. Upon our itiation, the holders of our preferred stock arétledtto receive a liquidation preference p
to any distribution to the holders of common stadkich as of June 30, 2013 is equal to $16,026,004.

The terms of the warrants that were issued in M6 to acquire up to 3,900,000 shares of comrawk @it $2.6058 per share which ex
in September 2016 provide that upon a Fundamemgeaistction (as defined in the warrant) the holtiafl have the right to have the wan
purchased by the Company for cash at its Black IBshd@alue (as defined in the warrant). The termdamental Transaction include
merger, sale of substantially all of our assetsf any person shall acquire 50% or more of théngppower of our shares. The Black Sch
Value (as defined in the warrant) payable as o0& B0y 2013 was approximately $3.0 million.

We may issue additional shares of our common stockyhich could depress the market price of our commorstock and dilute youl
ownership.

As of September 15, 2013, we had issued and odismarrants to purchase 6,384,624 shares of @anmn stock. The shares underly
6,339,624 of these warrants have been registerdanay be freely sold. Market sales of large amoohtsur common stock, or the poten
for those sales even if they do not actually ocoay have the effect of depressing the market micgur common stock. In addition, if ¢
future financing needs require us to issue additimhares of common stock or securities convertifle common stock, the supply
common stock available for resale could be incr@aggch could stimulate trading activity and cattse market price of our common stocl
drop, even if our business is doing well. Furthemmaohe issuance of any additional shares of ommgon stock including those pursuan
the exercise of warrants by the holders therea$gegaurities convertible into our common stock ccagdsubstantially dilutive to holders of
common stock.

Our stock price may be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock is expectetd subject to significant fluctuations in respons various factors including, but
limited to, the following:

° variations in operating results and achievemekegfbusiness metric

° changes in earnings estimates by securities asaljsiny;

° any differences between reported results and sexsuainalyst’ published or unpublished expectatio
° announcements of new contracts, service offeringeatinological innovations by us or our compesit

° market reaction to any acquisitions, joint venturestrategic investments announced by us or ompetitors;



demand for our services and produ
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° shares of common stock being sold pursuant to R4deor upon exercise of warran
° regulatory matters

° concerns about our financial position, operatirgults, litigation, government regulation, developiseor disputes relatil
to agreements, patents or proprietary rig

° potential dilutive effects of future sales of sl&aoé common stock by shareholders and by the Cown|
° the amount of average daily trading volume in @mmon stock

° our ability to obtain working capital financing; &

° general economic or stock market conditions unedléd our operating performant

The securities market in recent years has from timmgme experienced significant price and volurhectfiations that are unrelated to
operating performance of particular companies. &hearket fluctuations, as well as general econamiditions, may also materially €
adversely affect the market price of our commoulsto

The substantial market overhang of our shares mayeind to depress the market price of our shares.

As of September 15, 2013, the Company has registeraesale in the open market 2,075,624 of oareshunderlying warrants exercisabl
$1.13 per share at any time before December 313,201 4,264,000 of our shares underlying warraxéscisable at $2.6058 per share at
time before September 18, 2016. As of the dathisfRorm 10K, the warrants exercisable at $1.13 per shareettzite in December 2013
in the money. Sales in the public market of a sari&l number of the shares underlying these wesram the perception that these sales
occur, could cause the market price of our commntonksto decline. In addition, the sale of theserafacould impair our ability to rai
capital, should we wish to do so, through the sakedditional common stock. We are unable to eg#rtfze number of shares that may be
because this will depend on the market price faroounmon stock, the personal circumstances ofelers and other factors.

Director and officer liability is limited.

As permitted by Pennsylvania law, our by-laws lithie liability of our directors for monetary damader breach of a direct@’fiduciary
duty except for liability in certain instances. Asesult of our byaw provisions and Pennsylvania law, shareholdexg have limited rights
recover against directors for breach of fiduciangyd In addition, our byaws and indemnification agreements entered intdhbyCompan
with each of the officers and directors providet tha shall indemnify our directors and officerghe fullest extent permitted by law.

Our publicly- filed reports are reviewed by the SEC from time tatime and any significant changes required as a refiuof any suct
review may result in material liability to us, andhave a material adverse impact on the trading price®f our common stock.

The reports of publiclgraded companies are subject to review by the SiB@ fime to time for the purpose of assisting conigs ir
complying with applicable disclosure requirememnts & enhance the overall effectiveness of comgapiablic filings, and comprehensi
reviews of such reports are now required at leastyethree years under the Sarbaf@edey Act of 2002. SEC reviews may be initiatecay
time. While we believe that our previously filed GEeports comply, and we intend that all futurearépwill comply in all material respe:
with the published SEC rules and regulations, wéddbe required to modify or reformulate informaticontained in prior filings as a resul
an SEC review. Any modification or reformulationinformation contained in such reports could bai§igant and result in material liabili
to us and have a material adverse impact on thdentggrice of our common stock.
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| tem 2. Properties.

The Company conducts its operations from variousifi@s under operating leases. The Company ledg&19 square feet of space locate
Malvern, Pennsylvania for its principal executivifice and for general administrative functions,esabctivities, product development,
customer support. The lease term expires on ApriPB16. As of June 30, 2013, the Compamgnt payment for this facility is approxima

$30,000 per month.

The Company also leases space in Malvern, Penmsgi¥ar its product warehousing and shipping. Tlgfouanuary 2013, the Compi
leased 13,377 square feet of space at approximbi&lp00 per month. Upon termination of this ledise,Company moved its warehouse
shipping operations to a new location, also witklialvern, Pennsylvania under a new lease agreem#nth expires on February 28, 20
As of June 30, 2013, the Company’s rent paymeapoximately $4,000 per month.

| tem 3. Legal Proceedings.

None.
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PARTII
Ite m 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Ehty Securities.

The common stock of the Company trades on The NAQOBobal Market under the symbol USAT. The high &ma bid prices on Tt
NASDAQ Global Market for the common stock were alfofvs:

Year ended June 30, 2013 High Low

First Quarter (through September 30, 2C $ 178 $ 1.1¢€
Second Quarter (through December 31, 2! $ 197 $ 1.22
Third Quarter (through March 31, 201 $ 278 % 1.7¢
Fourth Quarter (through June 30, 20 $ 26 % 1.6C
Year ended June 30, 2012 High Low

First Quarter (through September 30, 2C $ 247 % 1.1¢
Second Quarter (through December 31, 2! $ 1.7C $ 0.94
Third Quarter (through March 31, 201 $ 13 $ 0.9
Fourth Quarter (through June 30, 20 $ 19¢ $ 1.1

On September 15, 2013, there were 625 record rotifehe Common Stock and 338 record holders oPtleéerred Stock.

The holders of the Common Stock are entitled t@ivecsuch dividends as the Board of Directors ef @ompany may from time to tir
declare out of funds legally available for paymentdividends. Through the date hereof, no cashddivils have been declared on
Companys Common Stock or Preferred Stock. No dividend beypaid on the Common Stock until all accumulated enpaid dividends «
the Preferred Stock have been paid. As of Septethe?013, such accumulated unpaid dividends anedutat $11,928,550. The Prefer
Stock is also entitled to a liquidation preferenger the Common Stock which as of June 30, 2013ledu$16,026,004.

As of June 30, 2013, equity securities authorizedssuance by the Company with respect to compiensglans were as follows:

Number of
securities
remaining
Number of Weighted available for
Securitiesto b average future
issued upon exercise issuance
exercises of price of (excluding
outstanding outstanding securities
options options and reflected
and warrants warrants in column(a))
Plan categor (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs - - 696,38! (1)
Total - - 696,38t

(1) Represents 196,385 shares of Common Stockblesuader the Comparg’2012 Stock Incentive Plan as approved by shaterloi
June 28, 2012, and 500,000 shares of Common Sisuklble under the Compaay2013 Stock Incentive Plan as approved by shatelsbi
June 21, 2013 for use in compensating employeésers and directors. The shares either have bmenill be registered with the Securit
and Exchange Commission as an employee benefityplder Form S-8.

As of September 15, 2013, shares of Common Staekved for future issuance were as follows:

° 6,384,624 shares issuable upon the exercise of constock warrants at exercise prices ranging frami3®to $2.6058 per sha
all warrants were exercisable as of September@83;

° 97,776 shares issuable upon the conversion ofamdistg Preferred Stock and cumulative Preferredksdovidends;



° 196,385 shares issuable under the 2012 Stock imedrian; anc

° 500,000 shares issuable under the 2013 Stock ined?ian.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows a comparison of thgear cumulative total shareholder return for oumown stock with The NASDA
Composite Index and the S&P 500 Information Tecbgplindex for small cap companies in the Unitedeé3taThe graph assumes a $
investment on June 30, 2008 in our common stockimrkde NASDAQ Composite Index and the S&P 500 infation Technology Inde
including reinvestment of dividends.

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Among USA Technologies, Inc., The NASDAQ Compositgex and The S&P 500 Information Technology Index

$160 =

Flaesl Year Bnded

Total Return For Jun-08 Jun-09 Jun-10 Jun-11 Jun-12 Jun-13
USA Technologies, Inc  $ 10C $ 48 $ 8 $ 38 $ 24 % 29
NASDAQ Composite $ 10C $ 80 % 92 $ 11€ $ 127 $ 147
S&P 500 Information

Technology Inde: $ 10C $ 80 $ 922 3 11 $ 12¢ $ 13¢€

The information in the performance graph is notndee to be “soliciting material” or to be “filediith the Securities and Exchar
Commission or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C unde Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenuleth, the liabilities of Section 18
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendatwédhnot be deemed to be incorporated by refegeinto any filing under the Securit
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchawaeof 1934, as amended, except to the extentwhaspecifically incorporate it |
reference into such a filing. The stock price perfance included in this graph is not necessarifjcetive of future stock price performance.
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| tem 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data for the fiyears ended June 30, 2013 are derived from théeaudonsolidated financial statement
USA Technologies, Inc. The data should be readmjunction with the consolidated financial statetsenelated notes, and other finan

information.

OPERATIONS DATA
Revenue:

Operating income (lost
Net Income (loss

Cumulative preferred dividends
Net income (loss) applicable to common shi

Net earnings (loss) per common sh- basic
Net earnings (loss) per common sh- diluted
Cash dividends per common sh

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total asset

Long-term debi
Shareholder equity

Year ended June 3

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 3594024 $ 2901724 $ 22,868,78 $ 15771,10 $ 12,020,12
$ 713,92 $ (7,000,39) $ (5,688,21) $ (11,595,69) $ (13,917,75)
$ 854,12 $ (5211,23) $ (6,457,06) $ (11,571,49) $ (13,731,81)

(664,45)) (664,45)) (665,57) (735,139 (772,99)
$ 18967, $ (5875,69) $ (7,122,64) $ (12,306,63) $ (14,504,81)
$ 0.01 $ 0.16) $ (0.26 $ (0.5 $ (0.95)
$ 0.01 $ 0.16) $ (0.26 $ (0.5 $ (0.95)
$ 36,576,19 $ 33,219,65 $ 36,004,00 $ 29,84842 $ 25,980,37
$ 36990 $ 72833( $ 253,060 $ 596,150 $ 820,05
$ 23,379,19 $ 2165502 $ 2612553 $ 22,812,17 $ 19,97227
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The following unaudited quarterly financial opeoats data for the years ended June 30, 2013 and3lyrg012 is derived from the audi
consolidated financial statements of USA Techna@sginc. and its interim reports for the quartdrsréin. The data should be rea
conjunction with the consolidated financial statetserelated notes, and other financial information

UNAUDITED

First Second Third Fourth
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Revenue! $ 839027 $ 8,884,332 $ 8,980,800 $ 9,684,844 $ 35,940,24
Gross profi $ 3,14428 $ 3,60018 $ 3,681,333 $ 3,670,811 $ 14,096,61
Operating income (los: $ (414,23) $ 567,65( $  350,21¢ $ 210,28¢ $ 713,92¢
Net income (loss $ 39,14( $ 153,75¢ $ (1,015,94) $ 1,677,16! $ 854,12:
Cumulative preferred divident $ (332,22 $ - $ (332,220 $ - $ (664,45)
Net income (loss) applicable to common shi $ (293,08) $ 153,75¢ $ (1,348,16) $ 1,677,161 $ 189,67:
Net earnings (loss) per common sh- basic $ (0.0)) $ - % (0.0 $ 0.0t $ 0.01
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding 32,518,23 32,734,39 32,821,34 33,080,64 32,787,67
Net earnings (loss) per common sh- diluted $ (0.0)) $ - 8 (0.04 $ 0.0t $ 0.01
Diluted weighted average number of common share:
outstanding 32,518,23 33,468,33 32,821,34 34,115,44 33,613,34

UNAUDITED

First Second Third Fourth
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Revenue! $ 6,705,74 $ 6,88159 $ 7,527,05 $ 7,902,841 $ 29,017,24
Gross profit $ 2,049,03¢ $ 193845 $ 2,795221 $ 3,178,331 $ 9,961,05.
Operating los: $ (1,822,26) $ (1,937,03) $ (637,20) $ (2,603,89) $ (7,000,39)
Net loss $ (78,959 $ (1,821,06) $ (538,61) $ (2,772,60) $ (5,211,23)
Cumulative preferred divident $ (332,22 $ - $ (332,220 $ - $ (664,45)
Loss applicable to common sha $ (411,18) $ (1,821,06) $ (870,849 $ (2,772,60) $ (5,875,69)
Net loss per common share (basic & dilut $ (0.00) $ (0.06) $ (0.09 $ (0.09 $ (0.1¢)
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding (basic & dilutec 32,288,63 32,448,04 32,466,52 32,496,32 32,423,98
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The following unaudited quarterly cash flow datatfte years ended June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2@E2ived from the audited consolide
financial statements of USA Technologies, Inc. asdnterim reports for the quarters therein. Tlagadreflects the reclassification of the ¢
used for purchase of property for the rental progfeom operating activities to investing activiti€éhe data should be read in conjunc
with the consolidated financial statements, relateids, and other financial information.

UNAUDITED
First Second Third Fourth
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 678,01( $ 192217 $ (217,43) $ 3,656,200 $ 6,038,95
Net cash used in investing activiti $ (2,076,91) $ (2,515,53) $ (1,790,84) $ (2,797,54) $ (9,180,83)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ 1,17596. $ (563,999 $ 910,47° $ 1,173,79' $ 2,696,24
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (222,94 (1,157,35) (1,097,809 2,032,46: (445,649
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 6,426,64! 6,203,70: 5,046,341 3,948,53 6,426,64!
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 6,203,70. $ 5,046,341 $ 3,94853 $ 5,981,000 $ 5,981,00
UNAUDITED
First Second Third Fourth
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ (496,789 $ (2,527,09) $ 232,17 $ 2,869,95 $ 78,23¢
Net cash used in investing activiti $ (1,294,95) $ (1,134,98) $ (1,256,67) $ (2,546,19) $ (6,232,81)
Net cash used in financing activiti $ (99,829 $ (107,470 $ (111,84) $ (91,14 $ (410,289
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (1,891,57) (3,769,551 (1,136,34) 232,61( (6,564,861
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 12,991,51 11,099,93 7,330,38: 6,194,03! 12,991,51
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 11,09993 $ 7,330,38 $ 6,19403 $ 6,426,64 $ 6,426,64
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| tem 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations.

USA Technologies, Inc. provides wireless networkicgshless transactions, asset monitoring and vtheeadded services principally to
small ticket, unattended retail markets. Our eRrtechnology can be installed and/or embedded intryelay devices such as venc
machines, a variety of kiosks, amusement & arcadehmes and smartphones via our ePort Mobile™ isoluOur associated service, el
Connect® , is a comprehensive service that includes simplifiegtit/debit card processing and support, consiangagement services
well as telemetry and machine-to-machine (“M2M8rvices, including the ability to remotely monjteontrol and report on the results
distributed assets containing our electronic paynsetutions. In addition, the Company provides ggemanagement products, such a
VendingMiser® and CoolerMiser™, which reduce energy consumptiorending machines and coolers.

The Company generates revenue in multiple ways.défeve the majority of our revenues from licensd &mansaction fees related to
ePort Connect service. Connections to our sentie $rom the sale, or lease of our POS electroaigment devices or certified paym
software or the servicing of similar thimhrty installed POS terminals. The majority of éR@onnect customers pay a monthly fee pl
blended transaction rate on the dollar volume msee by the Company. Customers with higher expdraedaction rates might pay a lo
or no ePort Connect monthly fee, but a higher l#enmlansaction rate on dollar volume processedbyCompany. Connections to the e
Connect service, therefore, are the most signifidamer of the Company’s revenues, particularlyereues from license and transaction fees.

The Company also generates equipment revenue thtbeglirect sale or rental of eP@technology as well as our stand-alone, non-
networked energy management products.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
GENERAL

The preparation of consolidated financial statemé@miconformity with accounting principles geneyadlccepted in the United States reqt
management to make estimates and assumptionsftlet the amounts reported in the financial statet:ieand the accompanying no
Actual results could differ from those estimates We&lieve the policies and estimates related teme® recognition, software developn
costs, impairment of lontjved assets, goodwill and intangible assets, amdstments represent our critical accounting pedieind estimate
Future results may differ from our estimates urdiferent assumptions or conditions.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognizetherierms of freight-oivoard shipping point, or upon installation and ataece of th
equipment if installation services are purchasedlfe related equipment. Activation fee revenueetognized when the Compasycashles
payment device is initially activated for use oe ompany network. Transaction processing revesiuedognized upon the usage of
Company’s cashless payment and control networlerise fees for access to the Compamgvices and network services are recognizec
monthly basis. In all cases, revenue is only rezmghwhen persuasive evidence of an arrangemestisexielivery has occurred or serv
have been rendered, the price is fixed and detaten and collection of the resulting receivablerdasonably assured. The Comg
estimates an allowance for product returns at #te df sale.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS

In accordance with the Financial Accounting StaddaBoard Accounting Standards Codification® (“ASCrppic 360 Tmpairment o
Disposal of Long-lived Assets”, the Company revietgslonglived assets whenever events or changes in cireunoss indicate that t
carrying amount of such assets may not be recoleertdlthe carrying amount of an asset or groupssfets exceeds its net realizable value
asset will be written down to its fair value. Irethberiod when the plan of sale criteria of ASC 36® met, londived assets are reportec
held for sale, depreciation and amortization ceasd the assets are reported at the lower of c&ymalue or fair value less costs to sell.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over failues@f the net assets purchased in acquisitions. Gbmpany accounts for goodwill
accordance with ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwillladther”.Under ASC 350, goodwill is not amortized to earsinigut instead is subject
periodic testing for impairment. In September 20ftle FASB issued ASU No. 2018, which amends current guidance to allow
Company to first assess qualitative factors tordatee if it is necessary to perform the twtep quantitative impairment test. If after
assessment the Company determines that it is na# likely than not that the fair value of a repogtiunit is less than its carrying amoi
then the twostep impairment test are unnecessary. If afteraksessment the Company determines that it is liketg than not that the fe
value of a reporting unit is less than its carryamgount, than the Company will perform the firgtpsof the twostep impairment test. The fi
step screens for potential impairment, while theosd step measures the amount of impairment. Thep@ny uses a quantitative metf
including a discounted cash flow analysis to corgptle first step in this process. We also givesmeration to our market capitalizati
Testing for impairment is to be done at least alipaad at other times if events or circumstanagéseahat indicate that impairment may h
occurred. The Company has selected April 1 asitsial test date. The Company has concluded therbd®en no impairment of goodwill a
result of its testing on April 1, 2013, April 1, 2B, and April 1, 2011.
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The Company trademarks with an indefinite econdifécare not being amortized. The trademarks, nbjexct to amortization, are relatec
the miser asset group and consist of the followtraglemarks: 1) VendingMiser, 2) CoolerMiser, 3) gMiser and 4) SnackMiser. T
Company tests indefinite-lived intangible assetsrfgpairment using a twetep process. The first step screens for potantjghirment, whili
the second step measures the amount of impairfikatCompany uses a relief from royalty analysisdmplete the first step in this proce
Testing for impairment is to be done at least alipaad at other times if events or circumstanagéseahat indicate that impairment may h
occurred. The Company has selected April 1 asitsial test date for its indefinitared intangible assets. The Company concludecether
an impairment of its indefinitbved trademarks as a result of its testing infigsal year 2011, and has recorded a $581,900 mpai
expense in fourth quarter of the fiscal year endede 30, 2011 (see Note 5 to the Consolidated EialaStatements). There was
impairment expense recorded during the fiscal gaded June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Patents and trademarks, with an estimated econlifei@re carried at cost less accumulated amaitizawhich is calculated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated economic life. Tmmpany reviews intangibles, subject to amortizgtior impairment whenever events
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargmgunt may not be recoverable. An asset is comeside be impaired when the sum of
undiscounted future net cash flows resulting frowm tise of the asset and its eventual disposititgsssthan its carrying amount. The ami

of the impairment loss, if any, is measured asdifference between the net book value of the amsdtits estimated fair value. Other t
described above, as of June 30, 2013, 2012, andl, 20&@ Company has concluded there has been ndrimgd of its other patents
trademarks that are subject to amortization.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018raged to demonstrate significant growth and imgroents in the Compars/operation:
Highlights of year over year improvements include:

Total revenue up 249

Recurring license and transaction fee revenue &f;

ePort Connect service base up 3l

Gross profit dollars up 429

GAAP net income of $854,000 (includes $268,000-cash income for change in fair value of warrarfteyn a GAAP net los
of ($5.2) million (includes $1.8 million ncash income for fair value of warrants); a

Revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 $85,940,244, consisting of $30,044,429 of lieemsd transactions fees and $5,89¢
of equipment sales, compared to $29,017,243 fofishal year ended June 30, 2012, consisting of 3¥ZB754 of license and transaction

and $5,646,489 of equipment sales. The increadetah revenue of $6,923,001, or 24%, was primadille to an increase in license

transaction fees of $6,673,675, or 29%, from therpyear, and an increase in equipment sales d9,824 or 4%, from the prior year.

Revenue from license and transaction fees, whiphesented 84% of total revenue for fiscal 2013ueded primarily by monthly ePc¢
Connect® service fees and transaction processesy fdighlights for fiscal 2013 include:

e 50,000 additional net connections to the Com/s ePort Connect service in fiscal 2013 comparetbt000 for fiscal 201z

e As of June 30, 2013, the Company had approxima2dlg,000 connections to the ePort Connect servigapaced t
approximately 164,000 connections to the ePort €onservice as of June 30, 2012, an increase obzippately 30%

e Increases in the number of smidket, credit/debit transactions and dollars haddfor fiscal 2013 of 26% and 28
respectively, compared to the same period a yegreagl

e 1,750 ePort Connect customers added in the cuiseal year, up 53% from the prior fiscal year, 5050 customers at June
2013.

The increase in license and transaction fees wagalthe growth in ePort Connect service fees emsaction dollars that stems from
increased number of connections to our ePort Cdrsegeice. As of June 30, 2013, the Company hadoppately 214,000 connections
the ePort Connect service compared to approximd@y000 connections to the ePort Connect sendagf dune 30, 2012. During the y
ended June 30, 2013, the Company added approxima@e000 net connections to our network comparedgproximately 45,000 r
connections during added the year ended June 3@, Znnections added as part of our JumpStarrgnogepresented approximately 7
and 65% of net connections added during the 2082842 fiscal years, respectively.

Pursuant to its agreements with customers, in iatdid ePort Connect service fees, the Companysdaansaction processing fees equal
percentage of the dollar volume processed by thapgaoy. During the year ended June 30, 2013, thep@oynprocessed approximately
million transactions totaling approximately $219llimh compared to approximately 103 million tranaes totaling approximately $1
million during the year ended June 30, 2012, areimge of approximately 26% in the number of trath@as and approximately 28% in !
value of transactions processed.

New customers added to our el® Connect service during the fiscal year ended Juhne2@13 totaled 1,750, bringing the total numbe
such customers to approximately 5,050 as of Jun@@IB. The Company added approximately 1,350 nestomers in the year ended J
30, 2012. By comparison, the Company had approxiyna,300 customers as of June 30, 2012, repregeatb3% increase during the |
twelve months. We count a customer as a new custapun the signing of their ePort Connect servigeeament. When a reseller sells
ePort, we count a customer as a hew customer tngosigning of the applicable services agreemert thi¢ customer.

The $249,326 increase in equipment sales was & i@fsan increase of approximately $787,000 relaeePort®products, offset by
decrease of approximately $529,000 in Energy Mmeducts and $9,000 in other products. The $787j@6fkase in ePort products
directly attributable to selling more units andinorease in activation fees during the currentdlis@ar. The $529,000 decrease in En
Miser products is directly attributable to sellifeyver units during the current fiscal year as altesf fewer Energy Miser product promotio
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Cost of sales consisted of cost of services fenke and transaction fee related costs of $18,29%8d $15,312,966 and equipment cos
$3,623,686 and $3,743,226, for the years ended 32013 and 2012, respectively. The increasetal tost of sales of $2,787,439, or 1
was due to an increase in cost of services of $2990 that stemmed from the greater number of adiores to the Compang’ePort Conne
service and increases in transaction dollars psactedy those connections, offset by improvementgricing from major suppliers. Tt
increase was patrtially offset by a decrease in @bstjuipment sales of $119,540.

Gross profit (“GP”)for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $14,096,640pa@d to GP of $9,961,051 for the previous figealr, an increa:
of $4,135,562, or 42%, of which $3,766,696 is htitable to license and transaction fees GP and,$86&f equipment sales GP. Ove
gross profit margins increased from 34% to 39% tduen increase in license and transaction feesinsatg 39%, from 34% in the prior fis
year and by an increase in equipment sales mai@i®8%, from 34% in the prior fiscal year. Improveznse and transaction fee margins
due to increased efficiencies stemming from newgaegotiated supplier agreements as well as arlaf@t Connect service base, inclut
the VISA agreement described under the sectiadtitimportant Relationships” that was entered wridOctober 12, 2011.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&AExpenses of $12,068,566 for the fiscal year endeé 30, 2013, decreased by $3,392,1(
22%, from the prior fiscal year. Fiscal 2013 SG&#penses include $328,000 of expenses related tfisited 2012 proxy contest, rela
litigation and settlement. Included in the $15,468, of SG&A expenses during the year ended Jun2®(®, were approximately $975,00(
expenses for the separation of the former CEO ttmrCompany and approximately $2.2 million relatethe proxy contest, related litigat
and settlement.

Exclusive of the two matters described above, SGiAreased approximately $516,000, or 4%, in fi204B as compared to fiscal 2012.
overall decrease is comprised of approximately ¥B®BB for the reversal of sales tax audit assessammtials estimated in fiscal 2012 -
were finalized at a lower amount in fiscal 2013$222,000 reduction in employee and director comatms and benefit expenses; ¢
smaller decreases in several other areas totalifg,800. These reductions are offset, by a $227@9@ase in sales and marketing expe
for the 2013 fiscal year.

Other income and expense for the year ended Jur2038, primarily consisted of a $267,928 of roaash gain for the change in the fair vi
(“FV™) of the Company’'s warrant liabilities. Theiprary factor affecting the change in fair valughie decrease in the Bla8choles valu
(“BSV”) of the warrants from June 30 2012 to Jurte 2013. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the Qompad a norcash gain ¢
$1,813,687 for the same warrant liabilities.

The fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 resulted impeme of $854,123 compared to a net loss of $528B for the fiscal year ended June
2012, an improvement of $6,065,361 between fiseary. After preferred dividends of $664,452 forheéiscal year, net income (lo:
applicable to common shareholders was $189,6715875,690) for the fiscal years ended 2013 arik®? 2fespectively. For the fiscal y:
ended June 30, 2013, net earnings per common d¥asie, and diluted were $0.01 and $0.01, respegticempared to the prior fiscal yt
net loss per common share (basic and diluted) L 8j.

Non-GAAP net income was $914,195 for fiscal 2013, cared to a noOIGAAP net loss of $3,820,925 for fiscal 2012. Marragat believe
that non-GAAP net income (loss), non-GAAP net ineo(toss) applicable to common shares and @&dP diluted earnings (loss)
common share are important measures of USAT’s basinManagement uses the aforementionedGPAP measures to monitor &
evaluate ongoing operating results and trends arghin an understanding of our comparative opeggterformance. We believe that th
non-GAAP financial measures serve as useful metricsotor management and investors because they endi#éen understanding of 1
longterm performance of our core business and fa@litamparisons of our operating results over metp®riods, and when taken toge
with the corresponding GAAP (United States’ GerlgrAtcepted Accounting Principlegnancial measures and our reconciliations, ent
investors’ overall understanding of our current &utdre financial performance.
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A reconciliation of net income (loss) to Non-GAABtincome (loss) for the years ended June 30, 36d3012 is as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2013 2012
Net income (loss $ 854,120 $ (5,211,23)
Non-GAAP adjustments
Operating expens¢
Selling, general and administrati

Proxy related cos 328,00( 2,229,001

CEO Separatio - 975,00(
Fair value of warrant adjustment (267,929 (1,813,68)
Non-GAAP net income (loss) $ 914,19' $ (3,820,92)
Net income (loss $ 854,120 $ (5,211,23)
Non-GAAP net income (loss $ 914,19' $ (3,820,92)
Cumulative preferred dividends (664,45.) (664,457
Net income (loss) applicable to common shi $ 189,67. $ (5,875,69)
Non-GAAP net income (loss) applicable to common shares $ 249,74. $ (4,485,37)
Net earnings (loss) per common sh- basic $ 0.01 $ (0.1¢)
Non-GAAP net earnings (loss) per common share - basic $ 0.01 $ (0.19
Weighted average number of common shares outsig 32,787,67 32,423,98
Net earnings (loss) per common sh- diluted $ 0.01 $ (0.1¢)
Non-GAAP net earnings (loss) per common share - dilute $ 0.01 $ (0.19
Diluted weighted average number of common sharéganding 33,613,34 32,423,98

As used herein, noBAAP net income (loss) represents GAAP net incofoss] excluding costs relating to the proxy contés¢ cost
associated with the separation of the former CE® amy adjustment for fair value of warrant liali@g. As used herein, ndBAAP ne
earnings (loss) per common share is calculated\bging non-GAAP net income (loss) applicable to common shhyethe weighted avera
number of shares outstanding, and where dilutetbstae required, adds back the preferred dividamzk the conversion of preferred sh
are accounted for in the diluted share count.
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Coynpad Adjusted EBITDA of $5,796,406. Reconciliatiohnet income (loss) to Adjust
EBITDA for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 28523 ifollows:

Year ended June 30

2013 2012
Net income (loss $ 854,120 $ (5,211,23)
Less interest incom (57,12)) (72,059
Plus interest expen: 157,20! 83,99:
Plus income tax expen 27,64¢ 12,59¢
Plus depreciation expen 3,837,17. 2,443,05:
Plus amortization expen: 742,40( 997,90(
Plus (gain)/loss for change in fair value of watrigabilities (267,929 (1,813,68)
Plus stoc-based compensatic 502,90 782,10(
Adjusted EBITDA income (loss) $ 5,796,40 $ (2,777,33)

As used herein, Adjusted EBITDA represents net rimeo(loss) before interest income, interest expeissmme taxes, depreciati
amortization, change in fair value of warrant llaigis, stockbased compensation expense, and impairment expenis¢angible assets. \
have excluded the non-operating item, change invidue of warrant liabilities, because it représemnoneash charge that is not relate:
the Company’s operations. We have excluded thecash- expenses, stoblased compensation, and impairment expense, asdtheo
reflect the cash-based operations of the Compadjusted EBITDA is a noiiGAAP financial measure which is not required bydefinec
under GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting PrincileThe presentation of this financial measureads intended to be considered
isolation or as a substitute for the financial nueas prepared and presented in accordance with GiaRding the net income or net los:
the Company or net cash used in operating acsvilanagement recognizes that ®AAP financial measures have limitations in thaty
do not reflect all of the items associated with @@mpanys net income or net loss as determined in accoedauithh GAAP, and are nol
substitute for or a measure of the Companyrofitability or net earnings. Adjusted EBITDA jisesented because we believe it is usef
investors as a measure of comparative operatirfgrpgance and liquidity, and because it is lessepisiale to variances in actual performa
resulting from depreciation and amortization and-nash charges for changes in fair value of waliabtilities and stocksased compensati
expense.
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Results for the year ended June 30, 2012 continaedemonstrate significant growth and improvementshe Companys operation:
Highlights of year over year improvements include:

Total revenue up 279

Recurring license and transaction fee revenue of;
New connections up 38%; ar

Gross profit dollars up 299

The growing ePort Connect service base of connestilvove the 42% increase in license and transafti® revenue. Revenue from lice
and transaction fees, which is fueled primarilynbgnthly ePort Connect®ervice fees and transaction processing fees, greyproximatel
$23 million for fiscal 2012 from $16 million fordcal 2011. These recurring revenues representedddétal revenue for the fiscal 2C
year.

License and transaction fee highlights for the ysated June 30, 2012 included:

e 45,000 additional net connections to the CompsmPort Connect service in fiscal 2012; Total cotet: service base to 164,00(
of June 30, 2012, compared to 119,000 as of Jun2@d, an increase of approximately 38% compaserbhnections at June :
2011,

e Increases in the number of smadlket, credit/debit transactions and dollars haddh the fiscal year of 43% each compared ti
same period a year ago; a

e  69% growth in ePort Connect customers, fueled BgA new customers in the 2012 fiscal year for 3@@omers at June 30, 20.

Revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 $29,017,243, consisting of $23,370,754 of lieemsd transactions fees and $5,64€
of equipment sales, compared to $22,868,789 fofishal year ended June 30, 2011, consisting of48%485 of license and transaction

and $6,426,304 of equipment sales. The increadetah revenue of $6,148,454, or 27%, was primadille to an increase in license

transaction fees of $6,928,269, or 42%, from therprear, and a decrease in equipment sales of 8I3%r 12%, from the prior year.

The increase in license and transaction fees wastauhe growth in ePort Connect service fees aadsaction dollar volume from t
increased number of connections to our ePort Cdrseuice. As of June 30, 2012, the Company hadoxppately 164,000 connections
the ePort Connect service as compared to approaiyn419,000 connections to the ePort Connect semiclune 30, 2011. During the y
ended June 30, 2012, the Company added approxin#g€00 connections to our network as comparegpproximately 37,000 connectic
during the year ended June 30, 2011. The JumpStagram units represented approximately 65% and 60fe&t connections added dut
the 2012 and 2011 fiscal years, respectively.

Pursuant to its agreements with customers, the @aypn addition to ePort Connection service fegsns transaction processing fees €
to a percentage of the dollar volume processechbyCtompany, which are included as licensing angs&etion processing revenues ir
Consolidated Statements of Operations. During ta gnded June 30, 2012, the Company processeaxapptely 103 million transactio
totaling approximately $171 million compared to apgmately 72 million transactions totaling appnmstely $120 million during the ye
ended June 30, 2011, an increase of approximaB8lyid the number and value of transactions processe

In addition, our customer base increased with apprately 1,350 new customers added to our eP@t@®nect service during the fiscal y
ended June 30, 2012, bringing the total numberueh scustomers to approximately 3,300 as of June28Q2. The Company adc
approximately 875 new customers in the year endeé 30, 2011. By comparison, the Company had appedgly 1,950 customers as
June 30, 2011, representing a 69% increase durmgadst twelve months. We count a customer as acastemer upon the signing of tt
ePort Connect service agreement. When a resellsrasg ePort, we count a customer as a new custopan the signing of the applica
services agreement with the customer.

The $779,815 decrease in equipment sales was b ofsiecreases of approximately $359,000 relate@Rort®products, approximate
$395,000 in Energy Miser products and approxima$2§,000 in other products. The $359,000 decreasdort products is attributable
$322,000 of activation fees on nISAT, third party devices and other activation gy performed in the 2011 fiscal year. Also cdmiting
to the decrease in ePort product sales were resaegerded in the 2011 fiscal year of $225,000 isk\support funding and approxima
$73,000 of revenue recognized under our May 2008esgent with a customer. These decreases werd bffse $261,000 increase in ef
product revenues attributable to increased actimafites on JumpsStart units and equipment salesd&ébrease in Energy Miser equiprr
sale revenue is due directly to fewer units soldnduthe year ended June 30, 2012 than duringehe gnded June 30, 2011.
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Cost of sales consisted of cost of services fene and transaction fee related costs of $15,8620d $11,651,138 and equipment cos
$3,743,226 and $3,468,993, for the year ended 30n2012 and 2011, respectively. The increasetal tost of sales of $3,936,061 was
to an increase in cost of services of $3,661,828 @m increase in equipment costs of $274,233. Theeése in cost of services \
predominantly related to increases in units coretbtd the network and increases in transactioradolln addition, approximately $316,(
of the $3,661,828 increase in cost of services atfghutable to increased debit card processindgscioeurred because of the signific
increase of interchange fees charged by Visa amstéviaard, which became effective on October 1, 20h& impact on margins causec
these increases in the second fiscal quarter didnmmact the subsequent quarters in fiscal 201thasvisa Agreement that went effect
October 14, 2011 essentially restored Visa delgrdamange rates to pre-October 1, 2011 levels duhia oneyear term of the agreement,
the Company ceased the acceptance of MasterCaitccdeds in midNovember 2011. Also contributing to the increaseast of services w
approximately $199,000 of costs for electronic camioation of software updates to connected ePorf$®. increase in equipment cc
related to the increased freightcosts of approximately $140,000 associated withVerizon enabled ePorts as well as slightly argtost
to manufacture the Verizon enabled ePorts.

Gross profit (“GP”)for the year ended June 30, 2012 was $9,961,05paa@d to GP of $7,748,658 for the previous fisegryan increase
$2,212,393, of which $3,266,441 is attributabldidense and transaction fees GP, offset by a deerefi$1,054,048 of equipment sales
The increase in GP dollars from license and traimadees was mainly generated by additional devicennected to our network. 1
decrease in GP from equipment sales is predomindo# to the fiscal 2011 revenue items mentionen/atand the additional costs incul
for freightin of the Verizon enabled ePorts. Overall margimserconsistent at 34%, while license and transad&ie margins increased fri
29% to 34%, offset by equipment margins having eieeed from 46% to 34%. License and transactiomfagins increased due itoprovec
efficiencies stemming from recent partnership agergs, a larger ePort Connect service base, asasladlving a larger number of JumpS
rental units with fees in the 2012 fiscal year usra year ago when a larger number of JumpStag bad a longer period before monthly
commenced. These improvements were offset by tHai@uhal costs incurred during the second fiscartgr for interchange fees descri
above, and electronic communication of device saftaupdates.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A&xpenses of $15,460,668 for the fiscal year endeé 30, 2012, increased by $4,030,0%
35%, from the prior fiscal year. The most signifitaomponents of the increase relate to expensahdgroxy contest and related litigat
and the Companyg’ Audit Committee investigation of postings con@ggrthe Company on an internet message board anceignation
the Company'’s former Chief Executive Officer.

Outside of the two matters described above, SG&keiased approximately $831,000 in fiscal 2012 aspeved to fiscal 2011. The ove
increase is comprised of approximately $769,00(additional employee and director compensation aedefit expenses, $311,000
increased travel, tradeshow, sales and advertisipgnses, and $194,000 in additional sales taypandlty expenses estimated as a resul
states revenue audit, offset by approximately $450,008xpense reductions. The expense reductions iac$dd0,000 less bad debt expe
in the 2012 fiscal year, as well as various otlust saving measures approximating $310,000, net.

The fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 resulted it #oms of $5,211,238 compared to a net loss ef36067 for the fiscal year ended June
2011, a decrease in net loss of $1,245,829 betfigeal years. After preferred dividends, net lopplecable to common shareholders
$5,875,690, or $.18 per share, compared to a sstdpplicable to common shareholders of $7,1226480.26 for the prior correspond
fiscal year.

35



For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Coynpad an Adjusted EBITDA loss of $2,777,338 whiohludes approximately $3,204,(
of cash expenses related to the proxy contest amdef CEO matters outlined in the above table. Reitiation of net loss to Adjust
EBITDA for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 28 Bk ifollows:

Year ended June 30

2012 2011
Net loss $ (5211,23) $ (6,457,06)
Less interest incom (72,059 (82,239
Plus interest expen: 83,99: 35,95:
Plus income tax expen 12,59¢ -
Plus depreciation expen 2,443,05: 1,553,97!
Plus amortization expen: 997,90( 1,034,401
Plus (less) change in fair value of warrant lidie$ (1,813,68) 815,13
Plus stoc-based compensatic 782,10( 356,86t
Plus intangible asset impairme - 581,90(
Adjusted EBITDA loss $ (2,777,33) $ (2,161,07)

As used herein, Adjusted EBITDA represents net rimeo(loss) before interest income, interest expemssmme taxes, depreciati
amortization, change in fair value of warrant llatais, stockbased compensation expense, and impairment expens¢angible assets. \
have excluded the non-operating item, change mvidue of warrant liabilities, because it reprasemnoneash charge that is not relate:
the Company’s operations. We have excluded thecash- expenses, stoblased compensation, and impairment expense, asdthéo
reflect the cash-based operations of the Compadjusted EBITDA is a noiiGAAP financial measure which is not required bydefinec
under GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Princi)leThe presentation of this financial measureds intended to be considered
isolation or as a substitute for the financial nueas prepared and presented in accordance with GAgRding the net income or net los:
the Company or net cash used in operating actvilanagement recognizes that ®AAP financial measures have limitations in thaty
do not reflect all of the items associated with @@mpany$ net income or net loss as determined in accoedasith GAAP, and are nol
substitute for or a measure of the Comparprofitability or net earnings. Adjusted EBITDA jisesented because we believe it is usef
investors as a measure of comparative operatirfgrpgance and liquidity, and because it is lessepisiale to variances in actual performa
resulting from depreciation and amortization and-nash charges for changes in fair value of waiiabtilities and stocksased compensati
expense.
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FISCAL QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 COMPARED TO FISCAL QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Results for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20h%nued to demonstrate significant growth andrmpments in the Compars/bperation
as compared to the fiscal quarter ended June 3@. 2ghlights of year over year improvements idelu

Total revenue up 239

Recurring license and transaction fee revenue &f;

ePort Connect service base up 1.

Gross profit dollars up 15%

GAAP net income of $1.7 million (includes $1.5llieh non-cash gain for change in fair value of warrantgnfra GAAP ne
loss of ($2.8) million (includes $170,000 noash charge for fair value of warrants and $2.dionilof proxy contest relatt
expenses); an

Revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 v@e6845842, consisting of $8,172,243 of license @adsactions fees and $1,512,59
equipment sales, compared to $7,902,846 for thetejuanded June 30, 2012, consisting of $6,382d¢#1Eense and transaction fees
$1,520,271 of equipment sales. The increase ihr@ianue of $1,781,996, or 23%, was primarily tuan increase in license and transa
fees of $1,789,668, or 28%, from the prior yearrtpraoffset by a decrease in equipment sales @7&7or 1%, from the same period in
prior year.

Revenue from license and transaction fees, whiptesented 84% of total revenue for the quarter @ddee 30, 2013, is fueled primarily
monthly ePort Connect® service fees and transagtiooessing fees. Highlights included:

e 18,000 net new connections to the ePort Connecicsgicompared to 16,000 net for the fourth quastdriscal 2012

e Increases in the number of smédlket, credit/debit transactions and dollars haddh the fourth quarter of 33% each comp
to the same period a year ago; i

e 525 more ePort Connect customers added in thehfourrter fiscal 2013, 17% more than the prior yearth quarter, for 5,0¢
customers at June 30, 20:

The increase in license and transaction fees wastaluhe growth in ePort Connect service fees amasaction dollars handled from
increased number of connections to our ePort Cdrseuice. As of June 30, 2013, the Company hadoxppately 214,000 connections
the ePort Connect service compared to approxima@y000 connections to the ePort Connect sergiad dune 30, 2012. During the qua
ended June 30, 2013, the Company added approximbgeD00 net connections to our network as compsweabproximately 16,000 r
connections during the quarter ended June 30, 2iicrease of approximately 13%. Connections é@depart of our JumpStart prog!
represented approximately 45% and 75% of net cdimmscadded during the fourth quarter of 2013 abitl?? respectively.

Pursuant to its agreements with customers, in iatdid ePort Connect service fees, the Companysdaansaction processing fees equal
percentage of the dollar volume processed by thregaay. During the quarter ended June 30, 2013 tmpany processed approximatel
million transactions totaling approximately $63 linih compared to approximately 27 million transans totaling approximately $47 milli
during the quarter ended June 30, 2012, an increfaapproximately 33% in both the number of tratisms and the value of transacti
processed.

New customers added to our el® Connect service during the quarter ended June BIB Btaled 525, bringing the total number of ¢
customers to approximately 5,050 as of June 303.20he Company added approximately 450 new cus®imethe quarter ended June
2012. By comparison, the Company had approxima8e3@0 customers as of June 30, 2012, representB@pmincrease during the p
twelve months. We count a customer as a new custapun the signing of their ePort Connect servigeeament. When a reseller sells
ePort, we count a customer as a hew customer ingosigning of the applicable services agreemert thie customer.

The $7,672 decrease in equipment sales was a ofsuliecrease of approximately $71,000 in EneriseMproducts offset by an increas:
$47,000 in ePort Products and $16,000 in otherymmsd The $71,000 decrease in Energy Miser prodsasectly attributable selling few
units during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 thanglthe quarter ended June 30, 2012.

Cost of sales consisted of cost of services fowoet and transaction fee related costs of $5,13dril $3,818,276 and equipment cos
$874,901 and $906,231, for the quarters ended 30n2013 and 2012, respectively. The increasetal tmst of sales of $1,289,523 was
to an increase in cost of services of $1,320,853ebby a decrease in equipment costs of $31,88@. increase in cost of services
predominantly related to increases in the numbewoahections to our ePort Connect service netwotkiacreases in transaction proces
volume. The decrease in equipment costs is atfidatto lower equipment revenues as well as lowarges to our inventory allowan:
during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 than dtinmguarter ended June 30, 2012.
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Gross profit (“GP”)for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 was $3,67@&%pared to GP of $3,178,339 for the previous spwading quarte
an increase of $492,473, of which $468,815 reptesanreased GP for license and transaction feédsaarincrease of $23,658 of equipn
sales GP. Overall gross profit margins decreasech 40% to 38% for the quarter ended June 30, 2Qk3td a decline in license
transaction fees margins to 37% from 40% in therpyear. However, this was partially offset by anrease in equipment sales margir
42% from 40% in the prior year. License and tratisadee margins decreased due to the timing ofciramencement of monthly fees
newly deployed units in the fourth quarter and rdiew allowances for potential customer credits@curring revenue charges. The incri
in equipment sales margins was mainly due to irs@@activation fees, which have no direct costsaated with them.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A&xpenses of $3,150,536 for the quarter ended Jun203 3, decreased $2,270,420, net or
from the same quarter in the prior fiscal year.luded in the $5,420,956 of SG&A expenses for thargu ended June 30, 2012 w
approximately $2.2 million of expenses for the praontest and related litigation. Exclusive of fmxy contest and litigation expens
SG&A decreased approximately $41,000 in fiscal 201@urth quarter as compared to the same quarttre fiscal 2012.

Other income and expense for the quarter ended3yr2013, mostly consisted of $1,517,384 of nash gain for the change in the fair vi
(“FV™) of the Company’'s warrant liabilities. Theiprary factor affecting the change in fair valughie decrease in the Bla8choles valu
(“BSV") of the warrants. For the quarter ended J80g 2012, the Company had noash charges of $169,755 related to the same v
liabilities.

Net income for the fourth quarter ended June 30320as $1,677,168 compared to a net loss of $808%pr the prior year quarter. As na
above, these results include a gain/(charge) &1¥1384 and ($169,755), for the quarters ended 30n2013 and 2012, respectively. For
quarter ended June 30, 2013, net earnings per cansimare, basic and diluted, were $.05 and $.0pentively, compared to the qual
ended June 30, 2012 net loss per common share @hassidiluted) of ($.09).

Non-GAAP net income improved to $159,784, from a @MAAP net loss of $373,850 for the quarters endate JB0, 2013 and 20!
respectively. Management believes that non-GAAPimaime (loss) and noBAAP diluted earnings (loss) per common share rafoitan
measures of USAT’s business. Management uses ¢henaéntioned noGAAP measures to monitor and evaluate ongoing t¢ipgraesult:
and trends and to gain an understanding of our eoatipe operating performance. We believe thatemessGAAP financial measures se
as useful metrics for our management and invediecsaiuse they enable a better understanding ofotigetérm performance of our cc
business and facilitate comparisons of our opegatésults over multiple periods, and when takeretiogr with the corresponding GA.
financial measures and our reconciliations, enhamaestors’ overall understanding of our currend &rture financial performance.
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Reconciliation of net income (loss) to Non-GAAP immetome (loss) for the quarters ended June 30, 288132012 is as follows:

Three months ended June

30,
2013 2012
Net income (loss $ 1,677,160 $ (2,772,60)
Non-GAAP adjustments
Operating expenst
Selling, general and administrati

Proxy related cos - 2,229,001
Fair value of warrant adjustment (1,517,38) 169,75!
Non-GAAP net income (loss) $ 159,78 $ (373,850
Net income (loss $ 1,677,160 $ (2,772,60)
Non-GAAP net income (loss $ 159,78 $ (373,85(
Cumulative preferred dividends - -
Net income (loss) applicable to common shi $ 1,677,160 $ (2,772,60)
Non-GAAP net income (loss) applicable to common shares $ 159,78: $ (373,850
Net earnings (loss) per common sh- basic $ 0.0t $ (0.09)
Non-GAAP net earnings (loss) per common share - basic $ 0.0C $ (0.07)
Weighted average number of common shares outsig 33,080,64 32,496,32
Net earnings (loss) per common sh- diluted $ 0.0t $ (0.09)
Non-GAAP net earnings (loss) per common share - dilute $ 0.0C $ (0.0
Diluted weighted average number of common sharéganding 34,115,44 32,496,32

As used herein, noGAAP net income (loss) represents GAAP net losdueieg costs relating to the proxy contest and adyistment fc
fair value of warrant liabilities. As used hereimgn-GAAP diluted earnings (loss) per common shsugalculated by dividing noBAAP ne
income (loss) applicable to common shares by thuedi weighted average number of shares outstanding

39



For the quarter ended June 30, 2013, the Compashyahadjusted EBITDA of $1,624,539. Reconciliatiohnet income (loss) to Adjust
EBITDA for the quarters ended June 30, 2013 an@ 28 4s follows:

Three months endec

June 30
2013 2012
Net income (loss $ 1,677,160 $ (2,772,60)
Less interest incom (4,217) (26,877
Plus interest expen: 47,80: 13,23}
Plus income tax expen 6,911 12,59¢
Plus depreciation expen 1,094,97 695,60¢
Plus amortization expen: 185,60( 222,10(
Plus (gain)/loss for change in fair value of watrigabilities (1,517,38) 169,75!
Plus (less) stock-based compensation 133,67- 271,30:
Adjusted EBITDA income (loss) $ 1,62453 $ (1,414,87)

As used herein, Adjusted EBITDA represents net rimeo(loss) before interest income, interest expeissmme taxes, depreciati
amortization, change in fair value of warrant lldalgis and stock-based compensation expense. We bgsluded the noaperating iten
change in fair value of warrant liabilities, becausrepresents a non-cash gain (charge) thattiseteted to the Compars/'operations. W
have excluded the non-cash expenses, stock-basggensation as it does not reflect the chabed operations of the Company. Adju
EBITDA is a nonGAAP financial measure which is not required bydefined under GAAP (Generally Accepted Accountimgéiples). Thi
presentation of this financial measure is not idézhto be considered in isolation or as a substit the financial measures prepared
presented in accordance with GAAP, including thieimeome or net loss of the Company or net casH irseperating activities. Managem
recognizes that non-GAAP financial measures hawédtions in that they do not reflect all of therits associated with the Compaaye
income or net loss as determined in accordance @&AP, and are not a substitute for or a measurth@fCompanys profitability or ne
earnings. Adjusted EBITDA is presented because slieve it is useful to investors as a measure affarative operating performance
liquidity, and because it is less susceptible tdaveces in actual performance resulting from deptemn and amortization and naast
charges for changes in fair value of warrant litib and stock-based compensation expense.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the year ended June 30, 2013, net cash probigexperating activities was $6,038,952 as a rasfuftet income of $854,123, naast
charges of $4,944,338 and net cash provided byliaege in operating assets and liabilities of $29D, Of the $4,944,338 of narast
charges, the most significant during fiscal yeat2@ere depreciation and amortization of assets,caarges for the vesting and issuanc
common stock for employee and director compensaiftset by the decrease in fair value of warraabilities. The cash provided by -
$240,491 change in the Compasgperating assets and liabilities was the redudeoreases in inventory and prepaid and othertsaasewe
as an increase in accounts payable, offset by @ase in accrued expenses and increased accodrigamce receivables.

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Compaeg $9,180,837 in investing activities of which $2(B94 related to the purchas¢
equipment for the JumpStart Program and $107,35Inétwork equipment. $18,908 related to proceedsfthe sale of property a
equipment.

The Company obtained net cash of $2,696,240 thréinghcing activities, $3,000,000 of which are petceeds from the Line of Credit ¢
cash proceeds of $432,229 from warrant exercidésetdy $614,937 related to repayment of debt 121,052 related to cancellation
common stock by our executive officers to satisiyoime tax liability due in connection with commdack awards.

We experienced losses from inception through June2812, with net income for the year ended June28@3. Our accumulated def

through June 30, 2013 is composed of cumulativeelamounting to approximately $198,300,000, prededividends converted to comn
stock of approximately $2,690,000, and chargesriedufor the open-market purchases of preferreckstb approximately $150,000.
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As a result of the continued growth in connectitm®ur ePort Connect service that has fueled temgtgrowth in recurring revenue fri
license and transaction fees and the substantf@owement in GP dollars, the operating activitiéshe business are now providing cas
fund operations of the Company.

Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended June 30, 2013 waositive $5,796,406 compared to an AdjustedrBBI loss of $2,777,338 for tl
prior fiscal year. The Company reports Adjusted HBA to reflect the liquidity of operations and a asere of operational cash flc
Adjusted EBITDA excludes significant narash charges such as depreciation, amortizatiamtarigibles, fair value warrant liability chan
and stock-based compensation from net income (l@¢s)believe that, provided there are no unusuahanticipated material novperatione
expenses, achieving positive Adjusted EBITDA igaimable, and will continue to increase, as oumeation base increases.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, cash providezbbyating activities was $6,038,952. The Compariewes it will continue to genere
positive cash flow from operations during the 20iséal year, as the Company adds connections tstiegibase of connections, provi
there are no material unanticipated or unusualap®rational events. The largest use of cash igPairts purchased for use in the Company’
JumpsStart Program. For the year ended June 30, 2 8ompany used cash of $9,092,394 in its JuanpBtogram.

The Company anticipated using the JumpStart Prodgoarapproximately 55% to 60% of its anticipated nennections in fiscal 2013 a
result of the potential diversification from theokk market, where many customers only require ouiclQConnect™ Web service. T
Company has efforts under way in sales, marketirgelopment and partnering efforts that are focusedecuring connections from soul
away from JumpsStart, such as QuickConnect Web amré@Port Mobile and direct sales of its ePort Wward device. However, since
actual percentage of total net connections fromp&gart during the year ended June 30, 2013 haveltigher than anticipated, and given
use of cash required by the JumpStart PrograntCtimepany may choose to adjust JumpStart levels dlifjnthe JumpStart Program, subj
to contractual obligations, to ensure our cashuess stay at levels deemed necessary in ordemntbthe ongoing operational requirem:
of the Company.

The Company has three sources of cash availatfientband grow the business: (1) cash on hand ofoappately $6 million at June &
2013; (2) the anticipated cash generated from ¢ipes and (3) $2 million available on the line akdit with Avidbank, provided v
continue to satisfy the various affirmative and ateg covenants set forth in the loan agreemenbfAkine 30, 2013 the Company obta
waivers from Avidbank for the default of two covets - Adjusted EBITDA and the minimum current ratifor the June 30, 2013 fist
quarter and entered into an amendment with Avidhahich modified future quarterly Adjusted EBITDA tighmarks. Although the line
credit matures on June 21, 2014, we anticipateviieawill be able to extend the maturity date oéliwf credit or be able to procure a new
of credit to replace the existing line of credit.

In addition to the above, as of June 30, 20130mpany had outstanding 2,148,753 common stockawerat an exercise price of $1.13
share expiring on December 31, 2013. So long a€tmepanys stock price remains above the exercise prickldf3, we anticipate tha
substantial portion of these warrants will be eisad providing us with additional cash resourcesmfo $2,428,091 by December 31, 2013.

During August 2013, at the request of a customerceased providing ePort Connect services for D0gfrt devices which the custol
had previously purchased from us. We believe thatcustomer made such a request as a result cliftemer developing its own prod
and service. We continue to provide ePort Connestices to this customer for additional ePort desithat were previously purchased f
us by the customer. The license and transactiondttgbutable to these continuing connections @ddve represented approximately 6¢
7% of our license and transaction fee revenuesigdiscal year 2013. As a result of our anticipageowth in connections during fiscal y
2014, we do not believe that these deactivatiofishave a material adverse effect on our busingéhse. customer represented 11%, 18%
25% of our license and transaction fee revenudgaglfiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Therefore, the Company believes its existing casth @ash equivalents and available cash resources &sne 30, 2013, would provi

sufficient funds through at least July 1, 2014 idev to meet its cash requirements, including patméits accrued expenses and paya
any cash resources to be utilized for the Jump$tagram, other anticipated capital expenditurad,the repayment of long-term debt.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
As of June 30, 2013, the Company had certain co@obligations due over a period of time as samized in the following table:

Payments due by perioc

Less Than More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Long-Term Debt Obligation $ 25,35¢ $ 16,90 $ 8,45: $ - $ =
Capital Lease Obligatior 374,12¢ 250,58t 123,53t - -
Operating Lease Obligatiol 1,223,65: 425,33 798,31! - -
Purchase Obligatior - - - - -
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected ¢

the Registrant’s Balance Sheet unde

GAAP - - - - -
Total $ 162313 $ 692,82¢ $ 930,30! $ - 3 -

| tem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk.
The Company’s exposure to market risks for interat&t changes is not significant. Interest rategolongterm debt are generally fixed ¢

its investments in cash equivalents are not sicgnifi. The Company has no exposure to market redlged to Available-fosale securitie
Market risks related to fluctuations of foreign i@ncies are not significant and the Company hadenivative instruments.
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R eport of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
USA Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of USA Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaseof June 30, 2013 and 2012,
the related consolidated statements of operatgreholderséquity, and cash flows for each of the three y&atke period ended June
2013. Our audits also included the financial staenhschedule of USA Technologies, Inc. listed émtl5(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsilgfithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresspamian on these financi
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversightulo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet anidibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimdugcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform an audit of itsriv@tkecontrol over financial reportir
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigranglit procedures that are appropriate it
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsimyternal control over financial reportii
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An auiibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosi
in the financial statements, assessing the acaauptiinciples used and significant estimates madmanagement, as well as evaluating
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeneferred to above presents fairly, in all matergspects, the financial position of U
Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Jun€@03 and 2012, and the results of their operatomstheir cash flows for each of the tt
years in the period ended June 30, 2013, in confpmwith U.S. generally accepted accounting pritesp Also, in our opinion, the relat
financial statement schedule, when consideredlatioa to the basic consolidated financial statetsi¢smken as a whole, presents fairly ir
material respects the information set forth therein

/sl McGladrey LLF
New York, NY
September 30, 2013
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USA Technologies, Inc.
C onsolidated Balance Sheets

June 30
2013 2012
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 5,981,000 $ 6,426,64!
Accounts receivable, less allowance for uncolléetdrcounts of $18,000 a$25,000, respectivel 2,620,68: 2,441,94.
Finance receivable 116,44 206,64
Inventory 1,823,61! 2,511,74i
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 184,33t 555,82:
Total current asse 10,726,07 12,142,80
Finance receivables, less current por 408,67+ 336,19¢
Property and equipment, r 17,240,06 11,800,10
Intangibles, ne 454,05: 1,196,45.
Goodwill 7,663,201 7,663,20!
Other assets 84,11° 80,88
Total assets $ 36,576,19 $ 33,219,65
Liabilities and shareholde’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 730124 $ 6,136,44
Accrued expense 1,468,18 3,342,451
Line of credit 3,000,001 -
Current obligations under long-term debt 247,15. 466,05¢
Total current liabilities 12,016,58 9,944,95!
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, less current porti 122,75« 262,27
Accrued expenses, less current por 366,78! 426,24
Deferred tax liabilities 40,24 12,59¢
Warrant liabilities 650,63¢ 918,56t
Total long-term liabilities 1,180,42; 1,619,68!
Total liabilities 13,197,00 11,564,63
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock, no par valt
Authorized shares- 1,800,000 Series A convertibddepred- Authorized shares- 900,000 Issued and
outstanding shar- 442,968 (liquidation preference of $16,026,004 $h8,361,552, respectivel 3,138,05! 3,138,05!
Common stock, no par value: Authorized shares-@000 Issued and outstanding shares- 33,284,2.
and 32,510,069, respective 221,383,37 220,513,32
Accumulated deficit (201,142,23) (201,996,36)
Total shareholders’ equity 23,379,19 21,655,02
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 36,576,19 $ 33,219,65

See accompanying notes.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
C onsolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended June :

2013 2012 2011

Revenues

License and transaction fe $ 30,044,42 $ 23,370,75 $ 16,442,48

Equipment sales 5,895,81! 5,646,48! 6,426,30:
Total revenue 35,940,24 29,017,24 22,868,78

Cost of service 18,219,94 15,312,96 11,651,13

Cost of equipment 3,623,68! 3,743,22! 3,468,99
Gross profit 14,096,61 9,961,05! 7,748,65!
Operating expense

Selling, general and administrati 12,068,56 15,460,66 11,430,61

Depreciation and amortizatic 1,314,12. 1,500,77! 1,424,36!

Impairment of intangible asset - - 581,90(
Total operating expenses 13,382,68 16,961,44 13,436,87
Operating income (lost 713,92! (7,000,39) (5,688,21)
Other income (expense

Interest incomt 57,12: 72,05¢ 82,23«

Interest expens (157,209 (83,999 (35,959

Change in fair value of warrant liabilities 267,92¢ 1,813,68 (815,13)
Total other income (expense), net 167,84« 1,801,75. (768,85()
Income (loss) before provision for income ta 881,76¢ (5,198,63) (6,457,06)
Provision for income taxes (27,64¢) (12,599 -
Net income (loss 854,12 (5,211,23) (6,457,06)
Cumulative preferred dividends (664,457 (664,457 (665,577
Net income (loss) applicable to common shi $ 189,67 $ (5,875,69) $ (7,122,64)
Net earnings (loss) per common sh- basic $ 0.01 $ (0.19) $ (0.26)
Weighted average number of common shares outsig 32,787,67 32,423,98 27,665,34
Net earnings (loss) per common sh- diluted $ 0.01 $ (0.1¢) $ (0.26)
Diluted weighted average number of common sharesganding 33,613,34 32,423,98 27,665,34

See accompanying notes.
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Balance, June 30, 20:

Issuance of common stock at $0.90 |
shareless issuance cost of $230,(
Issuance of common stock to Lincol
Park Capita

Issuance of common stock at $2.064
per share less the fair value of
warrants issued of $1,917,122 and
less cash issuance costs of $838,

Exercise of 376,355 warrants at $2.2
resulting in the issuance of commi
stock

Exercise of 497,367 warrants at $1.1
resulting in the issuance of commi
stock

Cashless exercise of 127,497 warrat
resulting in the issuance of commi
stock

Conversion of preferred stock into
common stocl

Conversion of $33,000 of preferred
dividends into common stoc!

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
vesting of shares granted under th
2008 Stock Incentive Ple

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
directors and vesting of
shares granted under the 2010 Stc
Incentive Plar

Issuance of common stock for
settlement of the Long-Term Equit
Incentive Program for Fiscal Year
2010

Retirement of common stot

Net loss

Balance, June 30, 2011

See accompanying notes.

USA Technologies, Inc.
C onsolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Series A
Convertible
Preferred Stoc Common Stocl Accumulated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Deficit Total
444 46¢ $ 3,148,67! 25,497,15 $209,958,55 $(190,295,05) $ 22,812,17
- - 261,95! 5,671 - 5,671
- - 150,00( - - -
- - 5,200,00!I 7,976,97. - 7,976,97.
- - 376,35! 827,98 - 827,98:
- - 497,36 562,02! - 562,02!
- - 83,47: - - -
(2,500 (20,620 15 10,62( - -
- - 33 33,00( (33,000 -
- - 20,747 10,20¢ - 10,20¢
- - 109,91¢ 292,26 - 292,26
- - 86,34 97,56¢ - 97,56¢
- - (2,217 (2,26)) - (2,267)
(6,457,06) (6,457,06)
442 96¢ 3,138,05! 32,281,14 219,772,59 (196,785,12) 26,125,53

F-4



Exercise of 4,550 warrants at $2.20
resulting in issuance of common
stock

Cashless exercise of 2,767 warrants
resulting in issuance of common
stock

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
directors and vesting of shares unc
the 2010 Stock Incentive Pl

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
directors and vesting of shares unc
the 2011 Stock Incentive Pl

Vesting of shares under the 2012 St
Incentive Plar

Retirement of common stot

Net loss

Balance, June 30, 2012

Exercise of 382,503 warrants at $1.1
resulting in issuance of common
stock

Cashless exercise of 36,186 warrant
resulting in issuance of common
stock

Warrants issued in conjunction with
Line of Credit Amendmen

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
directors and vesting of shares unc
the 2010 Stock Incentive Pl

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
directors and vesting of shares unc
the 2011 Stock Incentive Pl

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
directors and vesting of shares unc
the 2012 Stock Incentive Pl

Retirement of common stox

Net Income

Balance, June 30, 2013

See accompanying notes.

USA Technologies, Inc
Consolidated Statements of Shareholde’ Equity (Continued)

Series A
Convertible
Preferred Stoc Common Stocl Accumulated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Deficit Total
- - 4,55( 10,01( - 10,01(
- - 99C - - -
- - 120,47: 248,85: - 248,85:
- - 141,66¢ 335,63t - 335,63¢
- - - 197,61 - 197,61
- - (38,749 (51,38) - (51,38)
- - - - (5,211,23) (5,211,23)
442 96¢ 3,138,05! 32,510,06 220,513,32 (201,996,36) 21,655,02
- - 382,50: 432,22¢ - 432,22¢
- - 17,094 - - -
- - - 55,96: - 55,96:
- - 62,94 68,72 - 68,72:¢
- - 96,66¢ 157,64! - 157,64!
- - 279,80¢ 276,53¢ - 276,53¢
- - (64,84 (121,057 - (121,05)
- - - = 854,12: 854,12:
442 96¢ $ 3,138,05! 33,284,23 $221,383,37 $(201,142,23) $ 23,379,19
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USA Technologies, Inc
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

Year ended June :

2013

2012

2011

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss $ 854,12
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to meshcprovided by (used in) operating
activities:
Charges incurred in connection with the vestingiaadance of common stock for

$ (5211,23) $ (6,457,06)

employee and director compensat 502,90° 782,10( 302,47
Charges incurred in connection with the L-term Equity Incentive Pla - - 54,39¢
(Gain) Loss on disposal of property and equipn (20,349 134,35( 116,82¢
Non-cash interest and amortization of debt disct 53,86 - -
Bad debt expense (recoveries), 68,61¢ (48,270) 92,02¢
Depreciatior 3,837,17. 2,443,05 1,553,97!
Amortization 742,40( 997,90( 1,034,401
Impairment of intangible ass - - 581,90(
Change in fair value of warrant liabiliti (267,929 (1,813,68) 815,13:
Provision for deferred tax liabilit 27,64¢ 12,59¢ -
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (247,359 (758,959 321,67
Finance receivable 17,72¢ (61,460 100,40¢
Inventory 716,47( 158,58« (36,36))
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 503,93 431,27t 115,75¢
Accounts payabl 1,164,80. 498,08: 1,067,63.
Accrued expenses (1,915,09) 2,513,89! (571,39)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 6,038,95: 78,23¢ (908,227
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipm (107,35) (478,144 (291,39()
Purchase of property for rental progr (9,092,39) (5,754,671 (4,263,30)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 18,90¢ - -
Net cash used in investing activiti (9,180,83) (6,232,819 (4,554,69)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net proceeds from the issuance (retirement) of comstock andexercise of common

stock warrant: 311,17 (41,377 11,287,51
Proceeds from line of credit, net of repayme 3,000,001 - -
Repayment of long-term debt (614,93) (368,91°) (437,409
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 2,696,24! (410,289 10,850,10
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (445,649 (6,564,861 5,387,18
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,426,64! 12,991,51 7,604,32
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 5,981,000 $ 6,426,64° $ 12,991,51
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informa:

Cash paid for interest $ 118,93: $ 38,89. $ 37,96
Fair value of warrants at issuance $ - 3 - $ 191712
Depreciation expense allocated to cost of sales $ 3,26545 $ 1,940,17¢ $ 1,164,01
Prepaid interest from issuance of warrants for debts $ 55,96: $ - 3 s
Reclass of rental program property to inventory $ 28,337 $ - $ -
Prepaid items financed with debt $ 133,58¢ $ 95,26: $ 94,31
Equipment and software acquired under capital lease $ 124917 $ 49595 $ -
Equipment and software financed with long-term debt $ - $  252,96¢ $ =
Disposal of property and equipment $ 98,92¢ $ 652,09 $ 283,80:
Conversion of convertible preferred stock to comrstmtk $ - 3 - 3 (10,620
Conversion of cumulative preferred dividends to omn stock $ - 8 - 8 (33,000




See accompanying notes.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
N otes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. BUSINESS

USA Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”, “We” or “Olrwas incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsy&vamiJanuary 1992 a
provides wireless networking, cashless transactiasset monitoring and other valadded services principally to the small ticket tevadec
retail markets. Our ePo® technology can be installed and/or embedded indoyelay devices such as vending machines, a vardtiosks
and amusement and arcade machines and smartphanesr\wePort Mobile™ solution. Our associated servePort Conne® , is a PCI-
compliant, comprehensive service that includes Kiiep credit/debit card processing and supporhstoner engagement services, as we
telemetry and machine-to-machine (“M2Ms&rvices, including the ability to remotely monjtoontrol and report on the results of distribi
assets containing our electronic payment solutibnaddition, the Company provides energy managémenucts, such as its VendingMi
® and CoolerMiser™, which reduce energy consumptiorending machines and coolers.

While strategies to drive growth have resulted éh income of $854,123 for the year ended June @03,2the Company had incurred los
from its inception through June 30, 2012. The inipgat net income of future changes to the fair vali®ur warrant liabilities, which
subject to secondary market conditions, is notaealsly predictable. The Compangyability to meet its future obligations is depemidepor
the success of its products and services in th&etlace and the available capital resources. thtilCompanys products and services
generate sufficient annual revenues, the Compaty®irequired to use its cash and cash equivatemtsand, and its line of credit (see N
7), and may raise capital to meet its cash flowireqents including the issuance of Common Stocktha exercise of outstanding Comr
Stock warrants.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of the Company and its wholiyred subsidiaries, Stitch Netwo
Corporation (“Stitch”) and USAT Capital Corp LLCYSAT Capital”). All significant intercompany accounts and transatdi have bec
eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedaamting principles requires managen
to make estimates and assumptions that affectrtfuaiats reported in the consolidated financial statets and accompanying notes. Ac
results could differ from those estimates.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents represent all highly liquid inwestts with original maturities of three months esd. Cash equivalents are comprise
money market funds. The Company maintains its aablank deposit accounts, which may exceed fedeirsdured limits at times.

Included in cash and cash equivalents at June®® and 2012 was $0, of cash received by the Coynfeairiransaction processing servi
which is payable to our customers. Included in aot®receivable are amounts for transactions psecewith our card processers for wit
cash has not been received by the Company andditlin accounts payable are amounts for transacpocessed with our card proces
and due to our customers, which are recorded rfeesfdue to the Company. Generally, contractualdeequire us to remit amounts owe
our customers on a weekly basis.

F-7



USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABL

Accounts receivable are reported at their outstandnpaid principal balances reduced by an allowdoc doubtful accounts. The Compi
estimates doubtful accounts for accounts receivatefinance receivables based on historical batsdéctors related to specific customers’
ability to pay and current economic trends. The @any writes off accounts receivable against thenalhce when management determ
the balance is uncollectible and the Company ceadection efforts. Management believes that th@aence accrued is adequate to pro

for its estimated credit losses.

FINANCE RECEIVABLE

The Company offers extended payment terms to cectzstomers for equipment sales under its Quickt Btagram. In accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accountingh8#ads Codification® (*ASC”) Topic 840, “Leasesigreements under the Quick S
Program qualify for saletype lease accounting. Accordingly, the future mimm lease payments are classified as finance r@gew in th
Companys consolidated balance sheets. Notes receival@eick Start leases are generally for a 36 or 60ttmt@rm. Finance receivables
carried at their contractual amount and chargedag€inst the allowance for credit losses when mamagt determines that recover
unlikely and the Company ceases collection effdrte Company recognizes a portion of the note asdgayments as interest income ir
accompanying consolidated financial statementschaséahe effective interest rate method.

INVENTORY

Inventory consists of finished goods and packagiragerials. The Comparg/inventory is stated at the lower of cost (averemg basis)
market.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMEN"

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBYued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2010*@&ir Value Measurements ¢
Disclosures (“Topic 820”): Improving Disclosuresoaib Fair Value Measurements.” ASU 20@6-amends certain disclosure requiremer
Subtopic 820t0. This ASU provides additional disclosures fansfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 and for agtivi Level 3. This ASU als
clarifies certain other existing disclosure requients including level of desegregation and diselesaround inputs and valuation techniques.

The Companys financial assets and liabilities are measuredguisiputs from the three levels of the fair valier&rchy. The three levels i
as follows:

Level 1-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active niarfiee identical assets or liabilities that the Gm@my has the ability to access at
measurement date.

Level 2-Inputs are other than quoted prices included withgxel 1 that are observable for the asset orlitgpeither directly or indirectly
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similasets and liabilities in active markets, quotedgsitor identical or similar assets or liabili
in markets that are not active, inputs other thaoted prices that are observable for the asséalaility (i.e., interest rates, yield curves, g
and inputs that are derived principally from orroborated by observable market data by correladioother means (market corrobore
inputs).

Level 3- Inputs are unobservable and reflect then@any’s assumptions that market participants would uggiaing the asset or liability. Tl
Company develops these inputs based on the bestriafion available.

The Companys financial instruments, principally cash equivédemccounts receivable, finance receivables, ptepaenses and other ass
accounts payable and accrued expenses, are carriedt which approximates fair value due to thartsierm maturity of these instrumer
The fair value of the Company’s obligations undisr longterm debt and credit agreements approximates tiagiying value as su
instruments are at market rates currently availadotae Company.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMEN
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Ryopad equipment are depreciated on the strdightbasis over the estimated useful |

of the related assets. Leasehold improvementsraogtized on the straighine basis over the lesser of the estimated udiédubf the asset «
the respective lease term.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over failuesf the net assets purchased in acquisitions. Gbmpany accounts for goodwill
accordance with ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwildladther”.Under ASC 350, goodwill is not amortized to earsingut instead is subject
periodic testing for impairment. In September 20thg, FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08 IntangibleGeodwill and Other: Testing Goodw
for Impairment, which amended guidance to allow@wnmpany to first assess qualitative factors temheine if it is necessary to perform
two-step quantitative impairment test. If after thisessment the Company determines that it is not ikalg than not that the fair value o
reporting unit is less than its carrying amoungntithe twostep impairment test is unnecessary. If after #asessment the Comp:i
determines that it is more likely than not that thie value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgang amount, than the Company will perfc
the first step of the twetep impairment test. The first step screens feemi@l impairment, while the second step meastiresamount ¢
impairment. The Company uses a quantitative metimatljding a discounted cash flow analysis to catethe first step in this process.
also give consideration to our market capitalizatidesting for impairment is to be done at leastuafly and at other times if events
circumstances arise that indicate that impairmeay hrave occurred. The Company has selected A@d its annual test date. The Comg
has concluded there has been no impairment of gtiabaa result of its testing on April 1, 2013, WA, 2012, and April 1, 2011.

The Company trademarks with an indefinite econdifécare not being amortized. The trademarks, nbject to amortization, are relatec
the miser asset group and consist of the followtnaglemarks: 1) VendingMiser, 2) CoolerMiser, 3) gMiser and 4) SnackMiser. T
Company tests indefinite-lived intangible assetsrfgpairment using a twetep process. The first step screens for potantjgdirment, whili
the second step measures the amount of impairffieatCompany uses a relief from royalty analysisdmplete the first step in this proce
Testing for impairment is to be done at least alipaad at other times if events or circumstanagseahat indicate that impairment may h
occurred. The Company has selected April 1 amitsial test date for its indefinitared intangible assets. There was no impairmepeage
recorded during the fiscal years ended June 303 20 2012. In fiscal 2011 the Company concludestettwas an impairment of
indefinitedived trademarks as a result of its testing andnded a $581,900 impairment expense in the fourtrtgr of the fiscal year enc
June 30, 2011 (see Note 5).

Patents and trademarks, with an estimated econlifemi@re carried at cost less accumulated amaitizawhich is calculated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated economic life. Twmpany reviews intangibles, subject to amortizatfor impairment whenever events
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargimgunt may not be recoverable. An asset is coregide be impaired when the sum of
undiscounted future net cash flows resulting fréwa tise of the asset and its eventual disposititgsssthan its carrying amount. The ami

of the impairment loss, if any, is measured adifference between the net book value of the amseits estimated fair value. As of June
2013 and 2012, the Company has concluded theredwasno impairment of its patents or trademarkisishsubject to amortization.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSE’

In accordance with ASC 360, “Impairment or Dispasial ong-Lived Assets”, the Company reviews itsgdived assets whenever event:
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgingunt of such assets may not be recoverablee l€arrying amount of an asset or gt
of assets exceeds its net realizable value, thet agls be written down to its fair value. In theqod when the plan of sale criteria of ASC
are met, londived assets are reported as held for sale, degggi@eiand amortization cease, and the assets poeted at the lower of carryi
value or fair value less costs to sell. The Complaay concluded that the carrying amount of ltwgd assets is recoverable as of June
2013 and 2012.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that subject the Company torecentration of credit risk consist principalffiyaash and cash equivalents and accc
and finance receivables. The Company maintains @aditash equivalents with various financial in$itins. Approximately 41% and 46%
the Company'’s trade accounts and finance receisaildune 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, wereertrated with one and two customer
(s), respectively. Approximately 37%, 43%, and 4&¥tthe Companys license and transaction processing revenue$éoydars ended Ju
30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, were cdraten with two customers26%, 25%, and 23%, respectively, with one; and 11885
and 25%, respectively, with another. There wasareentration of equipment sales revenue for thesyeaded June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2
The Company’s customers are principally locatetheUnited States.

F-9



USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE RECOGNITIO!

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognizetherierms of freight-otvoard shipping point. Activation fee revenue isogrized whe
the Companys cashless payment device is initially activateduge on the Company network. Transaction procgggwenue is recogniz
upon the usage of the Company’s cashless paymehteamirol network. License fees for access to teen@anys devices and netwc
services are recognized on a monthly basis. Ircades, revenue is only recognized when persuasidenee of an arrangement exi
delivery has occurred or services have been reddéhne price is fixed and determinable, and cabectof the resulting receivable
reasonably assured. The Company estimates an al@dar product returns at the date of sale.

EQUIPMENT RENTAI

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Compamynamced a rental program, the JumpStart Progranm{$tart”),for its ePort device
The JumpStart terms are typically 36 months andcaneellable with sixty days written notice. In axtance with ASC 840, “Leaseshe
Company classifies the rental agreements as opgrkases. For the years ended June 30, 2013, 2622011, there was approxima
$806,000, $607,000, and $597,000, respectivelactfation fee revenue related to JumpStart equipnmeluded in equipment sales in
Consolidated Statements of Operations. There veasagdproximately $10,193,000, $6,074,000, and $200® of service fee revenue rele
to JumpStart equipment included in license andstaation fees in the Consolidated Statements of @ipess for the years ended June
2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively. Cost for thepktart revenues, which consists of depreciatiqgeege on the JumpStart equipm
approximated $3,171,000, $1,740,000, and $933,00thé years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2€4dectively, and was included in ¢
of services in the Consolidated Statements of Qipera At June 30, 2013 and 2012, approximately5,835,000 and $9,793,0
respectively, of ePort equipment utilized by theng&tart Program was included in property and egeignmet on the Consolidated Bala
Sheet (see Note 4).

WARRANTY COSTS

The Company generally warrants its products for tnthree years. Warranty costs are estimated ecatded at the time of sale base«
historical warranty experience, if available. Theests are reviewed and adjusted, if necessarydieally throughout the year.

SHIPPING AND HANDLING

Shipping and handling fees billed to our customarsonnection with sales are recorded as revenhe. cbsts incurred for shipping ¢
handling of our product are recorded as cost @ssal

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENS

Research and development expenses are expensetlaed. Research and development expenses, wigidhcduded in selling, general ¢
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Stattstaf Operations, were approximately $901,000033,000, and $997,000, for the ye
ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respecti®elyresearch and development initiatives focusdutirg features and functionality to «
system solutions through the development and atibn of our processing and reporting network ag technology.

ACCOUNTING FOR EQUITY AWARI

In accordance with ASC 718 the cost of employeeises received in exchange for an award of equisyruments is based on the grdate
fair value of the award and allocated over theinggteriod of the award.

The Company recorded stock compensation expen$d8#,740, $584,487, and $302,471 related to comshock grants and vesting
shares previously granted to employees and dieatoring the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, @hdl, 2espectively. These exper
exclude the Performance Share Plans for the 20832842 fiscal years (“2013 Plan” and the “2012 Plaand the Long¥erm Equit
Incentive Program (“LTIP” or the “LTIP Program”) eering the Company’s executive officers.

On September 5, 2012, at the recommendation o€tdmpensation Committee, the board of directors &dbfhe 2013 Plan. The Compi
recorded expense of $19,167 for the year ended 3un2013 for the award earned by the Compaeyecutive officers under the 2013 F
On September 15, 2011, at the recommendation ofCimpensation Committee, the board of directorsptaib the “2012 Plan"The
Company recorded expense of $197,613 for the yededceJune 30, 2012 for the award earned by the @oygppexecutive officers under 1
2012 Plan. The Company recorded stock compenseatipense of $54,395 and $43,171 related to thengesfishares and the change in
value of the shares awarded under the LTIP Progiaing the year ended June 30, 2011 (see NotdHe)ast year of the LTIP Program.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
ACCOUNTING FOR EQUITY AWARDS (CONTINUE

There were no common stock options granted, vestedcorded as expense during the years ended3yr2013, 2012 and 2011. Dur
each of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 ahd, 212,333 and 3,000 common stock options, withr@se prices of $7.50 and $8.
respectively, expired unexercised. As of June B@32there were no common stock options outstanding

INCOME TAXES

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC 7A0¢ounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxesyhich provides detailed guidance
the financial statement recognition, measuremedtdisclosure of uncertain tax positions recognireithe financial statements. Tax positi
must meet a “more-likely-than-notecognition threshold at the effective date to beognized upon the adoption of ASC 740 an
subsequent periods. Upon the adoption of ASC #,Gompany had no unrecognized tax benefits. Nmlitias have been recorded
uncertain tax positions.

Income taxes are computed using the asset anditiiaimiethod of accounting. Under the asset andilitglmethod, a deferred tax asse
liability is recognized for estimated future taxXeefts attributable to temporary differences andytarwards. The measurement of defe
income tax assets is adjusted by a valuation alio@aif necessary, to recognize future tax benefily to the extent, based on avail
evidence it is more likely than not such benefiil be realized. The Company recognizes interedtanalties, if any, related to uncertain
positions in selling, general and administrativpenses. No interest or penalties related to urinetda positions were accrued or incui
during the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, antl 201

The Company files income tax returns in the UniBdtes federal jurisdiction and various state glicisons. The tax years ended June
2010 through June 30, 2013 remain open to exaromdy taxing jurisdictions to which the Company aubject. As of June 30, 2013,
Company did not have any income tax examinationsadcess.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHA

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividgme (loss) applicable to common shares by te@hted average common sh:
outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings parshs calculated by dividing income (loss) apflleato common shares by the weig}
average common shares outstanding for the yeartipdusffect of potential common shares unless sfiigdct is antidilutive. For the fisce
year ended June 30, 2013 exercise of 825,673 giaokhase warrants was assumed to calculate thehtedigaverage common she
outstanding for the year. Exercise of stock purehaarrants (5,212,955) or the conversion of prefkstock (85,847) or cumulative prefel
dividends (11,596) was not assumed during thelfigear ended June 30, 2013 because the result vilsublthtidilutive. For the fiscal ye:
ended June 30, 2012 no exercise of stock optid’838); or stock purchase warrants (8,045,619heconversion of preferred stock (4,4
or cumulative preferred dividends (10,932) was as=iiduring the because the result would bedihtiive. For the fiscal year ended June
2011 no exercise of stock options (90,666); orlsfparchase warrants (15,567,199); or the conversigmeferred stock (4,430) or cumulal
preferred dividends (10,267) was assumed durindishel year ended June 30, 2011 because the resultl be anti-dilutive.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUCEMEN

The Company does not believe that the followingen¢caccounting pronouncements or any other recésslyed, but not yet effecti
accounting standards will have a material effecthrenCompany’s consolidated financial positionutessof operations, or cash flows.

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Stassl&oard issued ASU 2011-08 IntangibleSeedwill and Other (Topic 350): Testi
Goodwill for Impairment. This is effective for tl@mpany beginning with the fiscal year ended Juhe€013.

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Stamsl@dard issued ASU 2011t Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures abousedtific
Assets and Liabilities. This will be effective filhre Company beginning with the fiscal year endimgeJ30, 2014.

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting StansldBdard issued ASU 201112 Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral @
Effective Date for Amendments to the PresentatibrReclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated @tfComprehensive Income
Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05. Thisfiscéfze for the Company at the beginning of thedisyear ended June 30, 2013.

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardsamfoissued ASU 2012-02 Intangible§eodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testi
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairmefitis will be effective for the Company beginninglwihe fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.
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3. FINANCE RECEIVABLES

USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Finance Receivables consist of the following:

June 30
2013 2012
Total finance receivable $ 525,11t $ 542,84
Less current portion 116,44 206,64¢
Non-current portion of finance
receivables $ 408,67: $ 336,19¢

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, there was no allogvéorccredit losses of finance receivables. AsGoenpany collects monthly payment:
the receivables from the customers’ transactiond$uhe risk of loss was determined to be remote.

Credit Quality Indicator:
As of June 30, 201

Credit risk profile based on payment activi

Leases
Performing $ 525,11
Nonperforming -
Total $ 525,11¢

Age Analysis of Past Due Finance Receiva
As of June 30, 201

31-60 61-90 Greater tha Total

Days Past Days Past 90 Days  Total Past Finance
Due Due Past Due Due Current  Receivable
Leases $ - $ 814 $ - $ 814 $ 524,30 $§ 525,11¢
Total $ - $ 814 $ - $ 814 $§ 524,30: $§ 525,11¢

Age Analysis of Past Due Finance Receiva
As of June 30, 201

31-60 61-90 Greater tha Total

Days Past Days Past 90 Days  Total Past Finance
Due Due Past Due Due Current  Receivable
Leases $ - $ 2057 $ 18,85f § 20,91 $ 521,93' $§ 542,84
Total $ - $ 2057 $ 18,85f § 20,91 $ 521,93! $ 542,84
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USA Technologies, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, at cost, consist of tHeviahg:

Computer equipment and purchased softy
Property and equipment used for Rental Prog
Furniture and equipme

Leasehold improvemen

Less accumulated depreciation

June 30
Useful
Lives 2013 2012
3-7years $ 4,688,10. $ 4,682,27
5 years 21,574,22 12,523,25
3-7 years 693,55 805,07"
Lesser o
life or lease terr 539,62¢ 465,58’
27,495,51 18,476,19
(10,255,44) (6,676,08)

$ 17,240,06 $ 11,800,10

Assets under capital lease totaled approximatel@a&000 and $1,863,000 as of June 30, 2013 an@, 2@%pectively. Capital lee
amortization of approximately $265,000, $189,00@ $277,000, is included in depreciation expenséhie years ended June 30, 2013, 2

and 2011, respectively.

ePort equipment utilized by the JumpStart Prograndéntified as Property and equipment used fort®dProgram in the above tat
Accumulated depreciation attributable to the Priypand equipment used for Rental Program is appratély $5,889,000 and $2,731,00I
of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively and isided in accumulated depreciation for the respegiags in the above table.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Amortization expense relating to all acquired igibfe assets was approximately $742,000, $998 &0 $1,034,000 during each of the y
ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectiVély. intangible asset balance and related accundukatgortization consisted of 1

following:

Intangible asset:

Trademarks
Patents

Total

Intangible asset:

Trademarks
Patents
Total

June 30, 201
Gross
Carrying Accumulatec  Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Value
$ 1,482,100 $ (1,050,00) $ 432,10(
9,294,001 (9,272,04) 21,95:
$ 10,776,210 $ (10,322,04) $ 454,05!
June 30, 201
Gross
Carrying Accumulatec  Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Value
$ 1,482,100 $ (1,050,00) $ 432,10(
9,294,001 (8,529,64) 764,35:
$ 10,776,100 $ (9,579,64) $ 1,196,45:
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Company’s test for impairment of its indefiditeed trademarks consists of the trademarks: 1) dwegMiser, 2) CoolerMiser,
PlugMiser and 4) SnackMiser. As a result of itditgsin fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 26&2Qompany determined that
impairment had occurred. In the testing in fiscahly2011, the Company determined that the sumekeitpected discounted cash fl
attributable to the trademarks was less than its/icgy value of $1,014,000, and that an impairmerite-down was required. The prim:
driver behind the decrease in the value was a dser@n the revenue expectations for the tradenfaoks the time the trademarks w
acquired in July 2003 to when the impairment asseas was prepared. Accordingly, in fiscal year 2abh& Company performed a valuai
of the trademarls fair value with the assistance of an independahtation specialist. The fair value of the tradetsavas determined by
method known as “relief from royaltyih which the fair value is determined by refereteéhe amount of royalty income the intangible vad
generate if it were licensed in an arm’s-lengtinseection. The essential assumptions in a valuaiean income approach are as follows:

The related dollar sales volurr

The percentage royalty on sal

The adjustment for taxe

The remaining useful economic lif

The percentage return on investment; ¢
The tax amortization benef

During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year endeshe 30, 2011, the fair value of the trademarks determined to be $432,100. T
assessment resulted in an impairment write-dowimduhe fourth fiscal quarter of $581,900, whichrisluded in Impairment of intangibl
asset” in the Consolidated Statement of Operafionthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

The trademark described above, is not relateda@thmpany’s core operations consisting of its eRoeless, cashless products and services
At June 30, 2013, the expected amortization ofiftengible assets is as follows: approximately 82a,in fiscal year 2014 and $0 therea
The weighted average useful life of these amortintghgible assets is approximately one month a¢ B0, 2013. At June 30, 2013 and 2
$432,100 of trademarks has an indefinite life anih¢luded in the intangible assets tables above.

6. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

June 30
2013 2012
Accrued compensation and related sales commis $ 583,71( $ 767,92¢
Accrued professional fe¢ 165,44« 482,66¢
Accrued taxes and filing fet 253,52 663,07¢
Advanced customer billing 346,86¢ 311,76
Accrued proxy contest and litigation co - 992,52(
Accrued ren 226,58: 278,86:
Accrued other 258,83 271,88(

$ 1,834,960 $ 3,768,69

7. LINE OF CREDIT

On July 10, 2012, the Company entered into a Laath $ecurity Agreement and other ancillary documétiis “Loan Documents”jvith
Avidbank Corporate Finance, a division of Avidbdttke “Bank”), providing for a secured as$etsed revolving line of credit in an amour
up to $3 million (the “Line of Credit”)The Company intends to use advances under the dfirigredit towards the financing of grov
initiatives like its JumpStart Program and otherkimg capital needs
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

7. LINE OF CREDIT (CONTINUED)

The Loan Documents provide that the aggregate atafuadvances under the Line of Credit shall nateed the lesser of (i) $3.0 million,
(i) 75% of eligible accounts receivable as defimedhe Loan Documents plus 80% of the prior twonths transaction processing rever
and networking service fees as defined in the Lbaouments, provided that the amounts advanced oouat of such processing reven
and service fees shall not exceed $2,000,000 witheuBank's prior consent, after the First Amendtentered into on January 2, 2013

As a condition of the Bank entering into the Fidsbhendment, the Company issued to the Bank wartanpsirchase up to 45,000 share
common stock of the Company. The warrants are eadie at any time prior to December 31, 2017 agxarcise price of $2.10 per shi
Upon the issuance of the 45,000 shares of comnumk,sthe fair value of the warrants is $55,962 gsanBlack Scholes model, which v
recorded as prepaid interest and included in o#issets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, anding amortized as nocash intere:
expense over the remaining term of the Line of €@slamended in January 2013. Nmarsh interest of $53,867 has been recognized &
year ended June 30, 20:

The outstanding balance of the amounts advancedruhd Line of Credit will bear interest at 2% abdtie prime rate as publishedTine
Wall Street Journadr 5% whichever is higher. Interest is payableh®y€ompany to the Bank on a monthly basis, provitted the minimur
interest payable by the Company to the Bank wisipeet to each six month period shall be $20,000.

The Line of Credit and the Company’s obligationglemthe Loan Documents are secured by substanadlllgf the Companyg asset
including its intellectual property. The term oéthine of Credit is one year. At the time of matwall outstanding advances under the Lin
Credit as well as any unpaid interest is due anghlpla. Prior to maturity of the Line of Credit, t@®mpany may prepay amounts due u
the Line of Credit without penalty, and subjecthe terms of the Loan Documents, may re-borrowsargh amounts.

On April 2, 2013, the Company and the Bank, enténéol a Second Amendment (the “Second Amendmeot*he Loan and Secur
Agreement. The Second Amendment provided a chantfeetdefinition of Adjusted EBITDA for covenantlcalations for the fiscal quarte
ending through March 31, 2014.

On April 15, 2013, the Company and the Bank, extérmd a Third Amendment (the “Third Amendment”)tte Loan and Security
Agreement. The Third Amendment provides that, amathgr things, the aggregate amount available uthgekine of Credit will be
increased from $3.0 million to $5.0 million, ane tnaturity date of the Line of Credit will be extienl for another twelve months, or until
June 21, 2014.The Third Amendment provides thaaggregate amount of advances now available t€tmepany under the Line of Credit
cannot exceed the lesser of (i) $5.0 million, 9r§0% of the prior three months transaction prec&srevenues and networking service fees
as defined in the Loan Agreement.

The Loan Documents contain customary affirmativd amgative covenants. The Loan Documents also nedqué Company to achiev
minimum Adjusted EBITDA, as defined in the Loan Downts and amended by the Second Amendment, da@d2A2013, measured ol
quarterly basis. Prior to the Third Amendment, @wmpany was required to maintain a balance of tncesd cash in accounts with the Bi
of at least $3.0 million. The Third Amendment pded that if the amount of the Company’s monthhet’ cash provided by (used
operating activities” including Jumpstart investriseras set forth in the Compasyhonthly cash flow statements prepared in accoedaritl
United States’ Generally Accepted Accounting Ppies ( “ GAAP ") (the “RML") is negative, the Company must maintain a balan
unrestricted cash in accounts with the Bank plesathailability under the Line of Credit of at least times the RML. If the RML is positiv
then in lieu of the foregoing requirement, the Campmust maintain a minimum current ratio of cutr@ssets to current liabilities of at le
1.00 to 1.00. As of June 30, 2013 the Company nbthivaivers from the Bank for the default of twov@oants -Adjusted EBITDA and th
minimum current ratio.

On April 29, 2013, the Company and the Bank entarerla Fourth Amendment (“Fourth Amendmertt)the Loan and Security Agreem
to change the RML from the monthly “net cash preddy (used in) operating activitiegicluding Jumpstart investments to the ave
monthly amount (based on the prior three monthshefCompany’s “net cash provided by (used in) afeg activities”including JumpSta
investments, as set forth in the Company’s monthkh flow statements prepared in accordance witARSA

In September 2013, the Company and the Bank entete@ Fifth Amendment (“Fifth Amendmenttd the Loan and Security Agreemen
change the definition of Adjusted EBITDA for covemaalculations for the four fiscal quarters endingugh June 30, 2014.

The Loan Documents also contain customary eventefafult, including, among other things, paymerfadks, breaches of covenants,
bankruptcy and insolvency events, subject to gperéods in certain instances. Upon an event of udefthe Bank may declare all of 1
outstanding obligations of the Company under theelof Credit and Loan Documents to be immediately dnd payable, and exercise
other rights provided for under the Loan Documents.

As of June 30, 2013, the balance due on the Lir@redit was $3,000,000, and another $2,000,000awakable.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

8. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 30
2013 2012
Capital lease obligatior $ 345,92 $ 426,00°
Loan agreement 23,98 302,32:
369,90¢ 728,33(
Less current portion 247,15. 466,05¢

$ 122,75« $ 262,27-

The maturities of long-term debt as of June 30324 as follows:

2014 $ 247,15
2015 96,341
2016 21,43¢
2017 4,97:

$ 36090

During March 2007, the Company entered into a ehfase agreement in connection with office eqeipnfor approximately $146,000, ¢
in sixty equal monthly payments of $2,965 througarth 2012.

During November 2007, the Company entered intorgterm debt agreement for $93,000 with a financiatiiation bearing interest
8.25%, collateralized by the assets of the Compahych requires 84 monthly payments of $1,467 udiig interest and principal. This Ic
was satisfied in June 2012.

During November 2008, the Company entered intoovaricapital leases for network equipment and maémee contracts on the equipn
totaling $462,041, due in 24 to 36 monthly instalits $1,545 to $3,246.

During July 2009, the Company also entered intagital lease for office equipment totaling $24,886¢ in 46 monthly installments of $6
This was satisfied in June 2013.

During March 2010, the Company financed the purehaiscomputer equipment totaling $195,000 due inn8#thly installments at
interest rate of 4.95%. An amount of restrictedhcaqual to the outstanding principal balance ofldan serves as security for this Ic
Accordingly, $51,492 of restricted cash is classifivith current other assets on the ConsolidatddriBa Sheet at June 30, 2012. This
was satisfied in March 2013.

During May 2010, the company financed softwareriges totaling $77,730, due in twelve monthly ifstahts at an interest rate of 3.3%.

During July 2010, the Company financed a portionth& premiums for various insurance policies tatl$94,331 due in nine montl
installments at an interest rate of 4.93%. Durinly 2011, the Company financed a portion of tharpwens for various insurance polic
totaling $90,372 due in nine equal monthly paymextan interest rate of 5.57%. During July 2012, @ompany financed a portion of
premiums for various insurance policies totalin@&062, due in ten monthly payments of $13,103ufjhoMay 2013 at an interest rate
5.02%.

During August 2011, the Company entered into atahfgase for network equipment totaling approxiehat496,000, due in 36 mont|
payments of $14,145 through August 2014.

During November 2011, the Company financed netveapkipment totaling approximately $46,000, due ielt@ equal quarterly installme
payments at an interest rate of 6.47%.
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8. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

During April 2012, the Company entered into a capitase for network equipment totaling approxinyat62,000, due in 36 montt
payments of $1,785 through February 2015.

During June 2012, the Company financed softwaenBes totaling approximately $212,000, due in &mural quarterly installment payme
at an interest rate of 11.09%.

During January 2013, the Company entered into &atdpase for network equipment totaling approxieta $45,000, due in 37 montl
payments of $1,501 through December 2015.

During March 2013, the Company entered into a ehfgase for equipment to support customer setataing approximately $15,000, ¢
in 36 monthly payments of $464 through January 2016

During March 2013, the Company entered into a ehpitase for network equipment totaling approxitya®?4,000, due in three ann
installments of $8,686 through April 2015.

During April 2013, the Company entered into a alplease for equipment totaling approximately $88,0due in twelve quartel
installments of $2,915 through December 2015.

During June 2013, the Company entered into a dajgtse for office equipment totaling approximat&$6,000, due in 48 montt
installments of $455.80 through June 2017.

9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with the fair value hierarchy desatibn Note 2, the following table shows the failueaof the Companyg financia
instruments that are required to be measuredratdhie as of June 30, 2013 and 2012:

June 30, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash equivalent $ 192,62( $ - $ - $ 192,62(
Common stock warrant liability, warrants exercisadl
$2.6058 from September 18, 2011 through Septenter

2016 $ - 8 - $ 650,63t $ 650,63t
Common stock warrant liability, warrants exercisasl

$5.90 through September 14, 2( $ - $ - $ - $ -
June 30, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash equivalent $ 141,100 $ - $ - $ 14110
Common stock warrant liability, warrants exercisasl

$2.6058 from September 18, 2011 through Septenter

2016 $ - $ - $ 917,441 $ 917,44(
Common stock warrant liability, warrants exercisadi

$5.90 through September 14, 2( $ - $ - $ 1,12¢ $ 1,12¢

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the fair values ef@ompanys Level 1 financial instruments were $192,620 ahd1$107, respectivel
These financial instruments consist of cash eqgeital including money market accounts. As of JuUhe&813 and 2012, the Company hels
Level 2 financial instruments.
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9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the fair values ®Gbmpanys Level 3 financial instruments totaled $650,638 $018,566, respectively. T
Level 3 financial instruments consist of commoncktavarrants issued by the Company in March 2011 Miadch 2007, which incluc
features requiring liability treatment of the wanta The fair value of warrants issued in March2@dee Notes 12 and 13) to purchase
million shares of the Comparg/fcommon stock is based on valuations performeanbypdependent third party valuation firm. The faatue
was determined using proprietary valuation modsiagithe quality of the underlying securities of tivarrants, restrictions on the warri
and security underlying the warrants, time restitt and precedent sale transactions completeldeirs¢écondary market or in other pri
transactions. The fair value of warrants issuearch 2007 to purchase 903,955 shares of the Coyhp@oemmon stock was estimatec
the Company to be $0 using the Blegkholes with the following assumptions: dividendlgiof 0%, expected stock price volatility of 4
risk free interest rate of 0.04, and an expecfedli 0.2 years. There were no transfers of asgdiabilities between level 1, level 2, or leve
during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

The following table summarizes the changes inviaiue of the Company’s Level 3 financial instrungefur the years ended:

June 30
2013 2012
Beginning balanc $ (918,566 $ (2,732,25)
Gain due to change in fair value of warrant lialg#i, net 267,92¢ 1,813,68
Ending balance $ (650,63) $ (918,566

10. INCOME TAXES

At June 30, 2013, the Company had net operating tasryforwards of $167,517,976 to offset futurgatde income expiring throu
approximately 2033.

The timing and extent to which the Company canzetifuture tax deductions in any year may be lichitg provisions of the Internal Revel
Code regarding changes in ownership of corporat{oes IRS Code Section 382). The changes in ovimiermitations under IRS Coi
Section 382 have had the effect of limiting the mmaxm amount of net operating loss carryforwardsfaiune 30, 2013 and 2012 available
use to offset future yearsaxable income to $129,313,279 and $127,024,1%pertively. Those net operating loss carryforwasidst tc
expire June 30, 2022.

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recordedefetred tax assets of $51,078,657 and $51,708r86dectively, which were offset
a valuation allowance of $51,118,902 and $51,720&S60f June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively,easetilization of the deferred tax ass
not likely, principally due to the lack of earninigistory.

As of June 30, 2013and 2012, net deferred taxliti@si of $40,245 and $12,599, respectively, weorded representing the future pote
state and federal income tax effects for basisdifices between financial reporting and incomeptaposes as of those respective date
indefinite life intangible assets and goodwill tlaae being amortized for income tax purposes bttfarofinancial reporting. The potent
future income tax effects associated with suchfinide life assets are not subject to offset agaiteferred tax assets with finite lives.

These deferred tax liabilities resulted in a primrisfor income taxes for the years ended June 8Q32and 2012 of $27,646 ¢
$12,599,respectively, which are comprised of defitstate income taxes of $6,804 and $3,101, ra@gpbstand deferred federal income ta
of $20,842 and $9,498, respectively.

For the year ended June 30, 2013 an income taswawof $299,801 at the federal statutory rat@4# is indicated based upon the inci
before provision for income taxes. In recording pinevision for income taxes the indicated provisieas reduced for the effects of decre
in the valuation allowance of $205,266 for federmlome taxes associated with deferred tax assetseadsed for the effects of permai
differences of $71,379 and increased by state ilec@axes net of federal benefit of $4,490.

For the year ended June 30, 2012 an income taXiben&1,767,537 at the federal statutory rate3dfs is indicated based upon the
before provision for income taxes. In recording frevision for income taxes that benefit was redufw the effects of increases in
valuation allowance of $2,372,354 for federal ineohaxes associated with deferred tax assets, sedefor the effects of perman
differences of $594,264 and reduced by state indanes net of federal benefit $2,046.
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10. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

The net deferred tax assets arose primarily fromoperating loss carryforwards, as well as the afsdifferent accounting methods
financial statement and income tax reporting puepass follows:

June 30
2013 2012

Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 49,534,73 $ 48,825,62
Deferred research and development c 135,18¢ 185,94(
Intangibles 1,132,47 1,059,40!
Stoclk-based compensatic 230,45: 694,40
Other 671,94° 955,27!

51,704,79 51,720,66
Deferred tax liabilities

Intangibles and goodwi (40,245 (22,599
Fixed Assets (585,889

Deferred tax assets, r 51,078,65 51,708,06
Valuation allowance (51,118,90) (51,720,66)
Deferred tax (liabilities) assets, net of allowance $ (40,245 $ (12,599

11. PREFERRED STOCK

The authorized Preferred Stock may be issued fiora to time in one or more series, each series suitth rights, preferences or restricti
as determined by the Board of Directors. As of JBBe2013 each share of Series A Preferred Stockrisertible into 0.1938 of a share
Common Stock and each share of Series A Prefetoek & entitled to 0.1938 of a vote on all mattenswhich the holders of Common St
are entitled to vote. Each share of Common Stoditlesthe holder to one voting right. Series AfBreed Stock provides for an ann
cumulative dividend of $1.50 per share, payablenylas and if declared by the Board of Directorgh®shareholders of record in equal g
on February 1 and August 1 of each year. Any ahacamulated and unpaid cash dividends on theSériPreferred Stock must be decl:
and paid prior to the declaration and payment gfdividends on the Common Stock.

Cumulative unpaid dividends at June 30, 2013 ari® 26nounted to $11,596,324 and $10,931,872, ragplctCumulative unpaid dividen
are convertible into common shares at $1,000 pemoan share at the option of the shareholder. Dutiegyears ended June 30, 2013
2012 no shares of Preferred Stock nor cumulatieéepred dividends converted into shares of comntocks During the year ended June
2011, 1,500 shares of Preferred Stock and $33,00Wlative preferred dividends converted into 15rehand 33 shares of common st
respectively. The Series A Preferred Stock maydbled for redemption at the option of the Boardatectors for a price of $11.00 per st
plus payment of all accrued and unpaid dividends.shich redemption has occurred as of June 30, 201Be event of any liquidation
defined in the Compang’Articles of Incorporation, the holders of shavéSeries A Preferred Stock issued shall be edtitbereceive $10.(
for each outstanding share plus all cumulative ichpavidends. If funds are insufficient for thissttibution, the assets available will
distributed ratably among the preferred sharehslder

12. COMMON STOCK

The Companys Board of Directors has authorized various Comi&tmtk public and private placement offerings. Aityifor these offering
during the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, antl 2@las follows:

On July 7, 2010, we sold an aggregate of 261,9%8eshand related warrants (USATZ) to purchase up6th953 shares pursuant t
subscription rights offering which concluded onyJ@| 2010 (the “2010 Rights Offering”)a connection with the offering, Source Cay
Group, Inc. (“Source”pcted as dealer manager. As compensation forriggces, Source received warrants to purchase U617 shares
$1.13 per share at any time through July 7, 20h& Company received $235,757 of gross proceeds; @ductions for fees and expen
net cash proceeds were $5,671. During the yeardeddee 30, 2011, all of the 261,953 USATZ warrasssied under this offering we
exercised at $1.13 per share for cash proceed29&,®07.

F-19



USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

12. COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

During the year ended June 30, 2013, Source electabhless exercise of 36,186 warrants receivad &cting as dealer manager for
offering described above as well as the 2010 Pubfiering (see Note 13), resulting in the issuantd 7,094 shares of Common Stc
Additionally, during the 2013 fiscal year Sourcermised warrants at $1.13 per share for issuant8,80.6 shares of Common stock resu
in proceeds of $14,934. During the year ended Ane2012, Source elected a cashless exercise 67 yarrants received from acting
dealer manager, resulting in the issuance of 9@®eshof Common Stock. During the year ended Jun@@D1, Source elected a cash
exercise of 127,497 warrants received from actmdemler manager, resulting in the issuance off@3#ares of Common Stock.

On July 27, 2010, we executed a purchase agreesmena registration rights agreement (the “LPC Agrest”) with Lincoln Park Capita
LLC (“LPC”). On March 16, 2011, the Company gave written ndtcePC that it had terminated the LPC Agreementii@uthe year ende
June 30, 2011 we issued 150,000 shares of our constook to LPC as a commitment fee for entering the purchase agreement ant
other shares were issued to LPC under the LPC Awgae

On March 14, 2011, the Company entered into a S&muPurchase Agreement (the “2011 Private Plaoen@fering”) with sevel
institutional investors (the “Buyers”). Pursuangiteto, on March 17, 2011 the Company sold to thgeBu5,200,000 shares of the Company’
common stock at a price of $2.064 per share foaggregate purchase price of $10,732,800. On Mar¢t2Q11 the Company also iss
warrants to the Buyers to purchase up to 3,900s8@@es of common stock at an exercise price o053.@er share.

In connection with the 2011 Private Placement QftgrChardan Capital Markets, LLC (“Chardandjted as exclusive placement agent
compensation for its services, Chardan receivetl campensation of $751,296 and warrants to purchps® 364,000 shares of comn
stock at $2.6058 per share at any time within figars following the sixaonth and one day anniversary of the issuanceeoivirrants, Marc
17, 2011.

The total proceeds of $10,732,800 were reduced191%,122, the fair value of the warrants which subject to liability accounting (s
Note 9), and cash issuance costs of $838,705,tirgglih net cash proceeds of $9,894,095 and neteeds related to common share
$7,976,973.

The Companys Board of Directors has authorized various comgiims plans. Activity for these plans during thesseeended June 30, 20
2012, and 2011 are as follows:

On February 12, 2007, upon recommendation of thmgemsation Committee of the Board of Directorshaf Company, the Board adofg
the LTIP Program for each of our three then-curexeicutive officers. The LTIP Program was intenttednsure continuity of the Company’
executive management, to encourage stock ownebshfuch persons, and to align the interests of .gkecmanagement with those of
shareholders.

Pursuant to and as defined in the LTIP Progranh executive would be awarded shares of the Compadgmmon Stock if the Compe
achieves certain target goals relating to revengiesss profit, and EBITDA (the “Target Goalsjj the Company during each of the fis
years ended June 30, 2007, June 30, 2008 and 0ug6@. On February 4, 2009, the Board of Directgproved the recommendation of
Compensation Committee that the final twelve manttasuring period under the LTIP Program be chaffiged the fiscal year ended Ju
30, 2009 to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

As a result of the Board'decision to change the final twelve month meagudiate of the LTIP Program from fiscal year 2009iscal yea
2010. Final settlement of the award occurred inedbdger 2010 with 86,342 shares earned and total eosapion expense recordec
$97,566, of that $54,395 was compensation expamsegthe year ended June 30, 2011.

On February 28, 2008, the Compasighareholders approved the 2008 Stock Incentie tBlallow up to 300,000 shares of Common Sto
be available for issuance to future or current eyges, directors and consultants of the Comparngr Brthe year ended June 30, 2010
Company had issued 239,253 shares under the 2008 Btentive Plan. During the years ended Jun2@0D] and 2010, the Company iss
20,747 and 40,000 shares under the 2008 Stocktimedpian totaling $10,208 and $87,354, respectjvahsed on the grant date fair valu
the shares. As of June 30, 2011, all 300,000 slir€@smmon Stock available for issuance under tha Rad been issued.
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On June 15, 2010, the Compamghareholders approved the 2010 Stock Incentae flallow up to 300,000 shares of Common Stodie
available for issuance to future or current empésyalirectors and consultants of the Company. Qutie years ended June 30, 2013, :
and 2011, the Company issued 62,942, 120,472 8@1® shares under the plan totaling $68,723, $548and $292,263, respectively be
on the grant date fair value of the shares. Ai0BB0, 2013, 6,668 shares under the plan havedraeated, but have not been issued as
are subject to various vesting provisions, and noenshares are available for future issuance.

On June 13, 2011, the Compamghareholders approved the 2011 Stock Incentae flallow up to 300,000 shares of Common Stodie
available for issuance to future or current empésyalirectors and consultants of the Company. @utie years ended June 30, 2013, !
and 2011, the Company issued 96,665, 141,666 astthfes under the plan totaling $157,645, $335,6@86%0, respectively based on
grant date fair value of the shares. As of June28@3, 61,669 shares under the plan have beeregramit have not been issued as the
subject to various vesting provisions, and no nshi@es are available for future issuance.

On June 28, 2012, the Compasmghareholders approved the 2012 Stock Incentae ol allow up to 500,000 shares of Common Stodie
available for issuance to future or current empésyedirectors and consultants of the Company. Quife year ended June 30, 2013,
Company issued 279,806 shares under the plannpt®fi57,372 based on the grant date fair valubeghares. During the year ended .
30, 2012, the Company did not issue any sharesruhdelan and recorded $197,613 related to theéngesf shares to be issued under
plan. As of June 30, 2013, 23,809 shares undeplthe have been granted, but have not been issuitbyasare subject to various ves!
provisions, and 196,385 shares are available farduissuance.

On June 21, 2013, the Compasmghareholders approved the 2013 Stock Incentae ol allow up to 500,000 shares of Common Stodie
available for issuance to future or current empdsyadirectors and consultants of the Company. Quifie year ended June 30, 2013,
Company did not grant or issue any shares undepléime As of June 30, 2013, 500,000 shares ardadl@ifor future issuance.

On September 27, 2011 the Company and Mr. JenserCampanys former Chief Executive Officer, entered into ameaded and restal
employment agreement (the “Jensen Employment Agea€inand on October 14, 2011 a Separation Agreérmah Release (theSeparatio
Agreement”).

The Jensen Employment Agreement provided for theaisce of an aggregate of 150,000 shares of corstook to Mr. Jensen under its st
incentive plans which were to vest as follows: B0,@n the date the agreement was signed (Septediheé?011) by Mr. Jensen and
Company; 50,000 on the first anniversary of theedstsigning (September 27, 2012); and 50,000 ensdtond anniversary of the dat
signing (September 27, 2013).

Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, Mr. Jenssgned as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and &srector of the Company, effect
October 14, 2011. Under the Separation AgreemieatCbmpany issued to Mr. Jensen 41,667 shares @fiihmon stock which were awar
in connection with the signing of an amendmentivdmployment agreement in April 2011, which wonlat have otherwise vested u
April 2012; and 50,000 shares of the Compangommon stock which were awarded to Mr. Jensetbimection with the signing Jen:
Employment Agreement and which would not have otiss vested until September 2012.

Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, 41,667 sbbi@smmon stock that would have vested in April20n connection with the signing
an amendment to Mr. Jense@mployment agreement in April 2011 and 50,000eshaf common stock that would have vested in $eip
2013 in connection with the signing of his amended restated employment agreement in SeptembengéElforfeited.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Hedmeetred into a second amendment to his employnggaement. The Company iss!
an aggregate of 100,000 shares of common stockridiktbert under its stock incentive plans whicktwes follows: 33,333 on the date
agreement was signed by Mr. Herbert and the Comg8eptember 27, 2011); 33,333 on the first annargrof the date of signit
(September 27, 2012); and 33,334 on the secondemsary of the date of signing (September 27, 2013)

In September 2012, the Board of Directors accefitedrecommendation of the Compensation Committek gaanted 71,429 shares
Common Stock with a grant date fair value of $100, Mr. Herbert under the 2012 Stock IncentivenRithe “2012 Plan”jo vest over
period of up to three years based on performanteeo€ompanys Common Stock. During the year ended June 30,,28&@3Tompany issu
47,620 shares of Common Stock and recorded $6&668pense for this grant. As of June 30, 20138@3 shares of Common Stock ren
unvested for this grant.
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On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMexliered into a fifth amendment to his employmeméagent pursuant to which 1
DeMedio was granted an aggregate of 25,000 shdresnamon stock which vest as follows: 8,333 on da¢e of signing the amendm
(September 27, 2011); 8,333 on the first annivgreéisuch signing date (September 27, 2012); aB848pn the second anniversary of ¢
signing date (September 27, 2013).

On September 15, 2011, at the recommendation ofCimapensation Committee, the board of directorspadbthe Fiscal Year 20
Performance Share Plan (the “2012 Performance Ptavering the Company’executive officers. Under the 2012 Performanes Rtac
executive officer will be awarded common stockhe event the Company achieves target goals dumimdigcal year ending June 30, 2
relating to the total number of connections, totlenues, operating expenses, and operating earfmgrating earnings is defined
earnings before interest and taxes (after bonusialscand stock awards) and before perating gains or losses. The number of eli
shares to be awarded to the executives is basedtbpdollowing weightings: 30% by the total numleéiconnections; 30% by total revent
10% by operating expenses; and 30% by operatingreg. No awards would be made under the 2012 Peafoce Plan if either (i) none
the minimum, threshold performance target goaleHhasen achieved, or (ii) if operating earningstfer 2012 fiscal year are not equa
better than those during the 2011 fiscal year.

Notwithstanding the above description of the 20&2fd¥mance Plan, the executives would receive shiaoen the Company pursuant to
2012 Performance Plan only if and to the extent shares would be available to be issued to thewixes under the existing 2011 st
incentive plan or another stock plan that has mmroved by the shareholders of the Company inrdacce with NASDAQ Listing Ru
5635(c).If there would not be a sufficient numbésloares available to be issued to the executthesCompany would pay to the execut
an amount of cash equal to the value of those shaoe available to be issued to the executivesuleh event, the executives would
required to utilize the cash payment, net of anthinlding, payroll or other taxes attributable e tcash payment, to purchase shar
common stock of the Company on the open market.

As of September 15, 2011 and through June 27, 28& were not sufficient shares available unkereixisting 2011 stock incentive plar
another stock plan that had been approved by thekblders of the Company; consequently, the Cognpaay have been required to deli
to the executives an amount of cash equal to theevaf shares earned but not available to be issaetthe executives. Therefore,
accordance with ASC Topic 718, “Stock Compensatitins award was accounted for as a liability of @@mpany through June 27, 20
On June 28, 2012, the Compasyshareholders approved the 2012 Stock Incentiae, Rihich includes sufficient shares for the Z
Performance Plan. Accordingly, for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2012 the Company recorded stockermapion expense of $197,613 for
vesting of 136,285 shares of Common Sto@6;201 shares to Mr. Herbert and 40,084 sharesrtd®Medio. Final settlement of the aw
occurred in September 2012.

Pursuant to the Separation Agreement entered inthd Company and Mr. Jensen, Mr. Jensen is ndteghto earn shares under the 2
Performance Plan, and therefore no award was dstihfiar Mr. Jensen for the fiscal 2012 year.

On September 5, 2012, at the recommendation ofCitkmpensation Committee, the board of directors &dbphe Fiscal Year 20
Performance Share Plan (the “2013 Performance Ptavering the Compang’executive officers. Under the 2013 Performanes Reac
executive officer would be awarded common stocthaevent the Company achieves certain performgoats during the fiscal year enc
June 30, 2013. The metrics under the 2013 PerfarenBian as well as the relative weightings of thastrics are identical to those origin:
set forth in the 2012 Performance Plan. No awardsldvbe made under the 2013 Performance Planhiéeii) none of the minimur
threshold performance target goals has been achievdii) if operating earnings for the 2013 fisgaar are not equal or better than tt
during the 2012 fiscal year.

If all of the target goals are achieved under t@&3?Performance Plan, the executive officers waadchwarded shares having the follov
value: Mr. Herbert — $275,000; and Mr. DeMedio £08,000. If all of the minimum, threshold performartarget goals are achieved,
executive officers would be awarded shares haviegfollowing value: Mr. Herbert — $75,000; and NreMedio — £5,000. If all of th
maximum, distinguished performance target goalsaaléeved, the executive officers would be awarslegtes having the following vali
Mr. Herbert — $550,000; and Mr. DeMedio 208,000. If the actual results for the fiscal yaar less than the target goals (but greater the
minimum, threshold performance target goals), eaatutive would be awarded a lesser pro rata numibshares from the target goal
actual results are between target and maximum, dh@o rata number of shares between target andtmaxis earned, and if actual res
are above maximum (distinguished) than pro rateesh@ove maximum is earned.
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As of September 5, 2012 and through June 20, 20&8e were not sufficient shares for the maximunarale available under the exist
2012 stock incentive plan or another stock plam tiaal been approved by the shareholders of the @omponsequently, the Company t
have been required to deliver to the executivesranunt of cash equal to the value of shares edroedot available to be issued to
executives. Therefore, in accordance with ASC T@[i8, “Stock Compensationthis award was accounted for as a liability of @empan:
through June 20, 2013. On June 21, 2013, the Coyhpamareholders approved the 2013 Stock Incentigr, Rvhich includes sufficie
shares for the 2013 Performance Plan. Accordiniglythe fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Companorded stock compensat
expense of $19,167 for the vesting of 11,016 shaf€@ommon Stock 8,142 shares to Mr. Herbert and 2,874 shares tddkedio. Fine
settlement of the award is expected to occur ineeiper 2013.

During the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and, 20itlas permitted under their employment agreesnerecutive officers cancelled
aggregate of 64,847, 38,749, and 2,217 shares ofn@m Stock, respectively, in order to satisfy agragate of $121,052, $51,381,
$2,261, respectively, of payroll taxithholding obligations related to shares of Comn®iack which vested during the 2010 through :
fiscal years.

During June 2011, the Board of Directors acceptedrecommendation of the Compensation Committeeetheh noremployee Directc
serving as of June 30, 2011 receive a stock awat®,000 shares of Common Stock under the 2010kStmentive Plan valued at $2.22
share. A total of 50,000 shares of Common Stoclewegrarded, and the shares vest as follows: 16,66Ri0e 30, 2011; 16,665 on June
2012; and 16,670 on June 30, 2013. In February ,28120nemployee member of the Board of Directors forfeitedt! returned to tl
Company 6,667 and 3,333 shares of Common Stogbkecésely, awarded under this grant in June 2011.

As of June 30, 2012, 29,998 shares, net, havedsesig been issued. In addition, due to the Febr2@ty forfeiture and return and change
the composition of the Board of Directors as apptblly shareholders at the Companghnual meeting of shareholders on June 28, 28
of June 30, 2012, 10,002 shares of Common Stockirereserved for future issuance and 10,000 shaitesot vest under this June 2C
grant. As of June 30, 2013, 39,999 shares vestderuhis award and no shares remain unvested.

During March 2012, the Board of Directors accepgtedrecommendation of the Compensation Committgeethich of the three n@mploye!
Directors appointed to the Board in January 20T2iwe a stock award of 10,000 shares of CommonkSiader the 2010 Stock Incent
Plan valued at $0.94 per share. A total of 30,d@0res of Common Stock were awarded, and the shastsas follows: 9,999 on April
2012; 9,999 on April 1, 2013; and, 10,002 on Afri014. As of June 30, 2013, 19,998 shares hasted/@and been issued. Due to chang
the composition of the Board of Directors as apptblly shareholders at the Companghnual meeting of shareholders on June 28, 28
of June 30, 2013, 6,668 shares of Common Stockirereaerved for future issuance and 6,667 sharksati vest under this March 20
grant.

In July 2012, the Board of Directors accepted tdeommendation of the Compensation Committee thelt e the three noemploye:
Directors who joined the Board after March 31, 20#&2eive a stock award of 10,000 shares of ComntookSUnder the 2011 Sto
Incentive Plan (the “2011 Plan30,000 shares of Common Stock were awarded wittaat glate fair value of $1.45 per share, and v
follows: 9,999 on August 10, 2012; 9,999 on Auglt 2013; and, 10,002 on August 10, 2014. As oeJ8@, 2013, 20,001 shares
Common Stock remain reserved for future issuandeiwthis July 2012 grant.

During the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012¢toi(s) elected to receive compensation for sereit¢he Companyg Board of Directol
in Common Stock of the Company. For the years edded 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company issued 8&B8&42,299 shares of Comn
Stock and recorded $157,500 and $3,333 of expemspectively, for this director compensation. Thenfpany also issued to the I
independent director 23,248 and 19,175 sharesrofram stock attributable to his service as leadpreddent director during the years er
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

As of June 30, 2013, the Company had reserved sb&d@ommon Stock for future issuance for the foitay:

Exercise of Common Stock Warral 6,412,76!
Conversions of Preferred Stock and cumulative PredeStock dividend 97,44
Issuance under 2012 Stock Incentive F 196,38!
Issuance under 2013 Stock Incentive F 500,00(
Issuance to former Chief Executive Officer upondlseurrence of a USA Transaction 140,00(
Total shares reserved for future issuance 7,346,59

F-23



USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

12. COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

A summary of the status of the Companponvested common shares as of June 30, 2013, 20d 2011, and changes during the years

ended is presented below:

Nonvested Share

Nonvested at June 30, 20

Grantec

Vested

Nonvested at June 30, 20

Grantec

Vested

Forfeited due to Separation Agreem
Forfeited, Director changes
Nonvested at June 30, 20

Grantec

Vested

Forfeited, Employee shares not earned
Nonvested at June 30, 20

Weighte-Average

Gran-Date

Shares Fair Value
13,00C $ 1.7¢
305,00( 2.1¢
(130,66Y 1.9
187,33 $ 2.32
473,28! 1.5¢
(380,28 1.7z
(91,667 2.0C
(16,669 1.71
172,00 $ 1.82
156,42¢ 1.4¢
(204,58 1.72
(26,699 1.52
97,14¢ $ 1.52

The 97,146 nonvested shares of Common Stock asnef 30, 2013 were granted under the 2010, 20112@b# stock incentive plans ¢
relate to employment agreements, other employestggrand noremployee Board of Director grants. A discussiorasgumptions used
calculating the number of shares and weiglaeerage grant date fair value is included abov&late 12 of the Consolidated Finan

Statements.

Common Stock Warrant activity for the years endateJ30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was as follows:

Outstanding at June 30, 20
Issued

Exercisec

Expired

Outstanding at June 30, 20
Issued

Exercisec

Expired

Outstanding at June 30, 20
Issued

Exercisec

Expired

Outstanding at June 30, 2013

Warrants
13,526,74
4,541,67!
(1,001,21)

(1,500,000
15,567,19

(7,317)
(7,514,26)
8,045,61

45,00(
(399,59
(329,319

7,361,70!
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All Common Stock warrants outstanding as of June28@3 were exercisable. The following table shewarcise prices and expiration dates
for warrants outstanding as of June 30, 2013:

Exercise
Warrants Price Expiration

Outstanding Per Shart Date
September 14,

903,95 $ 5.¢ 2013
December 31,

2,148,75. $ 1.1 2013
September 18,

4,264,00 $ 2.60¢ 2016
December 31,

45,00 $ 2.1 2017

7,361,70:

In conjunction with an October 17, 2007 Securiffeschase Agreement, the Company issued warramisréhase up to 17,532 shares of
Companys Common Stock at $7.70 per share at any time gir@ctober 17, 2012 to the broker dealer who aagetthe exclusive placem
agent in the transaction. For the year ended JOn203.3, warrants under this agreement expiredamesed.

In connection with a Securities Purchase Agreem#tht S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC (“SAC&ntered into by the Company on March
2007, the Company issued warrants to purchase 833}3ares of Common Stock, exercisable at $6.48h#e. As a result of the adjustn
provisions contained in the warrant, as of June2B09, the original warrants to purchase 833,328eshof Common Stock at $6.40 per s
had changed to warrants to purchase 903,955 sha@smmon Stock at $5.90 per share. The warramt®gercisable at any time throt
September 14, 2013. As of June 30, 2013 no warhaws been exercised under this agreement.

The warrant contains a provision that if a Fundaalefransaction occurs, notably a change in contvithin ninety days of the Fundamel
Transaction the warrant holder may require the Gonwgpo pay the Blackcholes calculated value of the then unexercisedawato th
warrant holder in cash. The fair value of the 988,%varrants was estimated using the Bl&ckoles model and applying an estimatec
value adjustment related to warrant exercise tns, and the Company recorded a warrant lighititits Consolidated Balance Sheet o
and $1,126 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respec{isedyNote 9).

On August 7, 2009 in conjunction with a rights oiffig (the “2009 Rights Offering”)the Company issued warrants to purchase 7,28
shares of Common Stock, exercisable at $2.20 mee st any time prior to December 31, 2011. Theamts commenced trading on Auc
7, 2009, on The NASDAQ Global Market under the sghBSATW. During the years ended June 30, 2012 201, 4,550 and 376,3
USATW warrants were exercised at $2.20 per shandltheg in the issuance of 4,550 and 376,355 shafr€mmon Stock, generating ¢
proceeds of $10,010 and $827,981, respectively046887 of these warrants expired unexercised oreildber 31, 2011. Additionally, t
Company issued each of the two dealer managersamtarto purchase 145,716 shares of Common Stotkviére exercisable at $2.20
share at any time prior to August 6, 2012. Theeate@mlanager warrants expired unexercised in Augdk? 2

On May 12, 2010, in conjunction with a public offey (the “2010 Public Offering”)the Company issued warrants to purchase 2,75
shares of Common Stock, exercisable at $1.13 @eedt any time prior to December 31, 2013. Theardés commenced trading on May
2010 on The NASDAQ Global Market under the symb&ATZ. During the years ended June 30, 2013, 20122411, 369,287, 0 a
235,414 USATZ warrants were exercised at $1.13pare for cash proceeds of $417,294, $0 and $286r84pectively. As of June 30, 2(
warrants for the issuance of 2,148,753 shares off@on Stock remain unexercised.

In conjunction with the 2010 Rights Offering (seet® 12), the Company issued USATZ warrants to mset261,953 shares of Comr
Stock, exercisable at $1.13 per share at any tioe @ December 31, 2013. During the year ended B0, 2011 all of these warrants v
exercised at $1.13 per share for cash proceedz9&,®07.

Additionally, the Company issued to Source Cap@abup (“Source”),placement agent of the 2010 Public Offering and26&0 Right
Offering, warrants to purchase 165,207 and 15, Abres of Common Stock, exercisable at $1.13 peesitaany time prior to May 12, a
July 7, 2013, respectively. During the years endede 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Source elected castkescises of 36,186, 2,767

127,497 warrants resulting in the issuance of 14,090 and 83,472 shares of Common Stock, reségetiburing the year ended June
2013, 13,216 shares of Common Stock were issued/dorants exercised at $1.13 per share for castepds of $14,934. Warrants for
issuance of up to 1,258 shares of Common Stockexkpinexercised in May 2013.
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In conjunction with the 2011 Private Placement €xfig (see Note 12), the Company issued warranpsitochase 3,900,000 shares of Com
Stock at an exercise price of $2.6058 per sharditiddally, the Company issued the placement agemtants to purchase 364,000 shart
common stock at $2.6058 per share. The 4,264,00nta are exercisable from September 18, 201 Lighr&eptember 18, 2016. As of J
30, 2013, no warrants have been exercised undeoffgiring.

The 3,900,000 warrants issued under the 2011 rirkacement Offering contain a provision that iIFendamental Transaction occi
notably a change in control, the warrant holder meyuire the Company to pay the Bla8kholes calculated value of the then unexer
warrant to the warrant holder in cash. The faiueabf the warrants was estimated, and the Compacgyrded a warrant liability in |
Consolidated Balance Sheet of $650,638 and $91&666ne 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Yote

In conjunction with the Loan and Security agreen{date 7) and as a condition of the Bank entenrtg the First Amendment, the Comp
issued to the Bank warrants to purchase up to 8%@@res of common stock of the Company. The wertrame exercisable at any time p
to December 31, 2017 at an exercise price of $@etGhare. Upon the issuance of the 45,000 sh&amsmmon stock, the fair value of 1
warrants is $55,962 using a Black Scholes modeictwivas recorded as prepaid interest and includeathier assets on the Consolidi
Balance Sheet, and is being amortized asaamtt interest expense over the remaining termeoLite of Credit as amended in January 2
Non-cash interest of $53,867 has been recognized &oydlar ended June 30, 2013. As of June 30, 2068 abthese warrants has b
exercised.

Common Stock Option activity during the years endieke 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was as follows:

Weighte(-

Exercise Average

Options Price Exercise

Outstanding Per Shart Price

Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 160,000 $ 750-8 $ 7.52
Grantec - - -
Expired (69,339) $ 75C $ 7.5C
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 90,66t $ 7508 $ 7.5¢%
Grantec = = z
Expired (45,33) $ 7.5(-8 $ 7.5¢
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 45,33 % 7.5-8 $ 7.5%
Grantec - - -
Expired (45,33) $ 7.50-8 $ 7.5%
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2013 - 3 - 3 -

Prior to June 30, 2009 the CompasyBoard of Directors granted options to employa®as Board members to purchase shares of Cor
Stock at prices that were at or above fair markatiey on the dates the options were granted. Theroptrm and vesting schedule w
established by the contracts under which the optiware granted. There was no compensation expefesed to the vesting of optic
outstanding in the years ended June 30, 2013, 20?2011 as all options were vested, and allaglabmpensation expense had |
recognized, prior to the June 30, 2011 fiscal year.
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The Company’s 401(k) Plan (the “Retirement Plaallows employees who have completed six monthseo¥ice to make volunta
contributions up to a maximum of 100% of their amnecompensation, as defined in the Retirement Alaa.Company may, in its discreti
make a matching contribution, a profit sharing ctwtion, a qualified norelective contribution, and/or a safe harbor 40Tgatribution tc
the Retirement Plan. The Company must make an &efection, at the beginning of the plan year,@svhether it will make a safe harl
contribution to the plan. In fiscal years 2013 &@d2, the Company elected and made a safe harlktchimg contributions of 100% of t
participants first 3% and 50% of the next 2% of compensatiefered into the Retirement Plan. For fiscal yeat12 the Company did r
elect to make a safe harbor contribution to the.plthe Compang safe harbor contributions for the years ende@ By 2013 and 20
approximated $176,000 and $140,000, respectivélg. Companys discretionary contribution for the year endedeJ8, 2011 approximat
$42,000.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended June 30, 2012 and 201 dhgany incurred approximately $744,000 and $518,688spectively, in connection w
legal services provided by the law firm of a membiethe Companys Board of Directors. At June 30, 2012, approxinya$¢19,000 was du
to this individual. As of July 2012 this person waslonger a Director.

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
LEASES

The Company conducts its operations from variousities under operating leases. The Company leagg19 square feet of space locate
Malvern, Pennsylvania for its principal executiifice and used for general administrative functicsales activities, product developm
and customer support. In November 2010, the Compantgred into an amended lease of its principacutikee office in Malverr
Pennsylvania, which extended the lease term frorsebder 31, 2010 to April 2016. The amendment ineudental payments

approximately $29,000 to $32,000 as well as a foanth period of no rent payments and leaseholdargmnents of approximately $195,0
The straight-lined rent expense for this officajgproximately $25,000 per month for the duratiotheflease.

The Company leases space in Malvern, PennsylvamiatS product warehousing and shipping supportOkiober 2011, the Compe
amended the lease of its operations site in Majvieemnsylvania, to extend the lease term from Déeerl, 2011 to December 31, 2(
The amendment includes monthly rental paymentsppfaximately $15,100 to $16,200. Beginning in Japu2012 the straighlined ren
expense for this office is approximately $15,600 p@nth for the duration of the amended lease gedi®o November 2012, the Comp:
amended and extended this lease to January 31 vd€igonthly rent of $16,721 for January 2013.

In November 2012, the Company entered into a |&asa new operations site in Malvern, Pennsylvdaieseplace its existing site and le:
The lease term for the 11,250 square feet of sjgad@nuary 1, 2013 through February 29, 2016. &hed includes monthly rental paym:
from $4,406 to $4,678 as well as a two month peabdo rent payments. Beginning in January 2013stheighttined rent expense for tt
operations site is approximately $4,300 per moathtfe duration of the lease period.

F-27



USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Rent expense under operating leases was approkn$ta2,000, $502,000, and $545,000 during thesyeaded June 30, 2013, 2012,

2011, respectively. Future minimum lease paymeumbsexquent to June 30, 2013 under capital leasea@nchancellable operating leases
as follows:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
2014 $ 250,58¢ $ 425,33
2015 94,51t 435,57¢
2016 23,551 361,92
2017 5,47( 81C
Thereafter - -
Total minimum lease payments $ 374,12t $ 1,223,65
Less amount representing interest 28,20:
Present value of net minimum lease paym 345,92!
Less current obligations under capital leases 231,42.
Obligations under capital leases, less currenigort $ 114,50:
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

On November 30, 2011, the Company and Mr. Herbrgdred into an Amended and Restated EmploymeniNamdCompetition Agreeme
that replaced his prior employment agreement with @ompany. The agreement provides for an ini@ahtcontinuing through January
2013, which is automatically renewed for conse@utime year periods unless terminated by eithedrbert or the Company upon at ¢
ninety days notice prior to the end of the initedm or any one year extension thereof.

The agreement increased Mr. Herbeliase salary to $341,227, which is equal to tise salary under his prior employment agreemen
an amount equal to the cost to the Company of #neabowance and supplemental disability insuracmeerage provided to him under
prior employment agreement; and, the car allowamzk supplemental disability insurance coverage ltadtbeen provided to him under
prior employment agreement, which have been digwoed. He is eligible for a cash bonus as describdgble next sentence. The agreer
provides for the payment to Mr. Herbert of a cashus of $30,000 if the Company would achieve athef minimum threshold performar
target goals under the Fiscal Year 2012 ExecuterdoPmance Plan, of $50,000 if the Company wouldiece all of the target performar
goals under the plan, and of $75,000 if the Compaoyld achieve all of the maximum distinguishedfpenance target goals under the plan.

The Company has agreed to obtain and pay the presnfar a term life insurance policy in the amouht$t,500,000 on the life of V
Herbert while he is employed by the Company. Mrtlidet has the right to designate the beneficiarhefpolicy. On September 5, 2012,
Company discontinued this policy and Mr. Herbetiase salary was increased by the amount eqtfz tannual premiums being paid by
Company for the life insurance policy.

The agreement provides that if Mr. Herbert woulinieate his employment with the Company for gocasom (as defined in the agreeme
or if the Company would terminate his employmentwiit cause (as defined in the agreement), oeitbmpany would provide Mr. Herb
with a notice of nomenewal of his employment agreement, then the Cagnpauld pay to him a lump sum equal to two timeshase sala
on or before the termination of his employment. Tdren good reason as defined in the agreementidast (A) a material breach of the te
of the agreement by the Company; (B) the assigniogrthe Company to Mr. Herbert of duties in any wagterially inconsistent with t
authorities, duties, or responsibilities, or a mataeduction or alteration in the nature or ssatdi his authority, duties, or responsibilitie:
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company; (C) tBempany reduces Mr. Herbertannual base salary; or (D) a material reductipmhk
Company in the kind or level of employee benefitsvhich Mr. Herbert is entitled immediately priar such reduction with the result that
overall benefit package is significantly reducedesa such failure to continue a plan, policy, gcacbr arrangement pertains to all ¢
participants generally. As a condition to Mr. Hetheceiving any payments or benefits upon the iteatron of his employment for go
reason, Mr. Herbert shall have executed and deld/éand not revoked) a release of any and all slaguits, or causes of action agains
Company and its affiliates in form reasonably atakle to the Company.
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16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The agreement also provides that as a conditiagheo€onsummation of a USA Transaction (as definethé agreement), the successor t
Company’s business or assets would agree to asanthperform Mr. Herbert’ employment agreement. If any such successor wutldc
so, Mr. Herbert employment would terminate on the date of consatiam of the USA Transaction, and the Company waayg to Mr
Herbert a lump sum equal to two times his baseysalaor before the termination of his employment.

On April 12, 2005, Mr. DeMedio and the Company esdeinto an employment agreement pursuant to whéclvas employed as the Ci
Financial Officer of the Company. In the event thaiSA Transaction shall occur, then Mr. DeMedis ttee right to terminate his agreen
upon thirty days notice to the Company.

On September 24, 2009, the Company agreed to cdnaipay the premiums for a term life insurancécgah the amount of $750,000 on
life of Mr. DeMedio while he is employed by the Cpamy. Mr. DeMedio has the right to designate theefieiary of the policy. Th
Company has agreed to obtain and pay the premianes Supplemental long term disability policy caagrMr. DeMedio over and above
existing longterm group disability plan of the Company. If healktbecome disabled while employed by the Compaing, policy woul
provide for monthly disability coverage of up to%5of his monthly base compensation payable to dg®rédeath. If Mr. DeMedi@
employment with the Company would be terminatedatit cause, the Company has agreed, at its cospntinue to provide Mr. DeMec
with health insurance benefits substantially simitathose which he is receiving immediately ptiorthe date of termination for a one y
period following such termination.

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMedio emteinto an additional amendment to the employnagmeement. The agreem
extended the term of Mr. DeMedfoemployment with the Company from June 30, 201il dJune 30, 2014, and will automatically conti
from year to year thereafter unless terminatedfdakeoend of the original term or any such one yeaewal period by the Company or
DeMedio by at least 98ays notice. In connection with the amendment, MrMedio was issued 25,000 shares of common stodkruthe
2010 Stock Incentive Plan which vest or vesteHsvlis: 8,333 on April 14, 2011; 8,333 on April 2012; and 8,334 on April 14, 2013.

Effective July 1, 2011, Mr. DeMedio’s annual baatasy was increased to $220,000.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMexliered into another amendment to his employmeeeagent pursuant to which
DeMedio was granted an aggregate of 25,000 shéresnamon stock as a bonus for his performance dutie last six months of the 2(
fiscal year which vest as follows: 8,333 on theedzftsigning the amendment; 8,333 on the first\amsary of such signing date; and 8,33
the second anniversary of such signing date. MM&#o also agreed that the premiums for his supeteai long term disability policy bei
paid by the Company would now be included in hig@gand be taxable to him.

On September 5, 2012, the Company discontinuedDdiedio’s car allowance, supplemental disability insurgookcy and life insuranc
policy, and the amount of his base salary was as@é by the annual cost of these benefits.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

During August 2013, at the request of a customerceased providing ePort Connect services for D0gfrt devices which the custol
had previously purchased from us. We believe thatcustomer made such a request as a result cliftemer developing its own prod
and service. We continue to provide ePort Connestices to this customer for additional ePort desithat were previously purchased f
us by the customer. The license and transactiondttgbutable to these continuing connections @ddve represented approximately 6¢
7% of our license and transaction fee revenuesigdiscal year 2013. As a result of our anticipageowth in connections during fiscal y
2014, we do not believe that these deactivatiofishave a material adverse effect on our busingéhse. customer represented 11%, 18%
25% of our license and transaction fee revenudgaglfiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

LINE OF CREDIT

In September 2013, the Company and the Bank entete@ Fifth Amendment (“Fifth Amendmenttd the Loan and Security Agreemen
change the definition of Adjusted EBITDA for covemaalculations for the four fiscal quarters endingpugh June 30, 2014.

COMMON STOCK WARRANTS
On September 14, 2013 warrants to purchase 903%Bafes of Common Stock, exercisable at $5.90 pareskxpired unexercised. 1

warrants had been issued in connection with a 8ssuPurchase Agreement with SAC entered intoheyGompany on March 14, 2007 (
Note 13).
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Item 9. Ch anges in and Disagreements with Accountés on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

| tem 9A. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

The principal executive officer and principal fircéal officer have evaluated the Companisclosure controls and procedures as of Jur
2013. Based on this evaluation, they concludettieatisclosure controls and procedures were efietti ensure that the information requ
to be disclosed by the Company in the reports ithfiles or submits under the Securities Exchange &f 1934 is recorded, process
summarized and reported, within the time periods#died in the Commissior’'rules and forms and to ensure that informatiguired to b
disclosed by the Company in the reports thatesfibr submits under the Securities Exchange At984 is accumulated and communicate
the Companys management, including its principal executive anidcipal financial officers, or persons perforgisimilar functions, ¢
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

(b) Management'’s annual report on internal cordgrar financial reporting.

Management of the Company is responsible for a@staby and maintaining adequate internal contra@rdinancial reporting as defined
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). The Company’s intecoatrol over financial reporting is a processeféd by the Comparg/'management
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjabil financial reporting and the preparation betCompanys financial statements 1
external purposes in accordance with U.S. geneaalbgpted accounting principles.

In designing and evaluating our disclosure contesld procedures, our management recognized thalbsiise controls and procedures
matter how well conceived and operated, can progitg a reasonable, not absolute, assurance thailijectives of the disclosure cont
and procedures are met.

The Companys management assessed the effectiveness of itaahtontrol over financial reporting as of Jung 2013. In making th
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by thmr@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of Theadway Commission in Inter
Control—Integrated Framework. Based on its assessmenagement believes that, as of June 30, 208X ompanys internal control ov
financial reporting is effective.

This annual report does not include an attestagport of the Company’ registered public accounting firm regarding iné&rcontrol ove
financial reporting. Management's report was ndiject to attestation by the Compasyregistered public accounting firm pursuant t
exemption for smaller reporting companies undeti®&e®89G of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform &whsumer Protection Act.

(c) Changes in internal control over financial nejpy.

There have been no changes during the quarter ehdes 30, 2013 in the Compasyihternal controls over financial reporting thatve
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, internal control over financialp@rting.

| tem 9B. Other Information.

At the Companys annual meeting on June 21, 2013, its sharehold¢es, on an advisory basis, to conduct futurasay votes on nam
executive officer compensation every one year.

Consistent with the shareholders’ advisory votee @ompanys Board of Directors has determined that the Compaili hold future
shareholder advisory votes on the executive congtiemspaid to its named executive officers on anuah basis until the next vote on
frequency of such vote is conducted or until theuBloof Directors determines that a different fregpyeof such votes is in the best interes
the shareholders of the Company.
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P ART Il
It em 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporte Governance.
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our Directors and executive officers, on August3113, together with their ages and business baadkgis were as follows:

Name Age Position(s) Helc
Deborah G. Arnold (4 63 Director

Steven D. Barnhart (2)( 52 Director

David M. DeMedia 42 Chief Financial Office
Stephen P. Herbe 50 Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board dfdators
Joel Brooks (1 54 Director

Frank A. Petito, 11 (3 45 Director

Albin F. Moschner(3 60 Director

Jack E. Price (1 68 Director

William J. Reilly, Jr.(1)(4 64 Director

William J. Schoch (4 48 Director

(1) Member of Audit Committee

(2) Lead independent director

(3) Member of Compensation Committee

(4) Member of Nominating and Corporate Governanomittee

Each member of the Board of Directors will holdicgfuntil the 2014 annual shareholders’ meetinguartd his or her successor has been
elected and qualified.

Deborah G. Arnol¢oined the Board of Directors of the Company in fieloy, 2012. Ms. Arnold is the Chair of our Nomingtand Corpora
Governance Committee. She has served on the AgvBoard of the Grameen Technology Center since l#ct@008 and was on 1
Advisory Boards of the United Nations Year of Miinence and of Women in Technology InternationahfrJanuary 2005 to Decem
2006. Ms. Arnold was Vice President of global cansu products at Visa International from May 200Dictober 2006, and prior thereto
led the global smart card migration effort from @er 1998 to May 2001. Ms. Arnold also led the dgwment of a new payment prodt
Visa Horizon, for emerging markets from July 1985September 1998. Prior to joining Visa, she heldety of executive positions in 1
telecommunications and financial services industri@ her consulting practice, Ms. Arnold has supgab various organizations in
strategic planning and marketing of their produmtsl programs. She has been deeply involved inndrithe development of Near Fi
Communication technology and standards, initialyaafounding member of the NFC Forum in 2004 andes011 as the director of
165+ member organization. Ms. Arnold holds a Bamhef Arts degree from Duke University, obtainedli®72, as well as a certificate fr
Universite de Lausanne in Lausanne, Switzerlandyrded in 1971. We believe that Ms. Arnadecord within the payments industry, t
domestically and internationally, and her trackorelcof helping companies develop strategies totakige on the abundant opportunities in
industry provide the requisite qualifications, Ekiperspectives, and experiences to serve on card®f Directors.

Steven D. Barnhamvas appointed to the Board of Directors in Octd#9. Mr. Barnhart is the Compagylead independent director and
member of our Compensation Committee. Since Aug@st2012, Mr. Barnhart has been serving as theoBafice President and Ch
Financial Officer of Sears Hometown and Outlet &oinc., which was a subsidiary of Sears Holdidggporation when he joined, and si
October 12, 2012, has been an independent pubtipaoy (NASDAQ: SHOS). From January 2010 to Jun€2Mr. Barnhart served as
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficéBally Total Fitness. Mr. Barnhart was Chief Extea Officer and President of Orb
Worldwide from 2007 to January 2009, after holdother executive positions since 2003, when he ¢bitiee company. Prior to Orb
Worldwide, he worked for PepsiCo and the PepsilBgttGroup from 1990 to 2003, where he was FinaDaector for the Southes
Business Unit of the Pepsi Bottling Group, and aietd other regional and strategic positions fopdkéo and Fritd-ay. Mr. Barnhai
received a Bachelor of Science degree in Economit884 from the University of Chicago and a Mast@rBusiness Administration in 18
from the University of Chicago. Mr. Barnhart senau the Board of Directors of Orbitz Worldwide fra007 to January 2009. We beli
Mr. Barnharts extensive executive experience and leadershils,s&nd prior public board experience provide thquisite qualification
skills, perspectives, and experiences to serveuoBoard of Directors.
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Joel Brooksjoined the Board of Directors of the Company durigrch 2007. Mr. Brooks is the Chair of our Audibf@mittee. Sinc
December 2000, Mr. Brooks has served as the CimehEial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary of Semdsschnologies, Inc., a biotechnol
company whose shares are traded on the OTCQB. Beptember 1998 until November 2000, Mr. Brooks thasChief Financial Officer
Blades Board and Skate, LLC, a retail establishnspetializing in the action sports industry. MroBks was Chief Financial Officer frc
1997 until 1998 and Controller from 1994 until 1997Cable and Company Worldwide, Inc. He also hbkl position of Controller at U<
Detergents, Inc. from 1992 until 1994, and heldiowgs positions at several public accounting firmanf 1983 through 1992. Mr. Broc
received his Bachelor of Science degree in Commeittea major in Accounting from Rider University February 1983. We believe !
Brooks’ extensive accounting and finance background, arsd elxecutive experience at Senesco Technologiesidgrahe requisit
qualifications, skills, perspectives, and experénto serve on our Board of Directors.

David M. DeMedicjoined the Company on a fuilme basis in March 1999 as Controller. In the swnof 2001, Mr. DeMedio was promo

to Director of Financial Services where he was oesjble for the sales and financial data reportmgustomers, the Compasyturnke
banking services and maintaining and developingtimiships with credit card processors and cardciessons. In July 2003, Mr. DeMec
served as interim Chief Financial Officer througprih 2004. From April 2004 until April 2005, Mr. Ddedio served as Vice President -
Financial & Data Services. On April 12, 2005, hesvappointed as the CompasyChief Financial Officer. From 1996 to March 19p8or tc
joining the Company, Mr. DeMedio had been emplogdElko, Fischer, Cunnane and Associates, LLC aspervisor in its accounting
auditing and consulting practice. Prior thereto, BleMedio held various accounting positions witteligent Electronics, Inc., a mulkiilion
reseller of computer hardware and configurationises. Mr. DeMedio graduated with a Bachelor ofeBcke in Business Administration fri
Shippensburg University and is a Certified Publacéuntant.

Stephen P. Herbehas been our Chief Executive Officer and ChairmianesNovember 30, 2011. He was elected a Directdkgril 1996
and joined the Company on a ftillhe basis on May 6, 1996 as Executive Vice Pregideuring August 1999, Mr. Herbert was appoil
President and Chief Operating Officer of the Conyp#@n October 5, 2011, Mr. Herbert was appointethisim Chief Executive Officer al
Chairman, and on November 30, 2011, he was apgbizdethe Chairman of the Board of Directors andeChEixecutive Officer of tF
Company. Prior to joining us and since 1986, Mrrthi¢et had been employed by Pe@sika, the beverage division of PepsiCo, Inc. Fr&®4
to April 1996, Mr. Herbert was a Manager of Marl&tategy. In such position he was responsible fagcting development of marl
strategy for the vending channel and subsequenéysupermarket channel for Pe@sita in North America. Prior thereto, Mr. Herbedld
various sales and management positions with Feplsi- Mr. Herbert graduated with a Bachelor of 8cée degree from Louisiana St
University. We believe Mr. Herbed'position as the President and Chief Operatingc@ffof our Company until October 5, 2011 an
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Compérgreafter, his intimate knowledge and experiemitie all aspects of our Company,
his extensive vending experience at PepsiCo bgfmireng our Company provide the requisite qualificas, skills, perspectives, &
experiences to serve on our Board of Directors.

Albin F. Moschneljoined the Board of Directors of the Company in ilp2012. He is the Chair of our Compensation Cotteai Mr
Moschner served at Leap Wireless International, &scthe Chief Operating Officer from July 2008 &bruary 2011 and as Chief Marke!
Officer from August 2004 to June 2008. Prior tonjog Leap Wireless, Mr. Moschner served as Presidéthe Verizon Card Servic
division of Verizon Communications, Inc. From Jaryua999 to December 2000, Mr. Moschner was Preside@ne Point Services at C
Point Communications. Mr. Moschner served at ZeRictronics Corporation as President and Chiefcktree Officer from 1995 to 19¢
and as President, Chief Operating Officer and Barefrom 1994 to 1995. Mr. Moschner has also selinedarious managerial capacitie:
Tricord Systems, Inc. and International Businessiitaes Corp. Mr. Moschner has also been servinghenBoard of Wintrust Financ
Corporation since 1994. Mr. Moschner holds a Bawhef Engineering in Electrical Engineering from eTICity College of New Yor
awarded in 1974, and a masters degree in Electficgineering awarded by Syracuse University in 19¥@ believe that Mr. Moschner’
marketing, manufacturing and wireless industry eigmee and long standing prior public board expereprovide the requisite qualificatio
skills, perspectives, and experiences to serveuoBoard of Directors.

Frank A. Petitcjoined the Board of Directors of the Company inifeeloy 2012. Mr. Petito is a member of our Compaosa€ommittee. H
is President of Orbitz for Business, and has aseesl as Senior Vice President of Corporate Dewvedor for Orbitz Worldwide, Inc., whic
he joined in March 2002. Prior to joining Orbitzy MPetito was a co-founder and CFO of Unexplorad,, la venturdracked online travel a
services company from 1999 to 2001. Before thatwvhe an investment banker, and served as Vicedergsof mergers and acquisitions
Hambrecht & Quist, a technolodgeused investment bank in San Francisco from 1698999. Prior to that, Mr. Petito was an investt
banker at Roberts Capital Markets from 1992 to 198 started his career at Morgan Stanley whenedsean investment banker from 1!
to 1992. Mr. Petito obtained his MBA from StanfoBtaduate School of Business in 1996 and his unddugte degree from Prince
University in 1990. We believe that Mr. Peteddreadth of experience at both large and smalpemmes and his track record of success
operating in a high growth, technology environmprdvide the requisite qualifications, skills, persfives, and experiences to serve or
Board of Directors.
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Jack E. Pricewas appointed to the Board of Directors in OctoP@®9. Mr. Price is a member of our Audit Committér. Price wa
President and Chief Executive Officer of NovaRaydMal Inc. from 2007 to March 2009. Prior to thag, was President and Chief Execu
Officer of VSM MedTech Ltd. from 2003 to 2006, awds President and Division Chief Executive OffiokPhilips Medical Systems, Noi
America from 1996 to 2003, having joined Philipsdal Systems in 1993 as Vice President and GeMaahger. He was also with Genq
Electric Medical Systems from 1988 t01993, where hedd Vice President and General Manager positidfis. Price received h
undergraduate degree from the University of Oreddn.Price is also Chairman of The Radiological i8tcof North America Board !
Trustees. Mr. Price served on the Board of DirecairNovaRay Medical, Inc. from 2007 to 2009 andHeflth Solutions Systems, Inc. fr
May 1, 2008 to March 2010. We believe that Mr. @8cextensive executive experience, leadership skilts prior public company bo:
experience provide the requisite qualificationsllskperspectives, and experiences to serve orBoard of Directors.

William J. Reilly, Jr., joined the Board of Directors of the Companyuty 2012. He is a member of our Audit and Nomingitamd Corpora
Governance Committees. He has been an indepenalesiiltant since January 2011. From September 20084¥ember 2010, Mr. Reilly w
President and Chief Executive Officer of Realtimedi4, Inc., an interactive promotional marketingnfiserving the pharmaceutical :
consumer packaged goods markets. Following thecddealtime Media, Inc. in November 2010, Mr. ReWas retained as a consultant L
January 2011. From September 2002 to September, ROI0Reilly was a principal at Chesterbrook Grovartners, independent consulti
to the private equity community. Between 1989 a@@i2 Mr. Reilly served at various positions at (dpeint Systems Inc., a multinatiol
manufacturer and marketer of products and senfimeautomatic identification, retail security, grig and brand promotion, including
Chief Operating Officer, Executive Vice Preside3enior Vice President of the Americas and Pacifio Bnd Vice President of Sales. Pria
that, Mr. Reilly held national and sales managenpasitions at companies in the medical electromicd telecommunications industri
including Minolta Corporation, Megatech Pty. Ltdnda Multitone Electronics PLC. He has also servedto@ Board of Verama
Technologies, Inc., a telecommunications softwara, ffrom June 1997 to May 2008. Mr. Reilly gradefrom Mount St. Mang Universit
with a bachelors of science degree in Psychology9ir0. We believe that Mr. Reilly’executive, business development and interna
experience provide the requisite qualificationdllskperspectives and experiences to serve oBoard of Directors.

William J. Schocljoined the Board of Directors of the Company inyJ2012. He is a member of our Nominating and CafsofGovernant
Committees. He is the President and Chief Exec@iffecer of Western Payments Alliance, a nomofit payments association and has se
in that capacity since March 2008. He serves orBiberds of Western Payments Alliance and NACHAijratustry trade association and
administrator of the Automated Clearing House (AQt¢fwork, and is on the steering committee of NACBI&ouncil for Electronic Billin
and Payment. From 1997 to 2008, Mr. Schoch workédisa International where, as the Vice PresiddriEmerging Market Initiatives, |
was responsible for the global development of tlea\Woney Transfer Platform. Prior to that, Mr. 8ch served as a Vice Presider
Citibank, N.A. from 1989 to 1997 and as an Asseclairector at NACHA from 1986 to 1989. Mr. Schoditained a Bachelor of Arts deg
in 1986 from Indiana University of Pennsylvaniatwéa major in Public Policy and a minor in Economidge believe that Mr. Schoch’
experience and familiarity with the electronic pants industry and his leadership experience proth@erequisite qualifications, skil
perspectives and experiences to serve on our Rddddectors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit Conaeifpresently consisting of each of Mr. Brooks (@han), and Messrs. Price and Re
The Companys Board of Directors has determined that Joel Bsaskhe Audit Committee financial expert servimgtbe Audit Committee

defined by applicable SEC rules. The Board has @égermined that Mr. Brooks is “independeas’ such term is defined by applicable
rules.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Our Board has adopted a Code of Ethics, which appt all executive officers, directors and empésyef the Company, including our Ct

Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and QGuoller. A copy of our Code of Business Conduct &tliics is accessible on the Company’
website, www.usatech.com
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| tem 11. Executive Compensation.
Compensation Discussion And Analysis

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis providgermation about our compensation program for oamed executive office
(collectively, the “named executive officers”): teen P. Herbert; David M. DeMedio; Michael Lawland Cary Sagady.

Effective May 2010 and through June 28, 2011, oamf@ensation Committee was comprised of Jack PSteven Barnhart, and Pe
Michel. Effective June 28, 2011, and through July 2012, the Compensation Committee consisted a&fskde Price and Barnhart. From .
24, 2012 and through September 25, 2012, the Cosaien Committee consisted of Mr. Price, Mr. Bamh&rank Petito and Alb
Moschner. From September 25, 2012 through July2@33, the Compensation Committee consisted of Meggice, Petito and Moschr
From July 25, 2013 through the date of this ForrK1the Compensation Committee consists of Meddoschner, Petito and Barnhart.

The Compensation Committee is responsible for dhnuaviewing and recommending compensation and pamsation changes for -
executive officers of the Company. The compensatiothe two other employees named in the Summampg@msation Table is determir
by our Chief Executive Officer in consultation withe Compensation Committee. The Chief ExecutivBc&f assists the Committee
determining the compensation of all other execuwficers, and none of the executive officers hasoke in determining his ov
compensation. Our Chief Executive Officer regulgntgvides information to the Compensation Commitidee Chief Executive Officeris r
present during voting or deliberations on his congad¢ion. The Compensation Committee considers eachponent of executi
compensation in light of total compensation. Insidaring adjustments to the total compensatiomefexecutive officers, the Compensa
Committee also considers the value of previous emsation. The Compensation Committee has retainetshdependent compensat
consultant, Buck Consulting, as deemed necessagsdist the Committee in making appropriate recentations regarding our execu
officer's compensation.

Compensation Goals and Objectives

We have developed a compensation policy that iggded to attract and retain key executives respbadr our success and motiv
management to enhance long-term shareholder vehee Compensation Committee believes that compemsafithe Compang’ executiv
officers should encourage creation of shareholdftrevand achievement of strategic corporate obgstiand the Committee seeks to aligr
interests of the Company’s shareholders and managteby integrating compensation with the Compamyisual and longerm corporat
and financial objectives. We believe that providog executive officers who have responsibility flioe Companys management and grou
with an opportunity to increase their ownershipgCofimpany stock aligns the interests of the execuffieers with those of the sharehold
In furtherance thereof, in April 2011, the Boardpegved Stock Ownership Guidelines that were recontded by the Compensat
Committee. These guidelines provide that the Chiedcutive Officer should own shares with a valuebfeast three times his annual t
salary, and the Chief Financial Officer should astrares with a value of at least one time his anpasé salary.

The Compensation Committee also ties a signifipamtion of each executive officer'compensation to key operational and financialg
and performance. For example, any shares of Con8tmrk that were awarded to Mr. Herbert from ouclktmcentive plans during the 2C
fiscal year were attributable to the attainmenttliy Company of certain target goals or were in arge for eliminating language in
employment agreement that required the Compangycegcise taxes in connection with excess paraghayments upon a change of cor
and to make related tax gross up payments. Iniaddany cash bonuses earned by Mr. Herbert wargngeent upon the attainment of cer
target goals by the Company during the 2012 figear. Any shares of Common Stock that were awatdeédr. DeMedio from our stoc
incentive plans during the 2012 fiscal year wetghaitable to the attainment by the Company ofaiartarget goals or were in recognitiot
his performance during the last six months of th&12fiscal year. Any cash bonuses awarded to Mekarglor and Sagady were conting
upon the attainment by the Company of certain taggals and attainment by the executive of persbnsiness goals during the 2012 fi
year. In addition, any cash or stock bonuses teameed during fiscal year 2013 by any of our naewstutive officers could only be ear
by them upon attainment by the Company of spepifidormance target goals, attainment of individuasiness goals, or upon attainmen
our Common Stock of certain closing prices.
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Compensation Components

In order to be competitive with compensation offel®y other companies in our custom peer group,caspided by our compensati
consultant, and to motivate and retain executifiee®, the Company intends to offer a total consa¢ion package competitive with ot
companies in our custom peer group as well as iatike account individual responsibilities and penmfi@nce. The annual compensa
package for our named executive officers primardpsists of all or some of the following:

e a base salary;

e stock options;

e restricted stock awards;

e cash and stock bonuses;

e long-term stock incentive awards; and

e other benefits.

Base Salary

Base salary is the fixed component of our namedwke officers’annual cash compensation and is set with the daattiacting talente
executives and adequately compensating and revgatidém for services rendered during the fiscal y@ar executive officersemploymer
agreements specify the level of salary to whichheafficer is entitled, subject to review by our Bdeaof Directors or Compensati
Committee from time to time. During November 20&hd in connection with his appointment as Chiefdttiee Officer, we recommend
that Mr. Herbert$ existing base salary be increased by an amourdl éq the annual costs to the Company of the dawance an
supplemental longerm disability insurance coverage which had presip been provided to him and which were beingahsiaued upon ol
recommendation. On September 5, 2012, the Boartbe@g our recommendation that Mr. Herbeittase salary be increased by an an
equal to the annual premiums being paid by the Gomor a life insurance policy on Mr. Herbertife that was being discontinued upon
recommendation. Effective July 1, 2011, we incrddge. DeMedios base salary approximately eighteen percent iardad his base sale
to be more competitive with the base salaries @éfcfinancial officers of the companies in our @t peer group as compiled by
compensation consultant. On September 5, 201 Bdhed approved our recommendation that Mr. DeMediaise salary be increased by
annual amount of the car allowance, supplementaj-term disability coverage, and life insuranceiqggyobn Mr. DeMedios life that wer
being discontinued upon our recommendation. The Isataries of our executive officers reflect thdividual's level of responsibility at
performance. In recommending base salaries of xerwive officers to the Board of Directors, then@pensation Committee also consit
changes in duties and responsibilities, our busiresl financial results, the relationship amongebselaries paid to others within
Company, and its knowledge of base salaries pagkéoutive officers of our custom peer group. Thsebsalaries for each of Messrs. Sa
and Lawlor were established by our Chief Execu@¥ficer after discussions with each employee.

As set forth in his employment agreement, upon tdrenination of Mr. Herbers employment under certain circumstances, inclt
termination by him with good cause or by the Conypaithout cause or by a notice of nognewal of the employment agreement,
Company has agreed to pay him a lump sum amourdl équwo times his annual base salary. We beliiat these provisions are
important component of the executive’'s employmerdragements.

Restricted Stock Awards

During the 2010, 2011, and 2012 fiscal years, tomfensation Committee has recommended that restrstock be awarded to our exect
officers under the Compars/incentive stock compensation plans. During Ap@iL1, and based upon past performance and in easiut
of the extension of their employment agreementsawarded an aggregate of 225,000 shares undetaukr incentive plan to our execut
officers which were to become vested over a twa pesiod. During September 2011, we awarded 150gb@Bes under our incentive st
plan to our former CEO and 100,000 shares undeingentive stock plan to Mr. Herbert which wereberome vested over a two year pe
in exchange for the elimination of certain provigan their employment agreements requiring the @y to pay excise taxes in connec
with excess parachute payments in the event ofamgsh in control of the Company and to make reldéedgross up payments. 1
Compensation Committee as well as the executiveenf believed that these provisions were no longgpropriate given curre
compensation practices and represented good coepgoaernance. During September 2011, we issugdD@5hares under our incent
stock plan to Mr. DeMedio as a bonus for perforneatigring the last six months of the 2011 fiscalryea
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On September 5, 2012, and in recognition of hizassful leadership of the Company following theasapion of the former CEO as well
his successful leadership in connection with th@lémentation of the Comparsy/'financial turnaround plan, the Board approved
recommendation and awarded Mr. Herbert 71,429 shafaunvested Common Stock under our stock incengilan having a value
$100,000. These shares would become vested upoattiiement of various closing prices for thirtynsecutive trading days at any ti
during the three year period following the datehaf award. Onéhird of the shares would become vested if theiotpprice would be at lec
$2.00 per share, one-third of the shares wouldeceested if the closing price would be at leas2$Der share, and onieird of the share
would become vested if the closing price would bleast $2.50 per share.

Cash and Stock Bonuses

In addition to base salary, we may award variablghdoonus awards to our named executive officergedisas shares available under
incentive stock compensation plans upon the attaimry the Company of target goals during a figealr.

On September 15, 2011, at the recommendation ofCtmapensation Committee, the Board of Directorspsetb the Fiscal Year 20
Performance Share Plan (the “2012 Plan”) coverirg@ompanys executive officers. Under the 2012 Plan, eacltgiee officer will be
awarded common stock in the event the Company eehitarget goals during the fiscal year ending Bhe012 relating to the total num
of connections, total revenues, operating experssespperating earnings. Operating earnings isééfas earnings before interest and 1
(after bonus accruals and stock awards) and befmm@perating gains or losses. The number of eligibbres to be awarded to the execu!
is based upon the following weightings: 30% bytiftal number of connections; 30% by total revend€8p by operating expenses; and .
by operating earnings. No awards would be maderuthee2012 Plan if either (i) none of the minimutreshold performance target gc
have been achieved, or (ii) operating earningshfer2012 fiscal year are not equal to, or betten tithose during the 2011 fiscal year.

If all of the target performance goals are achiethd executive officers would be awarded the feitg number of shares: Mr. Herbert
120,000 shares; and Mr. DeMedio58,000 shares. If all of the minimum, thresholdf@enance target goals are achieved, the exec
officers would be awarded 20% of the number of ekhavhich would have been awarded to them if atheftarget performance goals
been achieved. If all of the maximum, distinguisipedformance target goals are achieved, the execaofficers would be awarded 150%
the number of shares which would have been awanl#tem if all of the target performance goals badn achieved. If the actual results
the fiscal year are less than the target goals dbediter than the minimum, threshold performancgetagoals), each executive would
awarded a lesser pro rata portion of the numbetigible shares.

Based upon the financial results of the CompanytHerfiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the minimhneshold targets under the 2012 |
relating to revenues and connections were met. Meryas a result of the approximately $2.2 millafrexpenses incurred in connection \
the proxy contest and related litigation and th@3$000 of expenses incurred in connection withsiygaration of the former Chief Execu
Officer of the Company, operating earnings wers kban those for the 2011 fiscal year and the mininthreshold targets under the 2
Plan relating to operating expenses and operatingregs were not met.

On September 5, 2012, the Board of Directors of Gleenpany approved the recommendation of the ConatiensCommittee that tl
expenses incurred in connection with the proxy esinand related litigation and the separation effthamer Chief Executive Officer of t
Company should be excluded from the operating esgeand operating earnings metrics under the 2@ Phe Compensation Commit
and the Board did not believe that costs relateithiége unusual nooperating events should be included for purposessafuating operatir
performance under the 2012 Plan.

On this adjusted basis, operating earnings wernertiian those of the 2011 fiscal year and mettdnget goal under the 2012 Plan,
operating expenses met the maximum, distinguisheggt goal under the 2012 Plan, resulting in thardwf 136,285 shares, as follows:
Herbert- 96,201 shares; and Mr. DeMedio, Chief rame Officer- 40,084 shares.

Mr. Herberts November 30, 2011 employment agreement with thgany provides that he will receive a cash borfu$30,000 if thi
Company would achieve the minimum threshold taggetls under the 2012 Plan, of $50,000 if the Compaould achieve the target go
under the 2012 Plan, and of $75,000 if the Compaoyld achieve the maximum distinguished target gomider the 2012 Plan. Basec
performance against the 2012 Plan, on the adjusteid approved by the Board of Directors descréiese, Mr. Herbert earned a cash bt
of $40,000.

On September 5, 2012, at the recommendation ofCiiapensation Committee, the Board of Directors tatbphe Fiscal Year 20
Performance Share Plan (the “2013 Plan”) covefirtg@ompanys executive officers. Under the 2013 Plan, eacltiee officer would b
awarded common stock in the event the Company aehieertain performance goals during the fiscal geding June 30, 2013. The met
under the 2013 Plan as well as the relative waightiof these metrics are identical to those orlbirset forth in the 2012 Plan. No awa
would be made under the 2013 Plan if either (i)enofi the minimum, threshold performance target gdelve been achieved, or (ii
operating earnings for the 2013 fiscal year areagotal or better than those during the 2012 figeat.
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If all of the target goals are achieved under tB@3?Plan, the executive officers would be awardeates having the following value:
Herbert — $275,000; and Mr. DeMedio 40®,000. If all of the minimum, threshold performartarget goals are achieved, the exec
officers would be awarded shares having the folhgwalue: Mr. Herbert — $75,000; and Mr. DeMedi®25,000. If all of the maximur
distinguished performance target goals are achjethedexecutive officers would be awarded sharesgahe following value: Mr. Herbert
$550,000; and Mr. DeMedio -280,000. If the actual results for the fiscal yaee less than the target goals (but greater thamihimum
threshold performance target goals), each execwiudd be awarded a lesser pro rata number of staré if actual results are greater
the target goals, but less than the maximum, djstghed goals, each executive would be awardeeateyr pro rata number of shares.
Compensation Committee believes that the attainmktiie target goals under the 2013 Plan wouldesgrt a significant achievement
management. For the fiscal year ended June 30, #d Eompany recorded stock compensation expdr&Eql67 for the vesting of 11,0
shares of Common Stock8;142 shares to Mr. Herbert and 2,874 shares tdkledio. Final settlement of the award is expeétedccur it
September 2013.

On September 5, 2012, the Board also approvedemomrmendation that Mr. Herbert would earn a castudmof $30,000 if he achiev
certain minimum threshold target goals during tRd2fiscal year, of $50,000 if he achieved targedlg, and of $75,000 if he achie’
maximum distinguished target goals during the 2fid&al year. The specific strategic performancelgta be utilized for purposes of I
Herberts bonus plan were established by the Compensationn@ttee and approved by the Board. Mr. Herberhedra cash bonus
$51,250 under this plan.

All cash bonuses earned by Messrs. Lawlor and Sagadng the 2011 and 2012 fiscal years were bagea achievement by the Comp
of target goals and, to a lesser extent, attainroémtersonal performance goals. For the fiscal yaating June 30, 2013, all of the ¢
bonuses to be earned by Messsrs. Lawlor and Sagadyased upon the attainment of target goalséZtmpany.

Other Benefits

During the 2011, 2012 and 2013 fiscal years, onnethexecutive officers were entitled to the heedtre coverage, group insurance and «
employee benefits provided to all of our employeks.of September 2012, we recommended to the Baeard,the Board approved,

discontinuance of the automobile allowance, léegn supplemental disability coverage and life rasge coverage previously provided to
named executive officers which were in excess of¢hgenerally available to the Compangmployees. In this regard, in November 2
Mr. Herbert's automobile allowance was discontinaed the Company ceased paying the premiums fapplemental londgerm disability
policy for Mr. Herbert over and above the existiagg-term group disability plan of the Company. On Seyier 5, 2012, the Board appro'
our recommendation that the Company discontinuengay of the premiums for a life insurance policyhna face amount of $1,500,000
Mr. Herberts life provided by the Company. On September 5,220@fe Board also approved our recommendation ttetCompan
discontinue payment of the automobile allowances dach of Messrs. DeMedio, Lawlor and Sagady arstoditinue the longerm
supplemental disability policy and life insuranadigy on Mr. DeMedios life provided by the Company. As discussed abthespase salari
of the named executive officers were increasedrbgraount equal to the annual payments attributaltleese discontinued fringe benefits.

Impact of Taxation and Accounting Considerations orExecutive Compensation

The Compensation Committee and the Board of Dirsdtike into account tax and accounting conseq@eanfcine compensation program
weigh these factors when setting total compensaimhdetermining the individual elements of anyceiee officer's compensation package.

The restricted stock awards to our executive affiaender our stock incentive plans, including th@2 Plan and 2013 Plan, provide thal
executive is responsible for any withholding or qmdiytax obligations incurred by the Company in geation with the award, and that
executive may satisfy any such obligations by eithe delivery to the Company of a cash paymengakgputhe obligations, or the assignn
or transfer to the Company of shares having a veduml to the obligations, or such other methotighall be satisfactory to the Company.

In order to have any benefits payable to the exeeulfficers under their supplemental long termadisty policies not be included in th
taxable income, the Compensation Committee recordeteto the Board of Directors that the premiumsetoee should be included in th
wages from the Company, and such a change wasdettlin each of their September 2011 employmentrachtevisions. As discuss
above, the supplemental long-term disability polioy Mr. Herbert was discontinued in November 2Giid the supplemental lorigrr
disability policy for Mr. DeMedio was discontinu@d September 2012.
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth certain informatiatith respect to compensation paid or accrued byCii@pany during the fiscal years en
June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 to each of the exeaifficers and employees of the Company nameovb€inamed executive officers”):

Name anc

Principal Fiscal Stock All Other

Position Year Salary Bonus (2) Awards (3) Compensation (: Total
Stephen P. Herbe 201 $ 341,22° $ 51,25( $ 111,39¢ $ 10,00 $ 513,87¢
Chief Executive Officer, Preside 201z $ 332,24¢ $ 40,00 $ 391,30( $ 18,74¢ $  782,29:
& Chairman of the Board (1 2011 $ 320,00( $ -$ 176,25( $ 24,87: $ 521,12
David M. DeMedia 201 $ 234,26! $ -3 4,02¢ $ 4,81: $ 243,10:
Chief Financial Office 201z $ 219,61 $ - $ 13454: $ 18,19( $ 372,34

2011 $ 195,00( $ -3 58,75( $ 19,17F $ 272,92!

Cary Sagad 201: $ 198,20( $ 42.06: $ -9 12,10 $ 252,36:
Sr. VP Product Management 201z $ 193,06t $ 64,68( $ - $ 16,01¢ $ 273,76:
Network Solutions 2011 $ 188,60¢ $ 88,68¢ $ -9 10,44« $  287,73¢
Michael Lawlor 201z $ 179,80( $ 62,93( $ - $ 10,00 $ 252,73(
VP of Sales & Busines 201z $ 173,74 $ 96,32( $ 36,20 $ 15,197 $ 321,46
Developmen 2011 $ 166,077 $ 148,17( $ -3 10,28! $ 324,53

(1) Mr. Herbert was formerly the CompasyPresident and Chief Operating Officer throughoBet 4, 2011 and interim Chairman
Chief Executive Officer from October 5 through Noueer 28, 2011. Mr. Herbert was named Chairman ef Bloard, Chie
Executive Officer and President on November 30,12

(2 Represents cash bonuses earned upon such’sepssformance during the fiscal year or upon thairanent by the Company
certain target goal:

3) In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, the priceoof common stock on the grant date equals thet giate fair value of the
stock awards. During fiscal year 2013, represdjijtshares with a value of $100,000 granted to Nerbert on September 5, 2(
which vest upon attainment of certain closing @ioé our common stock, (ii) 8,142 shares with aigadf $11,399 awarded to I
Herbert under the 2013 Plan, and (iii) 2,874 shaii#fs a value of $4,024 awarded to Mr. DeMedio urtthe 2013 Plar

4 Represents during the 2013 fiscal year, matchirigldCcontributions for Mr. Herbert, auto allowanfoe Mr. DeMedio (which wa

discontinued on September 5, 2012), matching 40&@tributions and auto allowance for Mr. Lawlowt@ allowance we
discontinued on September 5, 2012), and matchidgkii@ontributions for Mr. Sagad

53



Grants Of Plan-Based Awards Table

The table below summarizes the amounts of awamsten to our named executive officers and emplogeeisg the fiscal year ended Ji

30, 2013:
All Other
Stock
Awards:
Number Grant Date
Estimated Future Payouts Under of Share Fair Value o
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Estimated Future Payouts Under  of Stock and
Awards Equity Incentive Plan Awarc Stock or  Option (4)
Thresholt Maximun  Threshol Maximunr
Target Target
Name GrantDat (%) ($) $ (#) (#) (#) Units (#) Awards ($)
Stephen P. Herbe Q) 9/5/201: - - - 53,57 196,42¢ 392,85 - % 11,39¢
(2) 9/5/201:  30,00( 50,00( 75,00( - - - - $ -
(3) 9/5/201: - - - - 71,42¢ = - $ 100,00(
David M. DeMedic (1)  9/5/201: - - - 17,857 71,42¢ 142,85 - 9 4,02
Cary Sagad - - - - - - - 9 =
Michael Lawlor - - - - - - - $ -

@

)

®3)

(4)

Represents awards granted by the Board of Directodgr the Fiscal Year 2013 Performance Share Flaa plan provides for tl
award of shares having the following value if afirgets are achieved; Mr. Herbert - $275,000 andDéMedio - $00,000. If al
minimum, threshold targets are achieved; Mr. Herbe75,000 and Mr. DeMedio -2$,000; and if all maximum distinguist
targets are achieved; Mr. Herbert - $550,000 andD¥Medio - £00,000. The number of shares in the table abgwesents tr
total dollar value of the award divided by the drdate value of the share. Mr. Herbert was awaRj&d2 shares and Mr. DeMe
was awarded 2,874 shares under the |

Represents the payment to Mr. Herbert of a casludofi $30,000 if Mr. Herbert would achieve certaimimum threshold targ
goals, of $50,000 if Mr. Herbert would achieve &rgoals, and of $75,000 if Mr. Herbert would agkienaximum distinguisht
target goals during the 2013 fiscal ye

Represents 71,429 shares of non-vested constock granted to Mr. Herbert under the Comparsgock incentive plan having
value of $100,000. These shares would become vegted the attainment of various closing pricestfarty consecutive tradir
days at any time during the three year period Valg the date of the award. Ottgrd of the shares would become vested i
closing price would be at least $2.00 per share;tbind of the shares would become vested if theitpgprice would be at lee
$2.25 per share, and «third of the shares would become vested if theitpprice would be at least $2.50 per st

Amount represents the grant date fair value detexchin accordance with ASC 71

Option Exercises And Stock Vested

The following table sets forth information regamlioptions exercised and shares of common stockiracqupon vesting by our namn
executive officers and employees during the figealr ended June 30, 2013:

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of
Shares Value Shares Value

Acquired on  Realized or Acquired or Realized or
Name Exercise (# Exercise ($ Vesting (#) Vesting ($)
Stephen P. Herbert ( - 3 - 114,09 $ 236,58t
David M. DeMedio (2 - 9 - 19,54( $ 35,00(
Cary Sagad' - - - $ -
Michael Lawlor (3) - - 20,00C $ 36,80(
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(1) Represents 33,333 shares valued at $1.29 per #tareested on September 27, 2012, 23,810 shahesdvat $2.58 per share t
vested on March 7, 2013, 23,810 shares valued.&8%#r share that vested on April 10, 2013, 25&tfres valued at $2.31
share that vested April 14, 2013 and 8,142 shaakeed at $1.74 per share that vested on June 3G,

(2) Represents 8,333 shares valued at $1.29 per dhatredsted on September 27, 2012, 8,333 sharesdvalu$2.31 per share t
vested on April 14, 2013 and 2,874 shares valu&d a4 that vested on June 30, 2(

3 Represents 5,000 shares valued at $1.26, $1.78R $2d $1.74 per share that vested on each of i8bpte30, 2012, December
2012, March 31, 2013 and June 30, 2013, respegti

Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows information regarding xeecised stock options and unvested equity awardated to the named execut
officers as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013:

Option Awards Stock Awards
Market
Number of Number of Value of
Securities Shares or Shares or
Underlying Units of Units of
Unexercised Option Option Stock That Stock That
Options(#) Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not
Name Exercisable Price($) Date Vested (# Vested($
Stephen P. Herbe - 33,33¢(1) $ 58,00:
23,80¢(2) $ 41,42¢
David M. DeMedia - 8,33¢(1) $ 14,50:
Cary Sagad: - - % =
Michael Lawlor - - % =

(&N Reflects shares granted under amendments dateenfept27, 2011, to employment agreements. Shasterneseptember 27, 20
The closing market price on June 30, 2013, or $fefdshare, was used in the calculation of maréletey

(2) Reflects shares granted under a Special Equity #aBeptember 5, 2012. The remaining shares vgdtrap prior to September
2015, and at such time the Comp’s common stock would close above $2.50 per shaithifty consecutive trading day

Executive Employment Agreements
Stephen P. Herbert

On September 24, 2009, Mr. Herbert and the Compatgred into an Amended and Restated Employmergehgent which replaced

prior employment agreement. The Agreement extetkdederm of Mr. Herbers employment with the Company from June 30, 201l
September 30, 2012, and automatically continuech fyear to year thereafter unless terminated akeokhd of the original term or any s
one year renewal period by the Company or Mr. Herb at least 90-daysiotice. Mr. Herbert was granted 9,000 shares ofnaomstoc|
under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan which vestefblémwys: 3,000 on October 1, 2009; 3,000 on Afitil2010; and 3,000 on September
2010. The agreement continued Mr. Herlselise salary at $320,000 per annum. The Compaagditp obtain and pay the premiums 1
term life insurance policy in the amount of $1,50® on the life of Mr. Herbert while he is employeyl the Company. Mr. Herbert has
right to designate the beneficiary of the policheTCompany agreed to obtain and pay the premiuma $upplemental long term disabi
policy covering Mr. Herbert over and above the &xgslongterm group disability plan of the Company. If haltbecome disabled wh
employed by the Company, the policy would providerhonthly disability coverage of up to 65% of hienthly base compensation pay:
to age 65 or death.
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On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. Herbert ezdeinto an amendment to the employment agreerfibatamendment extended the t
of Mr. Herberts employment with the Company from September 3@22mntil June 30, 2014. In connection with the admeent, and i
recognition of his dedicated and valuable serviceghe Company and extending the term of his empémtnagreement, Mr. Herbert v
issued 75,000 shares of common stock under the 8@ddk Incentive Plan which vest as follows: 25,000April 14, 2011; 25,000 on Ap
14, 2012; and 25,000 on April 14, 2013.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Hedrgdred into a second amendment to his employngreement. The amendm
eliminated the provisions of his prior agreemenicliobligated the Company to pay any excise taxgbu@table to any excess paract
payments which would be received by Mr. Herbertrugite occurrence of a USA Transaction as well asGbmpanys related obligation
make tax gross up payments. The new agreementtised that the premiums for Mr. Herbsrsupplemental long term disability pol
being paid by the Company would now be includetlinwages and be taxable to him. In exchange forirting the excise tax and rela
gross up provisions, the Company issued an aggreddt00,000 shares of common stock to Mr. Herbeder its stock incentive plans wh
vest as follows: 33,333 on the date the agreemastsigned by Mr. Herbert and the Company; 33,33fherfirst anniversary of the date
signing; and 33,334 on the second anniversaryeoflttie of signing.

On November 30, 2011, the Company and Mr. Herbrgdred into an Amended and Restated EmploymeniNamdCompetition Agreeme
that replaced his prior employment agreement with Company and pursuant to which he was appointesir@an and Chief Executi
Officer. The agreement provides for an initial tecontinuing through January 1, 2013, which is awatteoally renewed for consecutive (
year periods unless terminated by either Mr. Hertbethe Company upon at least 90 ¢ notice prior to the end of the initial term or amye
year extension thereof. The agreement continuesxisting compensation and fringe benefits recelwedir. Herbert under Section 2 of
prior employment agreement except that (i) his lsadary is $341,227 which is equal to the basesalader his prior employment agreen
plus an amount equal to the cost to the Compartheotar allowance and supplemental disability iasae coverage provided to him ur
his prior employment agreement; (ii) the car alloe@and supplemental disability insurance covetiagiehad been provided to him undet
prior employment agreement have been discontinaedi;(iii) he is eligible for a cash bonus as désttiin the next sentence. The agreel
provides for the payment to Mr. Herbert of a cashus of $30,000 if the Company would achieve athef minimum threshold performar
target goals under the Fiscal Year 2012 Perform&tege Plan, of $50,000 if the Company would a@h&l of the target performance g¢
under the plan, and of $75,000 if the Company wadkieve all of the maximum distinguished perforomtarget goals under the plan.
Company has agreed to pay the premiums for a téenmburance policy in the amount of $1,500,000tl life of Mr. Herbert while he
employed by the Company. Mr. Herbert has the rightesignate the beneficiary of the policy.

On September 5, 2012, Mr. Herbsrbase salary was increased by an amount equs emhual premiums being paid by the Company f
life insurance policy on Mr. Herbert's life that svheing discontinued.

David M. DeMedio

On April 12, 2005, Mr. DeMedio and the Company esdeinto an employment agreement pursuant to whéclvas employed as the Ci
Financial Officer of the Company. In the event thaiSA Transaction shall occur, then Mr. DeMedis ttee right to terminate his agreen
upon 30 days’ notice to the Company.

On September 24, 2009, the Company agreed to cdntaipay the premiums for a term life insurancécgah the amount of $750,000 on
life of Mr. DeMedio while he is employed by the Cpamy. Mr. DeMedio has the right to designate theefieiary of the policy. Th
Company has agreed to obtain and pay the premianes Supplemental long term disability policy caagrMr. DeMedio over and above
existing longterm group disability plan of the Company. If healktbecome disabled while employed by the Compaing, policy woul
provide for monthly disability coverage of up ta%®f his monthly base compensation payable to &gar @leath.

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMedio emtleinto an additional amendment to the employnagmeement. The agreem
extended the term of Mr. DeMed@employment with the Company from June 30, 201l dwne 30, 2014, and will automatically conti
from year to year thereafter unless terminatedfdakeoend of the original term or any such one yeaewal period by the Company or
DeMedio by at least 90-daysiotice. In connection with the amendment, and togaition of his dedicated and valuable servicehi
Company and extending the term of his employmemtergent, Mr. DeMedio was issued 25,000 shares wintan stock under the 20
Stock Incentive Plan which vest or vested as fodlo8/333 on April 14, 2011; 8,333 on April 14, 20aAd 8,334 on April 14, 2013.

Effective July 1, 2011, Mr. DeMedio’s annual baatasy was increased to $220,000.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMexdiered into another amendment to his employmeeeatent pursuant to which |
DeMedio was granted an aggregate of 25,000 sh&resnumon stock as a bonus for his performance dutie last six months of the 2(
fiscal year which vest as follows: 8,333 on theedzftsigning the amendment; 8,333 on the first\amsary of such signing date; and 8,33
the second anniversary of such signing date. MM&#o also agreed that the premiums for his supeteai long term disability policy bei
paid by the Company would now be included in hig@gmand be taxable to him.
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On September 5, 2012, Mr. DeMedidiase salary was increased by the annual amotim cfr allowance, supplemental disability insae
policy and life insurance policy that were beingadintinued.

Cary Sagady

On July 2, 2008, the Company and Mr. Sagady entietedan employment agreement pursuant to whichChvapany continued to empl
Mr. Sagady as a Senior Vice President, Product Dpueent for a one-year term. Mr. Sagal¥mployment with the Company sl
automatically continue for consecutive oyear periods unless terminated by either party upmiice of at least 60 days prior to the en
each one-year extension. Effective January 1, 20t1Sagadys base salary has been $192,500 per annum. Inaadditr. Sagady is eligib
to earn an annual discretionary bonus in the mamimamount of 60% of his annual base salary based dtipe Company and hi
performance. Upon renewal of his employment agre¢ineApril 2009, Mr. Sagady was issued an addald000 shares of common st
that vested quarterly in fiscal year 2010. Mr. $hgia also entitled to be covered by all standairtjé and employee benefits made avalil
to other employees of the Company, including mddicedl dental insurance, paid vacation and holidayd01(k) plan and a longsmn
disability plan.

On September 5, 2012, Mr. Sagady's base salarynee=ased by the annual amount of the car allow#ratevas being discontinued.

During April 2013, Mr. Sagady provided notice ofrténation of his employment agreement, and his eyment agreement expired on J
30, 2013. Subsequent to that date, Mr. Sagady drataed to serve as an employee of the Compartythit same title and compensatio
provided prior to the expiration.

Michael Lawlor

On June 7, 2010, the Company and Mr. Lawlor entaredan employment agreement pursuant to whictCthipany employed Mr. Lawl
as a Senior Vice President, Sales and Businesslidpenent through June 30, 2011. The Company issuddrt Lawlor an incentive bonus
$10,000 upon the signing of his employment agre¢med on the renewal of the agreement, on AprdQiL1, Mr. Lawlor was issued 10,(
shares of common stock. Mr. Lawlor's employmentwthe Company shall automatically continue for emusive oneyear periods unle
terminated by either party upon notice of at l&dstiays prior to the end of each gremr extension. In addition, Mr. Lawlor is eligikie ear
an annual discretionary bonus in the maximum amofit©0% of his annual base salary based upon tinep@nys and his performance. I
Lawlor is also entitled to be covered by all stadd&iinge and employee benefits made available tteeroemployees of the Compa
including medical and dental insurance, paid vacasind holidays, a 401(k) plan and a long-termhdlisa plan.

On April 27, 2012, the Company and Mr. Lawlor eatkinto a first amendment to the employment agreénide agreement extended
term of Mr. Lawlors employment with the Company from June 30, 201# dune 30, 2013, and will automatically continiuem year t
year thereafter unless terminated as of the enbeobriginal term or any such one year renewalogeby the Company or Mr. Lawlor by
least 60-days’ notice. In connection with the ammeedt, Mr. Lawlors base salary was set at $179,800 per year andabeawarded ¢
incentive bonus of 20,000 shares of Common Stodkiwest as follows: 5,000 shares on Septembe2@IR; 5,000 shares on Decembel
2012; 5,000 shares on March 31, 2013; and 5,00@slwen June 30, 2013.

On September 5, 2012, Mr. Lawlor’s base salaryiwa®ased by the annual amount of the car allow#tevas being discontinued.
POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE OF CO NTROL

The employment agreements of our executive offioechide provisions for the payment and/or the fmion of benefits to the executi
upon termination of employment under certain caod# or if a successor to the Companliusiness or assets does not agree to assui
perform his employment agreement as a conditidghéaonsummation of a USA Transaction.

The term “USA Transaction” means: (i) the acquisitof fifty-one percent or more of the then outstanding vaigurities entitled to vc
generally in the election of directors of the Compay any person, entity or group, or (ii) the ap@l by the shareholders of the Compar
a reorganization, merger, consolidation, liquidatior dissolution of the Company, or the sale, dfan lease or other disposition of al
substantially all of the assets of the Company(jidra change in the composition of the Board dfe@tors of the Company over a periot
twelve (12) months or less such that the contindiingctors fail to constitute a majority of the Bda
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Mr. Herberts employment agreement provides that if Mr. Herleyuld terminate his employment with the Companydood reason (.
defined in the agreement), or if the Company wdetdhinate his employment without cause (as defindtle agreement), or if the Compi
would provide Mr. Herbert with a notice of noerewal of his employment agreement, then the Cagpeuld pay to him a lump sum eq
to two times his base salary on or before the taeastron of his employment. The term “good reas@s defined in the agreement, inclu
(A) a material breach of the terms of the agreerbgrthe Company; (B) the assignment by the Comparyr. Herbert of duties in any w
materially inconsistent with his authorities, dstier responsibilities, or a material reductionatteration in the nature or status of
authority, duties, or responsibilities as the Chisdecutive Officer of the Company; (C) the Compaaguces Mr. Herbed’ annual ba:
salary; or (D) a material reduction by the Compamnthe kind or level of employee benefits to whih Herbert is entitled immediately pr
to such reduction with the result that his ovebalhefit package is significantly reduced unleshdadure to continue a plan, policy, prac
or arrangement pertains to all plan participanteegally. As a condition to Mr. Herbert receivingyapayments or benefits upon
termination of his employment for good reason, Merbert shall have executed and delivered (andrenaiked) a release of any and
claims, suits, or causes of action against the Gmyjand its affiliates in form reasonably accemtablthe Company.

The agreement also provides that as a conditidgheo€onsummation of a USA Transaction, the succeeshe Companyg business or ass
would agree to assume and perform Mr. Herbert'sleynpent agreement. If any such successor wouldlacto, Mr. Herbers employmer
would terminate on the date of consummation ofUls&\ Transaction, and the Company would pay to Merliért a lump sum equal to t
times his base salary on or before the terminatfdris employment.

If Mr. Herbert's employment had been terminated as of June 3@, @@ien the closing price per share was $1.74)y(him for good reasac
or (ii) by the Company without cause, or (iii) ifsaiccessor to the Compasybusiness or assets had not agreed to assumesdachphis
employment agreement as a condition to the constimmeaf a USA Transaction, then Mr. Herbert woult/a been entitled to receive: (a
aggregate cash payment of twice his annual baseysat $682,454; (b) an aggregate of 33,334 shamr@sously granted to him under
employment agreement, which would become autoniigticasted as of the date of termination, with &ueaof $58,001; and (c) an aggre
of 23,809 shares previously granted to him on Sepée 2, 2012, which would automatically become e sts of the date of termination, v
a value of $41,428.

If Mr. DeMedio’s employment with the Company had been terminayethé Company without cause as of June 30, 20K3employmer
agreement provides that the Company would pay lhéasturance premiums for a one year period follgni@rmination in the aggreg:
amount of $16,824. The aforesaid premium amoubésed on an estimated monthly premium of $1,402.

Compensation Of Directors

Members of the Board of Directors receive cashemdty compensation for serving on the board cators, as determined from time to t
by the Compensation Committee with subsequent apptbereof by the board of directors.

Director Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the compensation eamnpdid in cash by the Company to nemployee Directors during the fiscal year er
June 30, 2013.

Fees Earne
or Paid in Stock Awards
Name Cash($)(2 (A Total($)
Deborah G. Arnolc $ 30,00C $ - $ 30,00(
Steven D. Barnha $ 75,000 $ - $ 75,00(
Joel Brooks $ 30,00 $ - $ 30,00¢
Albin F. Moschne! $ 30,00 $ 14500 $ 44.50(
Frank A. Petito, Il $ 30,00 $ - $ 30,00(
Jack E. Prict $ 35,000 $ - $ 35,00(
William J. Reilly, Jr. (1) $ 40,000 $ 14,50 $ 54,50(
William J. Schoch (1 $ 30,00 $ 1450 $ 44,50(

(1) Appointed as a Director effective July 20.

(2) During fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and indudéhe above table, we paid the following feesrmuthe fiscal year
e Director: each Director received $20,0
e Lead Independent Director: Mr. Barnhart received,$a0.

e Audit Committee: each of Messrs. Barnhart, Broaks Reilly received $10,000. Mr. Price received $9,!
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3)

e Compensation Committee: each of Messrs. MoschritoRand Price received $10,000. Mr. Barnhartikeze$2,500

e Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee: eadhs. Arnold, Messrs. Reilly and Schoch recei$dd),000. Eac
Messrs. Barnhart and Price received $2,!

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, anldidied in the above table, the following directolexcted to receive their fees, ¢
portion thereof, in the Company’s Common Stocken lof cash:

e Ms. Arnold and Messrs. Moschner and Petito eacttedeto receive 17,436 shares for $30,000 of fidesBarnhart electe
to receive 44,651 shares for $75,000 of fees; Mnho8h elected to receive 10,478 shares for $2508es; and Mr. Reill
elected to receive 4,405 shares for $10,000 of

Amounts represent the aggregate fair value of Com8tock granted to the members of our Board ofdirs during the year enc
June 30, 201:
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| tem 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management and Related Shareholder Matts.
Common Stock

The following table sets forth, as of June 30, 20h® beneficial ownership of the common stock adheof the Compang’directors ar
executive officers, the other employees namedénstrmmary compensation table set forth above, #sasdy the Compang’ directors ar
executive officers as a group. Except as set foelow, the Company is not aware of any beneficvaher of more than five percent of
common stock. Except as otherwise indicated, theg2my believes that the beneficial owners of thmroon stock listed below, based
information furnished by such owners, have soleatment and voting power with respect to such shateject to community property le
where applicable:

Number of Shares
Common Stock

Beneficially Percent of
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Owned(2) Class
Deborah G. Arnold 23,12%3) *

9704 Clos du Lac Circle

Loomis, California 9563

Steven D. Barnhart 192,85.(4) *
1 W. Onwentsia Road

Lake Forest, lllinois 6004

Joel Brooks 35,00( *
303 George Street, Suite 140

New Brunswick, New Jersey 089

David M. DeMedio 120,35{(5) *
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193¢

Stephen P. Herbert 435,77(6) 1.31%
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193¢

Michael Lawlor 35,55: *
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193t

Albin F. Moschner 462,68(7) 1.3&%
1022 Aynsley Avenue

Lake Forest, lllinois 6004

Frank A. Petito, IlI 33,1248) *

1111 ElImwood Avenue

Wilmette, lllinois 60091

Jack E. Price 10,00( @
12942 NE 24th Street

Bellevue, Washington 980(

William J. Reilly, Jr. 25,60%9)

1280 South Concord Road

West Chester, Pennsylvania 19:

Cary Sagady 5,05( *
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193¢

William J. Schoch 16,16%(10)

300 Montgomery Street, #400

San Francisco, California 941

S.A.\V.E. Partners, IV, LLC 2,303,36{(11) 6.91%
500 West Putnam Avenue, Suite 400

Greenwich, Connecticut 068:

All Directors and Executive Officers 1,354,68 4.04%
As a Group (10 person

* Less than one percent (1'
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(1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordancth hie rules of the Securities and Exchange Conmonissnd derives from eith
voting or investment power with respect to secesitiShares of Common Stock issuable upon conveo$ite Series A Preferred Sto
or shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercisaofints currently exercisable, or exercisabl@iwisixty days of June 30, 2013,
deemed to be beneficially owned for purposes he

(2) The percentage of common stock beneficially owsdubised on 33,346,893 shares outstanding as 080,213

(3) Includes 3,334 shares granted to Ms. Arnold asn-employee director of the Company as of April 1, 2@hich vest on April 1, 201+

(4) Includes 32,538 shares underlying common stockamést

(5) Includes 8,334 shares of common stock granted &sember 27, 2011 which vest on September 23..

(6) Includes 32,010 shares of common stock beméfiowned by Mr. Herbers child, 27,440 shares of common stock benefic@aliyed b
his spouse. Includes 33,334 shares of common gi@eked as of September 27, 2011 which vest ore8dgar 27, 2013. Includes23,¢
shares which vest upon the attainment of at lea€i0$per share closing price for thirty consecutiagling days at any time prior
September 5, 201

(7) Includes 132,100 shares underlying common stockants and 1,163 shares underlying preferred stackudes 6,667 shares grante
Mr. Moschner as a noemployee director of the Company as of August D0, 22which vest as follows: 3,333 on August 10, 28ht
3,334 on August 10, 201

(8) Includes 3,334 shares granted to Mr. Petito as-employee director of the Company as of April 1, 2@dich vest on April 1, 201

(9) Includes 100 shares of common stock beneficiallpedvby Mr. Reilly’s child. Includes 6,667 sharesrged to Mr. Reilly as a non-
employee director of the Company as of August Da22wvhich vest as follows: 3,333 on August 10, 2848 3,334 on August 10, 201

(10) Includes 6,667 shares granted to Mr. Schoch ama@&mployee director of the Company as of August 10,22which vest as follow
3,333 on August 10, 2013 and 3,334 on August 104z

(11) Based upon an amended Schedule 13D filed with doeir@ies and Exchange Commission on January 183,28.A.V.E. Partners, I
LLC (“SAVE") is a limited liability company, the managing memioérwhich is Locke Partners | LLC, a limited lialbjl compan
(“Locke”). Each of Bradley M. Tirpak and Craig Whdmas are coaanaging members of Locke and, by virtue of thelationship witl
Locke, share the power to vote and dispose offthees beneficially owned by SAV

Preferred Stock

Other than the 6,000 shares of preferred stock floéalyy owned by Mr. Moschner, there were no slsacd preferred stock that we
beneficially owned as of June 30, 2013 by the Comisadirectors or named executive officers.
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| tem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdmns, and Director Independence.
REVIEW, APPROVAL OR RATIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS WI TH RELATED PERSONS

Our policy is that all related party transactiowhjch are required to be disclosed under Iltem 40Regulation SK promulgated under tl
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are to bewedeand approved by the Audit Committee for anysjiids conflicts of interest. This poli
is evidenced in the Charter of the Audit Committééhe Board of Directors of the Company.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The Board of Directors has determined that Deb@aArnold, Steven D. Barnhart, Joel Brooks, AlbinMoschner, Frank A. Petito, Ill, Je
E. Price, William J. Reilly, Jr., and William J. I8ch, which members constitute a majority of therently serving Board of Directors, i
independent in accordance with the applicablenlistitandards of The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC.

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit ComerittNominating and Corporate Governance Commétag Compensation Committee.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors prabeconsists of Mr. Brooks (Chairman), Mr. PriaedaMr. Reilly. The Audit Committe
recommends the engagement of the Commaimgependent accountants and is primarily resptn&r approving the services performec
the Company'’s independent accountants, for revigwaimd evaluating the Compasyaccounting principles, reviewing the independeof
independent auditors, and reviewing the adequacy edfectiveness of the Compasyinternal controls. The Audit Committee oper
pursuant to a charter that was last amended amatedsby the Board of Directors on April 11, 20@6¢opy of which is accessible on
Company’s website, www.usatech.com

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Direcqmesently consists of Mr. Moschner (Chairman), Barnhart and Mr. Petito. T
Board of Directors has determined that each ofctireent members of the Compensation Committeedsg@andent in accordance with
applicable listing standards of The Nasdaqg StockketalLLC. The Committee reviews and recommends earegtion and compensat
changes for the executive officers of the Compangl administers the Comparsy'stock option and restricted stock grant planse
Compensation Committee operates pursuant to aectthet was adopted by the Board in September 28@7amended in May 2013, a ¢
of which is accessible on the Company’s websitewwngatech.com

The Nominating and Corporate Governance CommittébeoBoard of Directors presently consists of Mmold (Chairman), Mr. Reilly ar
Mr. Schoch. The Board of Directors has determitmed ¢ach of the current members of the Nominatimh@orporate Governance Commi
is independent in accordance with the applicallinty standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC. Chenmittee recommends to the er
Board of Directors for selection any nominees fioector. The Nominating and Corporate Committeeratgs pursuant to a charter that
adopted by the Board of Directors on October 2622@ copy of which is accessible on the Compawglssite, www.usatech.com
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| tem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and 2@&2 in connection with services rendered by Md@y LLP were as set forth below:

Fiscal Fiscal

2013 2012
Audit Fees $ 211,18t $ 190,29(
Audit-Related Fee 10,90¢ 7,21°
Tax Fees - 8,50(
All Other Fees - -
Total $ 222,09 $ 206,00:

Audit fees consisted of fees for the audit of onnwal financial statements and review of quartéfigncial statements as well as serv
normally provided in connection with statutory amegjulatory filings or engagements, consents anidtasse with and reviews of Comp:
documents filed with the Securities and Exchange@ission.

Audit related fees were primarily incurred in coatien with our equity offerings, and fees in cont@t with attending the annt
shareholders meeting.

Tax fees related to the review of our analysishef timing and extent to which the Company canagtifuture tax deductions in any ye
which may be limited by provisions of the InterRdvenue Code regarding changes in ownership obcatipns (i.e. IRS Code Section 382).

AUDIT COMMITTEE PRE-APPROVAL POLICY
The Audit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve ailldit and permissible naaidit services provided by the independent regidt@ublic

accounting firm on a case-by-case basis.
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P ART IV

| tem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

Exhibit

Numbe Description

3.1

3.11

3.1.2

3.1.3**

3.14

3.15

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatiorhef Company filed January 26, 2004 (Incorporatedetigrence to Exhibit 3.1..
to Form 1+-QSB filed on February 12, 200:-

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Articlesnobrporation of the Company filed on March 1702Q(Incorporated
reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 to Forn-1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Artidléscorporation of the Company filed on December 2805 (Incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 3.1.2 to Forr-1 Registration Statement No. -130992).

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Articleodrporation of the Company filed on FebruarG06.

Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Articfemaorporation of the Company filed on July 25,0Z0 (Incorporated t
reference to Exhibit 3.1.3 to Form-K filed September 23, 200¢

Fifth Amendment to Amended and Restated Articlesngbrporation of the Company filed on March 6, 0Qincorporated &
reference to Exhibit 3.1.4 to Form-K filed September 23, 200¢

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company deated Bebruary 4, 2010 (Incorporated by referendéxoibit 3(ii) to Form10
Q/A filed on February 22, 201C

Warrant No.CR-001 dated March 16, 2011 in favoCodnshire Capital, L.P. (Incorporated by referetac&xhibit 4.1 of Form -
filed March 31, 2011)

Warrant No.CR302 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Freestone Athge Partners, LP (Incorporated by reference toldid.2 o
Form &1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR-003 dated March 16, 2011 in favolrefiuois Master Fund Ltd. (Incorporated by refeestww Exhibit 4.3 of Form S
1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR304 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Kingsbrook Gppnities Master Fund LP (Incorporated by refeeeta
Exhibit 4.4 of Form -1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR305 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Hudson Bay telafund Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibi o
Form &1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR306 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Cowen Overdpaastment LP (Incorporated by reference to Exhibh o
Form &1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR307 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Ramius Sellesity Fund LP (Incorporated by reference to Exhibv o
Form -1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CRAQO1 dated March 17, 2011 in favor of Chardan Capiarkets, LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibi8 o
Form &1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CRA-002 dated March 17, 2011 in favodohathan Schechter (Incorporated by referencexhibE 4.9 of Form St
filed March 31, 2011)

Warrant No.CRA-003 dated March 17, 2011 in favodo$eph Reda (Incorporated by reference to ExHihd of Form St filed
March 31, 2011)

Warrant No.CRA-004 dated March 17, 2011 in favoAdam Selkin (Incorporated by reference to Exhibitl of Form St filed
March 31, 2011)

Warrant dated January 1, 2013 in favor of Avidbatdtdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibil to Form & filed on
April 19, 2013).
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10.1  Agreement of Lease between Deerfield CorporateeZdnAssociates LP, as landlord, and the Companterant, dated March 2C
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to FAG-KSB filed on September 28, 200.

10.2 Amendment to Office Space Lease dated as of Ap@D05 by and between the Company and Deerfielgp@ate Center Associat
LP. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19.Fbrm &1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

10.3 Employment and NdBempetition Agreement between the Company and DelvibeMedio dated April 12, 2005 (Incorporatec
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Forn-1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

10.4 First Amendment to Employment and Neompetition Agreement between the Company and DEiidDeMedio dated May 1
2006 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.85éom 1(-Q filed on May 15, 2006

10.5 USA Technologies, Inc. 2012 Stock IncenfNan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10466rm 10K filed on September 2
2012).

10.6  USA Technologies, Inc. 2013 Stock Incentive Plan.

*%k

10.7 Second Amendment to Employment and Bompetition Agreement dated March 13, 2007, betwtbenCompany and David |
DeMedio (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 106@4orm &1 filed April 12, 2007)

10.8 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Conypand each of its officers and Directors (Incogted by reference to Exhi
10.1 to Form 1-Q filed May 14, 2007)

10.9 First Amendment to MasterCard PayPass Participafigreement dated August 17, 2007 between the CompllasterCar
International Incorporated and Coca Cola Enterprige. And Its Bottling Subsidiaries. (Incorporatadreference to Exhibit 10.26
Form 1(-K filed September 27, 2007

10.10 Third Amendment to Employment and Neompetition Agreement between the Company and DelvideMedio dated Septemt
22, 2008. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibi22to Form 1-K filed September 24, 200¢

10.11 Separation Agreement and Release between the Cygngrah George R. Jensen, Jr., dated October 14, @d@ttrporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Forr-K filed October 17, 2011

10.12 Securities Purchase Agreement dated March 14, p@tteen the Company and each of the Buyers (Incatgd by reference
Exhibit 10.1 of Form -K filed on March 14, 2011

10.13 Promotional Agreement between the Company and Wi§&A. Inc., dated October 12, 2011 (Portions @ txhibit were redact:
pursuant to a confidential treatment request) (ipoated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Post-EffecAmendment No.4 to Form S-
1 Registration Statement No. ~165516).

10.14 First Amendment to Visa Promotional Agreement betwihe Company and Visa U.S.A. Inc. dated as oblaat9, 2012 (Portions
this exhibit were redacted pursuant to a confidgénteatment request) (Incorporated by referencextuibit 10.32 to PosEffective
Amendment No.6 to Form-1 Registration Statement No. -165516).

10.15 Letter from the Company to David M. DeMedated September 24, 2009. (Incorporated by mne¢erto Exhibit 10.32 to Form 1K-
filed September 25, 200¢

10.16 Third Settlement Agreement dated March 2, 2012 bgt among USA Technologies, Inc., Shareholder Adtescdror Valu
Enhancement, Bradley M. Tirpak, Craig W. Thomas eexdiain other parties (Incorporated by referencExhibit 99.1 to Form &
filed on March 5, 2012’

10.17 Settlement and Release Agreement dated as of Augug012 by and among USA Technologies, Inc., @t@der Advocates F
Value Enhancement, Bradley M. Tirpak, Craig W. Thlsnand certain other parties (Incorporated by eefsr to Exhibit 99.1
Form &K filed on August 21, 2012

10.18 Amended and Restated Employment and Glumpetition Agreement between the Company and Steph Herbert dated Novem
30, 2011. (Incorporated by reference to ExhibitLl10.Form i-K filed December 5, 2011
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10.19

10.20

10.21*

10.22**

10.23**

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30**

10.31

21

23.1**

31.1**

31.2**

32**

K%k

Fifth Amendment to Employment and N@ompetition Agreement dated as of July 1, 2011 beiwthe Company and David
DeMedio. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10t8 Form 1-K filed September 27, 2011

Sixth Amendment to Employment and N@ompetition Agreement dated September 27, 2011dmtwthe Company and David
DeMedio. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2&8 Form 1-K filed September 27, 2011

Employment and Nc-Competition Agreement dated July 2, 2008 betweerCbmpany and Cary Sags
Employment and Nc-Competition Agreement dated June 7, 2010 betwetdmpany and Michael Lawl
First Amendment to Employment and M-competition Agreement dated April 27, 2012 betwt#enCompany and Michael Lawl

Second Amendment to Office Space Lease dated HewEmber 17, 2010 by and between the Company amettlyi Malvern, LF
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Fd€-Q filed on January 20, 201!

Loan and Security Agreement between the CompanyAaiabank Corporate Finance, a division of Avidbadlated as of June :
2012 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.460om 1(-K filed on September 25, 201.

First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dla@e of January 1, 2013 between the Company andbAmk Corpora
Finance, a division of Avidbank (Incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.1 to Forn-K filed on April 18, 2013)

Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemergddas of April 2, 2013 between the Company and Basdk Corporal
Finance, a division of Avidbank (Incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.2 to Forn-K filed on April 18, 2013)

Third Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dlaie of April 11, 2013 between the Company and Baik Corporal
Finance, a division of Avidbank (Incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.3 to Forn-K filed on April 18, 2013)

Fourth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemenediats of April 29, 2013 between the Company andiidamk Corpora
Finance, a division of Avidbank (Incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form -Q filed on May 14, 2013

Fifth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dai® of September 26, 2013 between the Companfédtank Corporate
Finance, a division of Avidban

Intellectual Property Security Agreement betweesn @ompany and Avidbank Corporate Finance, a divisibAvidbank, dated i
of June 21, 2012 (Incorporated by reference to lixhD.41 to Form 1-K filed on September 25, 201:

List of significant subsidiaries of the Companyddnporated by reference to Exhibit 21 to For-1 filed on March 16, 2010
Consent of McGladrey LLP, Independent Registerdai®éccounting Firm.

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursuaatRule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
Certifications of Chief Financial Officer pursudotRule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!

Certifications by the Chief Executive Officer anthi€f Financial Officer pursuant to 18 USC Secti@5Q, as adopted pursuan
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed Herewith.
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SCHEDULE Il

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013, 2012, AND 2011

Deductions
uncollectible
Balance at Additions receivables Balance
beginning charged to written off, net at end
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE of period earnings of recoveries of period
June 30, 2013 $ 25,000 $ (46,000 $ 42,000 $ (63,000
June 30, 2012 $ 113,000 $ (46,000 $ 42,000 $ 25,00(
June 30, 2011 $ 41,000 $ 92,00 $ 20,000.00 $ 113,00(
Balance a Additions Deductions Balance
beginning charged t¢  Shrinkage an at end
INVENTORY of period earnings obsolescenc of period
June 30, 2013 $ 712,000 $ 136,000 $ 52,000 $ 796,00(
June 30, 2012 $ 628,000 $ 136,000 $ 52,000 $ 712,00(
June 30, 2011 $ 741,000 $ 11,00C $ 124,000 $ 628,00(
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgjeaAct, the registrant has duly caused this reftte signed on its behalf by
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/ Stephen P. Herbe

Stephen P. Herbert, Chairm
and Chief Executive Office

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repog haen signed below by the following persons oraliedf the registrant and in t
capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES TITLE DATE
/s/ Stephen P. Herbe Chairman of the Board of Directors Septemiter2®13
Stephen P. Herbe and Chief Executive Office

(Principal Executive Officer
/s/ David M. DeMedic Chief Financial Officer (Principal Septembér, 2013
David M. DeMedic Accounting Officer)
/s/ Deborah G. Arnol Director September 30, 2013
Deborah G. Arnolc
/sl Steven D. Barnha Director September 30, 2013
Steven D. Barnha
/s/ Joel Brook: Director September 30, 2013
Joel Brooks
/s/ Albin F. Moschne Director September 30, 2013
Albin F. Moschne!
/sl Frank A. Petito, Il Director September 30, 2013
Frank A. Petito, IlI
/sl Jack Prici Director September 30, 2013
Jack Price
/s! William J. Reilly, Jr Director September 30, 2013

William J. Reilly, Jr.

/s/ William J. Schocl Director September 30, 2013
William J. Schoct
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Exhibit 3.1.3

PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE
CORPORATION BUREAU

Articles of Amendment-Domestic Corporation
(15 Pa.C.S)

Business Corporation (§ 1915)
O Nonprofit Corporation (§ 5915)

Name Document will be returned to the
CORPORATION SERVICE COMPAN® Name and address you enter to the
N
Fee: $70

In compliance with the requirements of the appliegivovisions (relating to articles of amendmetitg, undersigned, desiring to
amend its articles, hereby states that:

1. The name of the corporation
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

2. The (a) address of this corporation’s current tegéxl office in this Commonwealth or (b) name sfabmmercial registered office
provider and the county of venue is (the Departneherby authorized to correct the following infation to conform to the records
the Department)

(a) Number Stree City State Zip County
100 DEERFIELD LANE, SUITE 14 MALVERN PA 19355 CHESTER
(B) Name of Commercial Registered Office Provi

cl/o

| 3. The statute by or under which is incorporated: BUESS CORPORATION LAW OF 19¢ |

| 4.The date of its incorporation: JAN 16 18 |

5. Check, and if appropriate complete, one of theofeiihg.

O The amendment shall be effective upon these AstiofeAmendment in the Department of Si

The amendment shall be effective on : 2/17/06 at 7AM. EST
Date Hour

6. Check one of the followini

The amendment was adopted by the shareholdersrobens pursuant to 15Pa.C.S. § 1914(a) and (bpe18(a)
The amendment was adopted by the board of dieptmsuant to 15 Pa. C.S. § 1914(c) or § 5914(b).

O

7.Check, and if appropriate, complete one of theofeilhg:
The amendment adopted by the corporation, sdt fiorfull, is as follows
O
The amendment adopted by the corporation is st iio full in Exhibit A attached hereto and madpaat hereo

8. Check if the amendment restates the Artic
[0 The restated Articles of Incorporation superségeariginal articles and all amendments the

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned corporation has
caused these Articles of Amendment to be signeal dyly
authorized officer thereof th
7TH day of FEBRUARY 2006
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC
Name of Corporatio
/s/George R. Jensen,
Signature
Chief Executive Office
Title







EXHIBIT A
TO THE
ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TO THE
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Paragraph (A) Classes of StoakArticle 4 of the Articles of Incorporation oféhCompany shall be amended and restated to r
full as follows:

“(A) Classes of Stock The aggregate number of shares which the caiporahall have
authority to issue is 641,800,000 shares, congistin640,000,000 shares of Common Stock,
without par value, and 1,800,000 shares of Serniefeffed Stock, without par value. Each one (1)
share of the corporation’s Common Stock issuedaarnstanding on the effective date and time of
this Amendment shall be and is hereby automatiozignged without further action into one-
hundredth (1/100) fully paid and nonassessableeslodrthe corporation’s Common Stock,
provided that no fractional shares shall be isspasuant to such exchange. The corporation
shall pay to each shareholder who would otherweserttitled to a fractional share, as a result of
such change, an amount equal to the value of sactidnal share, based upon the average daily
closing price per share of the corporation’s Comr8tock on the OTC Bulletin Board for the ten
trading days preceding the effective date of thigadment.”




1.

Exhibit 10.6

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
2013 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Purpose . The purpose of the USA Technologies, Inc. 2018ciStincentive Plan is to provide an incentive to foyees

Consultants and Directors of the Company who awe position to contribute materially to the lotggm success of the Company, to incr
their interest in the Compars/ivelfare, and to aid in gaining the services oplayees, Consultants and Directors of outstandbilityawho
will contribute to the Company’s success.

2.

Definitions .
2.1 “Award” means an award of Stock urttie Plan.
2.2 “Board” means the Board of Directof$JSA.
2.3 “Code’'means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ameRe@éerence to a specific section of the Code shellide
any successor to such section.
2.4 “Committeetneans the Compensation Committee of the Board;igedy however, that if an Award is to be made t

Employee who is an executive officer of USA or tDieector of USA, any award to be made to any siacutive officer or Direct
shall also be approved by the Directors of USA.

2.5 “Common Stockheans USA common stock, no par value per sharsyar other class or kind of shares of capital ¢
or other securities as may result from the appticadf Section 7 hereof.

2.6 “Company” means USA and any sucaetssoeof.

2.7 “Consultant” means a consultantineté to provide bona fide services to, and whaoisam employee of USA.

2.8 “Director” means each director ofAJ&ho is not an employee of USA.

29 “Employee” means an officer or enygle of the Company including a director who is sastemployee.

2.10 “Fair Market Valuetheans, on any given date, the mean between theahidjlow prices of actual sales of Common S

on the principal national securities exchange orclwthe Common Stock is listed on such date, adhefCommon Stock was not
listed, the average closing bid price of the stiockeach of the five trading days prior to suchedat

2.11 “Holder” means an Employee, DireapfConsultant to whom an Award is made.

2.12 “USA” means USA Technologies, IncRennsylvania corporation and any successor thereto

2.13 “1933 Act” means the Securities Ac1833, as amended.

2.14 “Plan” means the USA 2013 Stock ItieenPlan herein set forth, as amended from tintinte.

2.15 “Stock” means Common Stock awardetheyCommittee under Section 6 of the Plan.

2.16 “SEC” means the United States Sdesrind Exchange Commission.

2.17 “Stock Award Agreement” means a StAakard Agreement evidencing an Award granted utiderPlan.

Eligibility . Any Employee, Director or Consultant is eligibdereceive an Award.

Administration of Plan .

4.1 The Plan shall be administered amdrpreted by the Committee, which shall have &ulthority to act in selectii
Employees, Directors and Consultants to whom Awaritidhe made, in determining the type and amoudriwards to be granted
each such Holder, the terms and conditions of Awamdd the terms of agreements which will be entéméa with Holders i
connection with Awards.

4.2 The Committeg’powers shall include, but not be limited to, fwever to determine whether, to what extent and «
what circumstances an Award is made.
4.3 The Committee shall have the poweadopt regulations for carrying out the Plan amdniake such changes in s

regulations as it shall from time to time deem adble. The Committee shall have the power unildyesad without approval of
Holder to amend any existing Award in order to garat the purposes of the Plan so long as such émemt does not deprive !
Holder of any benefit granted by the Award andawglas the amended Award comports with the terntheoflan. Amendmer
adverse to the interests of the Holder must beauepor by the Holder. Any interpretation by the Coritted of the terms al
provisions of the Plan and the administration tbgrand all action taken by the Committee, shallfibal and binding on Pl
participants.

Shares of Stock Subject to the Plan

51 Subject to adjustment as provide8antion 7, the total number of shares of CommogkSavailable for Awards under
Plan shall be 500,000 shares.
5.2 Any shares issued hereunder mayistoms whole or in part, of authorized and unigbsbares or treasury shares. If

shares subject to any Award granted hereunderogigitéd or such Award otherwise terminates withitngt issuance of such sha
the shares subject to such Award, to the exteringfsuch forfeiture or termination, shall againavailable for Awards under t
Plan.



Stock.

An Award of Stock is a grant by the Company of acified number of shares of Common Stock to thedklglwhich shares may

subject to forfeiture upon the happening of spediftvents. Such an Award may be subject to theviollg terms and conditions:

7.

6.1 An Award of Stock may be evidencgdlStock Award Agreemertbuch agreements shall conform to the requiremd
the Plan and may contain such other provisione@€bmmittee shall deem advisable.
6.2 Upon determination of the numbersbéres of Stock to be granted to the Holder, theni@ittee shall direct that

certificate or certificates representing the numdfeshares of Common Stock be issued to the Haldtr the Holder designated
the registered owner.

6.3 The Committee may condition the gafran Award of Stock upon the Holdsrachievement of one or more performe
goal(s) specified in the Stock Award Agreementh# Holder fails to achieve the specified perforoeagoal(s), the Committee st
not grant the Stock to the Holder, or the Holdeallsforfeit the Award of Stock and the Common Statiall be forfeited to tt
Company.

6.4 The Stock Award Agreement, if ayalkspecify the performance, employment or otterditions (including terminatic
of employment on account of death, disability,regtient or other cause) under which the Stock mdgtieited to the Company.
6.5 The Stock Award Agreement may algotain (a) an agreement not to compete with the @my and its subsidiari
which shall become effective as of the date ofgremt of the Award and remain in effect for a sfiediperiod of time followin
termination of the Holdes' employment with or affiliation with the Compar{lp) an agreement to cancel any employment agreg
fringe benefit or compensation arrangement in ¢ffetween the Company and the Holder; and (c) aeeagent to retain tl
confidentiality of certain information.

Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization. In the event of a reorganization, recapitalizatistock split, spin-off, splibff,

split-up, stock dividend, issuance of stock rights, caration of shares, merger, consolidation or anyrathange in the corporate structur
USA affecting the Common Stock, or any distributiorshareholders other than a cash dividend, treedshall make appropriate adjustn
in the number and kind of shares authorized byPtlae as it determines appropriate. No fractionateh of stock shall be issued pursua
such an adjustment, but an amount equivalent toptitdon of Fair Market Value attributable to anych fractional shares shall, wh
appropriate, be paid in cash to the Holder.

8.

Termination and Amendment. The Plan shall remain in full force and effectiuterminated by the Board. The Board shall

the power to amend, suspend or terminate the Rlanyatime without the approval of the shareholddrhe Company, unless such appr
is required by applicable law, regulation or ruleny stock exchange on which the shares of Com&tock are listed.

9.

10.

Form S-8.

9.1 Promptly upon the approval of thiarPby the Board of Directors of USA and the shaléérs, the Company shall, at
cost and expense, register all of the Stock uridef 933 Act pursuant a to Form S-8 registratiotestant.

9.2 Notwithstanding anything else setifdierein, an Award shall not be made to any DinecConsultant or Employee unl
such person is eligible to receive Stock which lasn registered under a Forn83egistration statement. In this regard, any £
issuable to a Consultant or Director shall be idsiwean individual who provided bona fide servit@dJSA and such services st
not be in connection with the offer or sale of séms in a capitakaising transaction, and shall not directly or iedtly promote ¢
maintain a market for USA’s securities.

9.3 In connection with the issuancerf &tock pursuant to the Plan, USA shall at itsemse, use its best efforts to have
such Stock exempted from the registration requirégmender applicable state securities laws.
9.4 The documents incorporated by refeeein Item 3 of Part Il of the Form &registration statement, and any additi

information about the Company, the Plan and thea Bministrators may be obtained, without chargenuwritten request made
the Company at 100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140, MalyPA 19355, Attn: Stephen P. Herbert, Chief ExigeuOfficer, or by callin
610-989-0340.

General Provisions.

10.1 The Plan shall become effective up@mapproval by the Board, subject to the apprafahe Plan by the shareholder:
the Company at the Compasyannual meeting of shareholders to be held on 2tn2013, and any adjournment or postpone
thereof.

10.2 Nothing contained in the Plan, orfamard granted pursuant to the Plan, shall confemuan Employee any right w
respect to continuance of employment by the Commanypon any Director or Consultant any right wiélspect to continuance
Board service or the consulting arrangement (agdlse may be), nor interfere in any way with tigatiof the Company to termini
such relationships at any time.



10.3 Holders shall be responsible to majeropriate provision for all taxes required tovkiehheld in connection with ai
Award. Such responsibility shall extend to all apgible federal, state, local or foreign withholditagxes. Stock Award Agreeme
evidencing Awards may contain appropriate provisitm effect withholding, including providing fordhwithholding of Stock t
USA otherwise deliverable to a Holder having a Maarket Value equal to the minimum amount requitede withheld by tr
Company. The Plan is not qualified under Sectioh(dPof the Code.

10.4 To the extent that federal laws (saslihe 1934 Act, the Code or the Employee Retineimeome Security Act of 197
do not otherwise control, the Plan and all deteatiims made and actions taken pursuant hereto lshabverned by the law of 1
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and construed acagisdin

Dated: April 19, 2013



Exhibit 10.21

EMPLOYMENT AND NON -COMPETITION AGREEMENT

Agreement made this ' day of July, 2008, by and between CARY SAGADY (“Sdyg"), and USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.,
Pennsylvania corporation (“USA”).

BACKGROUND

Sagady is currently the Senior Vice PresideRreduct Development of USA. As more fully set fonégrein, USA desires to contir
to engage Sagady, and Sagady desires to continbe émgaged by USA, in such capacity. Becausenodng other matters, the decree
value of the business of USA that would resultaf&dy would compete with USA or use or divulgeaiartonfidential information, Saga
has further agreed that he will be subject to gerestrictions during and after his being an emetoof USA.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenastdarth herein, and intending to be legally botwedeby, the parties agree
follows:

SECTION 1. Employment.

€) USA shall employ Sagady as Senioe\Reesident Product Development for a one (1) year period conuimg
on June 13, 2008 and continuing through June 309 Zthe “Employment Period”)and Sagady hereby accepts such employment. (
terminated by either party hereto upon at leasti®@s notice prior to the end of the original Emph@nt Period ending June 30, 200¢
prior to the end of any ongear extension of the Employment Period, the Emplenyt Period shall not be terminated and shall aatially
continue in full force and effect for consecutiveeeyear periods.



(b) During the Employment Period, Sagabgll devote his full time, energy, skills, andeation to the business
USA, and shall not be engaged or employed in ahgrdiusiness activity whatsoever, whether or noh sictivity is pursued for gain, profit
other pecuniary advantage. During the Employmemiod, Sagady shall perform and discharge well faittifully such duties for USA
shall be necessary or as otherwise may be dirdstadiSA or by the President of USA, and shall compith the terms, conditions, polici
and procedures applicable to employees of USA.

SECTION 2. Compensation and Benefits

(a) In consideration of his services emed, USA shall pay to Sagady a base salary of $085per year during t
Employment Period, subject to any withholding regdiby law. Sagady’s base salary shall be paidjiralebi-weekly installments. Sagady
base salary may be increased from time to timherdiscretion of USA.

(b) In addition to the base salary preddfor in subparagraph (a), Sagady shall be eégtbl earn an annt
discretionary bonus during the Employment Periothan maximum amount of sixty percent (60%) of hiswal base salary, based upor
performance and/or the performance of USA. At tiserdtion of the Company, any bonuses may be paghgady in cash or Common St
of USA.

(c) Sagady shall be entitled to be reimbd by USA for all reasonable expenses reasonablyred by Sagady
connection with his employment duties hereundega8ig shall reasonably document all requests foees@ reimbursements.



(d) USA shall issue to Sagady an aggeeghb,000 shares of Common Stock of USA as amingebonus, provide
that he is employed by USA on the respective vgstlates set forth in the next sentence. These sisral vest as follows: 1250
September 30, 2008; 1250 on December 31, 2008; d2%darch 31, 2009; and 1250 on June 30, 2009. I8t®agady renew this agreen
by April 30, 2009, USA will issue an additional B@shares of Common Stock vesting quarterly inafiggar 2010 according to schec
above.

The shares will be free-trading and registeredigy@ompany on a Form &registration statement, and the certificatesasgmtin
the shares shall not bear any restrictive legerite@ubject to stop transfer instructions.

Sagady acknowledges that the issuance of the stmates will represent taxable income to him andtthe (and not USA) shall
responsible for the payment of any and all incomes attributable to the issuance of the sharbamo Sagady shall make appropriate «
payments to USA to pay for any withholding tax lidp of USA in connection with the shares.

(e) During the Employment Period, USAlspay to Sagady an automobile allowance in the amhaf $7,800 pe
annum, payable in equal bi-weekly installments 33k

() During the Employment Period, Sagatiall be entitled to participate in and be covdrgall standard fringe a
employee benefits made available to other emplogé&iSA. These current benefits include medical dental insurance, paid vacation
holidays, a 401(k) plan, and a long-term disabititgn.

(9) Sagady acknowledges that the abovepensation and benefits are sufficient considemnatio his entering int
this Agreement.



SECTION 3. Termination . Notwithstanding anything else contained hereiBAUmay terminate the employment of Sagac
any time during the Employment Period upon notiekvdred to Sagady in the event that (i) Sagadyrgsiany criminal or fraudulent act;
(i) Sagady breaches any term, condition, represgiemt, or warranty of this Agreement; or (iii) Sagawillfully abandons his duties hereuntc
Upon such termination, neither party hereto shallehany further duties or obligations hereunder tagever; provided, however, t
Sagady'’s obligations under Sections 5 and 6 hesteaif survive any such termination.

SECTION 4. Death and Disability.

(a) If Sagady shall die during the Empi@nt Period, this Agreement shall terminate ahefdate of such death a
except for any base salary or bonuses accruedsagbfdate, USA shall have no further duties oigakibns hereunder whatsoever.

(b) If USA determines in good faith tt&ggady is incapacitated by accident, sicknessharwise so as to render t
mentally or physically incapable of performing tervices required of him hereunder for an aggreghatenety (90) consecutive days, u
the expiration of such period or at any time thiiezaby action of USA, Sagady’employment hereunder may be terminated immewyl
upon giving him thirty (30) days written notice ttzat effect, and upon such termination, exceptfor base salary or bonuses accrued
such date, neither party hereto shall have anyhdurtiuties or obligations hereunder; provided, harethat Sagadg’ obligations und
Sections 5 and 6 hereof shall survive any suchitettion. USA shall be entitled to rely upon the igdvand opinion of any physician of
choosing in making any determination with respedrty such disability.



SECTION 5. Business Secrets and NeBolicitation .

(a) Except in connection with his dutfeseunder, Sagady shall not, directly or indireciltyany time from and aft
the date hereof, and whether or not the EmployrReniod has terminated, or whether or not Sagadyiployment has terminated for
reason whatsoever, make any use of, exploit, dis¢clor divulge to any other person, firm or corfiora any information, including but r
limited to, proprietary information, trade secretisiness secret, document, practice, process pragekihowhow, data, sales informatic
marketing information, marketing method, marketimgans, software information, intellectual properspecial arrangement, inter
organization, employment list, customer list, oy ather confidential information concerning the iness or policies of USA or concern
USA’s customers, clients, accounts, or suppliers, $a@ady learned as a result of, in connection witilgugh his employment with,
through his affiliation with, USA, whether or natigguant to this Agreement, and whether prior tafter the date hereof, but not informa
that can be shown through documentary evidencestm the public domain, or information that falisto the public domain, unless s
information falls into the public domain by Sagasiylirect or indirect disclosure or other acts. Sggagrees to use his best endeavao
prevent the unauthorized disclosure or publicatiboonfidential information and not to copy nor @ confidential information from USA’
premises, whether physically or electronically heitt the express written permission of USA managgme

(b) From and after July 1, 2008, exceptannection with his duties hereunder, and fona @) year period followir
the later of termination of the Employment Period,any oneyear extension of the Employment Period, for a (k)eyear period earlie
Sagady shall not solicit, or divert business fram following the termination of Sagady’employment hereunder if serve, or sell to,
customer or account of USA of which Sagady is aobges aware, or with which Sagady has had persoméct as a result of, in connec
with, through his employment with, or through hffiliation with, USA, whether or not pursuant toishAgreement, and whether prior tc
after the date hereof.



(c) All documents, data, kndvow, designs, inventions, names, marketing infolwnatmarketing method, marketi
means, materials, software programs, hardware igurations, information, data processing repoiitds land sales analyses, price list
information, or any other materials or data of &md furnished to Sagady by USA, or by USACustomers, clients, accounts, and supg
or developed by Sagady on behalf of USA or at USditection or for USAS use, or otherwise devised, developed, createahyvented ii
connection with Sagady’employment hereunder or his affiliation with US#&hether or not during normal working hours), aaad sha
remain, the sole and exclusive property of USA, Sadady shall have no right or interest whatsothareto, including but not limited to, ¢
copyright or patent interest whatsoever. If USQuests the return of any such items (includingcapies) at any time whatsoever, Sa¢
shall immediately deliver the same to USA.



(d) All documents, data, kndvew, designs, products, ideas, equipment, investiotames, devices, market
information, marketing method, marketing means,emialls, software programs, hardware, configuratiamf®rmation, or any other materi
or data of any kind developed by Sagady on beHdlfA or at its direction or for USA’ use, or otherwise devised, developed, creat
invented in connection with Sagady’s employmenhwdSA or Sagady affiliation with USA (whether or not during norin@orking hours)
are, and shall remain, the sole and exclusive ptppé USA, Sagady agrees to apprise USA of theterice of such, does not and shal
have any right, title or interest whatsoever ther&@agady hereby acknowledges that all such rightistellectual property shall belo
exclusively to USA and not to Sagady. Any and ights of ownership in connection with any of theefgoing shall belong solely to USA, ¢
all copyright, patent, trademark, or similar rigbtsinterests shall be the sole and exclusive ptpmé USA. Sagady hereby assigns, trans
and conveys to USA all of his right, title and it in and to any and all such inventions, disdeseimprovements, modifications and o
intellectual property rights and agrees to takesadlh actions as may be required by USA at any éintkwith respect to any such invent
discovery, improvement, modification or other itdetual property rights to effectuate, confirm, emidence such assignment, transfer
conveyance including, but not limited to, executangl delivering any and all applicable forms, doeats, or applications required under
applicable copyright, patent, trademark, or other,Irule or regulation.

(e) Noninterference At any and all times from and after July 1, 0@nd for a one (1) year per
following the termination of Sagady’employment with USA for any reason whatsoevega8g shall not (a) directly or indirectly, attentp
hire, or hire, any person employed by USA, or (indctly or indirectly, interfere with USA'’s relatis with any person employed by it.



SECTION 6. Restrictive Covenant From and after July 1, 2008, and for a one (1) peaiod following the later of termination
the Employment Period or any ogear extension of the Employment Period, or forne ¢1) year period following the termination
Sagadys employment hereunder if earlier, Sagady shaprbgibited from competing in all fifty (50) state$ the United States, and in e
foreign country, possession, or territory in whidBA is engaged in or actively pursuing businessfale termination or at any time dur
the preceding twelve (12) month period, with thaibass of USA as presently or as hereinafter carduincluding but not limited to, t
ownership or licensing or development of a cashégssem which controls, monitors, and/or networksices, including beverage vend
machines. For the purposes hereof, the term “cdngieshall mean acting, directly or indirectly, as atpar, principal, stockholder, joi
venturer, associate, independent contractor, aredft consultant, trustee, lessor to, sublesspernaployee or agent of, or to have any ¢
involvement with, any person, firm, corporationadiner business organization which is engagededrbtisinesses described in this Section.

SECTION 7. Remedies Sagady acknowledges that any breach by him obligations set forth in Sections 5 or 6 hereofila
substantially and materially impair and irreparabgrm USAS business and goodwill; that such impairment asmenhwould be difficult t
measure; and, therefore, total compensation ilysotenetary terms would be inadequate. ConsequeBtigady agrees that in the ever
any breach or any threatened breach by Sagadyyaffahe provisions of Section 5 or 6 hereof, USRlsbe entitled in addition to monet:
damages or other remedies and without posting boneluitable relief, including injunctive reliefnd to the payment by Sagady of all c
and expenses incurred by USA in enforcing the giowus thereof, including attorneyfges. The remedies granted to USA in this Agreé
are cumulative and are in addition to remediesretise available to USA at law or in equity.



SECTION 8. Waiver of Breach. The waiver by USA of a breach of any provisiortto§ Agreement by Sagady shall not ope
or be construed as a waiver of any other or sulesedireach by Sagady of such or any other provision

SECTION 9. Notices. All notices required or permitted hereunder shalibwriting and shall be sent by certified or stgied mai
return receipt requested, postage prepaid, asifsilo

To USA:

USA Technologies, Inc.

100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140

Malvern, Pennsylvania 19355

Attn: Stephen P. Herbert,
President

To Sagady:

Mr. Cary Sagady
1240 Yellow Springs Road
Chester Springs, PA 19425

or to such other address as either of them mayuats in a written notice served upon the othetyparthe manner provided herein.
notices required or permitted hereunder shall el duly given and received on the second daysuexieeding the date of mailing.

SECTION 10. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement or thgplication thereof to any person or circumsta
shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceatiie,remainder of this Agreement or the applicatbany such term or provision to person
circumstances other than those as to which itld ingalid or unenforceable, shall not be affecteereby, and each term and provision of
Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to thiestiextent permitted by law. If any of the préeis contained in this Agreement shall
any reason be held to be excessively broad asr&tioin, scope, activity or subject, it shall be stoned by limiting and reducing it, so as tc
valid and enforceable to the extent compatible Withapplicable law.



SECTION 11. Governing Law . The implementation and interpretation of this Agneat shall be governed by and enforce
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth ohBglivania without regard to its conflict of lawsdachoice-of-law rules.

SECTION 12. Binding Effect and Assignability. The rights and obligations of both parties untthés Agreement shall inure
the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, theispaal representatives, heirs, successors anchas3iggis Agreement, or any part hereof,
be assigned by USA without the consent of Sagalis Agreement, or any part thereof, may not begassi by Sagady.

SECTION 13. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreemerit véspect to the subject matter he
between the parties hereto and, except as providegin, there are no other agreements betweenatttiegprelating to the subject ma
hereof. This Agreement may only be modified by greement in writing executed by both USA and Sagady

10



SECTION 14. Understanding of Agreement Sagady hereby represents and warrants each fifliveing: (i) he has carefully rei
all of the terms and conditions of this Agreeméii};he fully understands the meaning and effecthid Agreement; (iii) the entry into, a
execution of, this Agreement by him is his own fee& voluntary act and deed; and (iv) he has redejor had the opportunity to receive)
advice of his own attorney, accountant, or otherisaats, concerning this Agreement and its meaning legal effect, and has fully a
completely discussed and reviewed (or has hadghertunity to fully and completely discuss and esv) the Agreement and its meaning
legal effect, with his own attorney, accountanothrer advisors.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exagttitiis Agreement on the day and year first abaveen.
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By:/s/ Stephen P. Herbe

Stephen P. Herbel
Presiden
/s/ Cary Sagad

CARY SAGADY

11



Exhibit 10.22

EMPLOYMENT AND NON -COMPETITION AGREEMENT

Agreement made this 7th day of June, 2010, by atdden MICHAEL LAWLOR (“Lawlor”),and USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.,
Pennsylvania corporation (“USA").

BACKGROUND

Lawlor is currently the Vice President of Sales &usiness Development. As more fully set forth reredSA desires to continue
engage Lawlor, and Lawlor desires to continue temgaged by USA, in such capacity. Because of, gnotimer matters, the decreased v
of the business of USA that would result if Lawleould compete with USA or use or divulge certaimfadential information, Lawlor hi
further agreed that he will be subject to certaistnictions during and after his being an emplayedSA.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenaetdarth herein, and intending to be legally botwedeby, the parties agree
follows:

SECTION 1. Employment.

(&) USA shall employ Lawlor as Sr. Vice President @fleS and Business Development commencing on June20i0 an
continuing through June 30, 2011 (the “Employmesttid?l”), and Lawlor hereby accepts such employment. Unégssinate:
by either party hereto upon at leastdiys notice prior to the end of the original Emph@nt Period ending June 30, 2011
upon at least 60-days notice prior to the end gf@reyear extension of the Employment Period, the Empleayt Period she
not be terminated and shall automatically contiimufelll force and effect for consecutive «year periods



(b) During the Employment Period, Lawlor shall devbis full time, energy, skills, and attentiontbh@ business of US.
and shall not be engaged or employed in any othginbss activity whatsoever, whether or not sutivigcis pursued for gain, profit or ott
pecuniary advantage. During the Employment Petiasiylor shall perform and discharge well and faitlyfisuch duties for USA as shall
necessary or as otherwise may be directed by USBydhe President of USA, and shall comply with tems, conditions, policies, a
procedures applicable to employees of USA.

SECTION 2. Compensation and Benefits

(&) In consideration of his services rendereSAl$hall pay to Lawlor a base salary of $165,00@80year during tt
Employment Period, subject to any withholding reediby law. Lawlor’'s base salary shall be paiddnad bi-weekly installments. Lawla’
base salary may be increased from time to timherdiscretion of USA.

(b) In addition to the base salary providedifosubparagraph (a), Lawlor shall be eligible tmesn annual discretione
bonus during the Employment Period in the maximunoant of one hundred percent (100%) of his annaakbsalary, based upon
performance and/or the performance of USA. At tiserdtion of the Company, any bonuses may be palidlor in cash or Common Stc
of USA.



(c) Lawlor shall be entitled to be reimbursed WA for all reasonable expenses reasonably induose Lawlor ir
connection with his employment duties hereundewlbashall reasonably document all requests folea@sp reimbursements.

(d) Upon signing this agreement, USA shall malgayment of $10,000 to Lawlor as an incentive lsonu

(e) Should Lawlor and the Company mutually agean extension by April 1, 2011, USA shall isgaeLawlor ar
aggregate of 10,000 Shares of Common Stock of UsS#@nancentive bonus.

The shares will be free-trading and registeredigy@Gompany on a Form &registration statement, and the certificatesasgmtin
the shares shall not bear any restrictive legerite@ubject to stop transfer instructions.

Lawlor acknowledges that the issuance of the sharésm will represent taxable income to him andtthe (and not USA) shall
responsible for the payment of any and all income$ attributable to the issuance of the sharésmolLawlor shall make appropriate ¢
payments to USA to pay for any withholding tax lidp of USA in connection with the shares.

() During the Employment Period, USA shall payLawlor an automobile allowance in the amount$@f800 pe
annum, payable in equal bi-weekly installments 3k



(g) During the Employment Period, Lawlor shadl éntitled to participate in and be covered bysthdard fringe at
employee benefits made available to other emplogé&iSA. These current benefits include medical dental insurance, paid vacation
holidays, a 401(k) plan, and a long-term disabititgn.

(h) Lawlor acknowledges that the above compémsand benefits are sufficient consideration figr dntering into thi
Agreement.

SECTION 3. Termination. Notwithstanding anything else contained herbiISA may terminate the employment of Lawlc
any time during the Employment Period upon notiekvdred to Lawlor in the event that (i) Lawlor comts any criminal or fraudulent act;
(i) Lawlor breaches any term, condition, repreaéioh, or warranty of this Agreement; or (iii) Lawlwillfully abandons his duties hereunt
Upon such termination, neither party hereto shallehany further duties or obligations hereunder tsgever; provided, however, t
Lawlor’s obligations under Sections 5 and 6 hesdal survive any such termination.

SECTION 4. Death and Disability.

(a) If Lawlor shall diiring the Employment Period, this Agreement steathinate as of the date of such death and, €
for any base salary or bonuses accrued as of satehldSA shall have no further duties or obligadibereunder whatsoever.



(b) If USA determines good faith that Lawlor is incapacitated by accigesickness or otherwise so as to render
mentally or physically incapable of performing tervices required of him hereunder for an aggregftenety (90) consecutive days, u|
the expiration of such period or at any time thiezaby action of USA, Lawlos employment hereunder may be terminated immewyl
upon giving him thirty (30) days written notice ttat effect, and upon such termination, exceptafor base salary or bonuses accrued
such date, neither party hereto shall have anyhéurtuties or obligations hereunder; provided, harethat Lawlors obligations und
Sections 5 and 6 hereof shall survive any suchitation. USA shall be entitled to rely upon the i@dvand opinion of any physician of
choosing in making any determination with respedrty such disability.

SECTION 5. Business Secrets and Ne8olicitation.

(a) Except in connection with his duties hereundlerylor shall not, directly or indirectly, at anyrie from and after the date hereof,
whether or not the Employment Period has terminatedvhether or not Lawlos’ employment has terminated for any reason whags
make any use of, exploit, disclose, or divulgeng ather person, firm or corporation, any confid@nihformation including, but not limite
to, proprietary information, trade secret, busiressret, document, practice, process procedurey-kmov, data, sales information, marke:
information, marketing method, marketing meanstveafe information, intellectual property, speciatamgement, internal organizati
employment list, customer list, or any other coefitlal information concerning the business or pesicof USA or concerning USA’
customers, clients, accounts, or suppliers, thatldalearned as a result of, in connection withiptlgh his employment with, or through
affiliation with, USA, whether or not pursuant tug Agreement, and whether prior to or after thie deereof, but not information that car
shown through documentary evidence to be in théigpdbmain, or information that falls in to the gigdhdomain, unless such information f
into the public domain by Lawla’ direct or indirect disclosure or other acts. lawhgrees to use his best endeavors to preve
unauthorized disclosure or publication of confid@nihformation and not to copy nor remove confiti@ninformation from USAS premise:
whether physically or electronically, without thepeess written permission of USA management.



(b) From and after June 7, 2010, except in conoedatiith his duties hereunder, and for a one (1) peaiod following th:
later of termination of the Employment Period oy ameyear extension of the Employment Period, or fona () year period following tl
termination of Lawlors employment hereunder if earlier, Lawlor shall saifcit, or divert business from, or serve, oil s&l any customer
account of USA of which Lawlor is or becomes awarewith which Lawlor has had personal contact asslt of, in connection wit
through his employment with, or through his affilim with, USA, whether or not pursuant to this Agment, and whether prior to or after
date hereof.



(c) All documents, data, knotwew, designs, inventions, names, marketing infoimnatmarketing method, marketing me:
materials, software programs, hardware, configonati information, data processing reports, lists sales analyses, price lists or informai
or any other materials or data of any kind furnistee Lawlor by USA, or by USA customers, clients, accounts, and supplierseeeldpe!
by Lawlor on behalf of USA or at USA’s direction far USA’s use, or otherwise devised, developed, creatddyented in connection wi
Lawlor's employment hereunder or his affiliation with US#hether or not during normal working hours), aed shall remain, the sole ¢
exclusive property of USA, and Lawlor shall haveright or interest whatsoever thereto, including fet limited to, any copyright or patt
interest whatsoever. If USA requests the returarof such items (including all copies) at any timeatsoever, Lawlor shall immediat
deliver the same to USA.



(d) All documents, data, knolwew, designs, products, ideas, equipment, investioames, devices, marketing informai
marketing method, marketing means, materials, sofiyprograms, hardware, configurations, informattrany other materials or data of
kind developed by Lawlor on behalf of USA or at disection or for USAS use, or otherwise devised, developed, createthvented i
connection with Lawlor's employment with USA or Lew's affiliation with USA (whether or not during normaorking hours), are, ai
shall remain, the sole and exclusive property oAUISawlor agrees to apprise USA of the existenceumth, and Lawlor does not and shall
have any right, title or interest whatsoever therdétawlor hereby acknowledges that all such rigtsntellectual property shall belo
exclusively to USA and not to Lawlor. Any and agihtts of ownership in connection with any of theefgoing shall belong solely to USA, ¢
all copyright, patent, trademark, or similar rigbtsinterests shall be the sole and exclusive ptpmd USA. Lawlor hereby assigns, transf
and conveys to USA all of his right, title and it in and to any and all such inventions, disdeseimprovements, modifications and o
intellectual property rights and agrees to takesadlh actions as may be required by USA at any éintkwith respect to any such invent
discovery, improvement, modification or other itgetual property rights to effectuate, confirm,emidence such assignment, transfer
conveyance, including, but not limited to, execgtand delivering any and all applicable forms, doeuts, or applications required under
applicable copyright, patent, trademark, or other,Irule or regulation.



(e) _Noninterferencé\t any and all times from and after June 7, 201, #r a one (1) year period followi
the termination of Lawlos employment with USA for any reason whatsoevewlbashall not (a) directly or indirectly, attemfat hire, o
hire, any person employed by USA,; or (b) directlyralirectly, interfere with USA'’s relations wittng person employed by it.

SECTION 6. Restrictive Covenant. From and after June 7, 2010, and for a one (4) period following the later of termination
the Employment Period or any ogear extension of the Employment Period, or forne ¢1) year period following the termination
Lawlor's employment hereunder if earlier, Lawlor shallpbehibited from competing in all fifty (50) state$ the United States, and in e
foreign country, possession, or territory in whidBA is engaged in or actively pursuing businessfabe termination or at any time dur
the preceding twelve (12) month period, with thesibass of USA as presently or as hereinafter caeduincluding but not limited to, t
ownership or licensing or development of a cashégssem which controls, monitors, and/or networgsices, including beverage vend
machines. For the purposes hereof, the term “cangdeshall mean acting, directly or indirectly, as atpar, principal, stockholder, joi
venturer, associate, independent contractor, eredft consultant, trustee, lessor to, sublessperaployee or agent of, or to have any ¢
involvement with, any person, firm, corporation,abher business organization which is engagedarbtisinesses described in this Section.




SECTION 7. RemedieslLawlor acknowledges that any breach by him of thkgations set forth in Sections 5 or 6 hereof vd
substantially and materially impair and irreparabrm USAS business and goodwill; that such impairment asenhwould be difficult t
measure; and, therefore, total compensation ifysolenetary terms would be inadequate. Consequebndylor agrees that in the even
any breach or any threatened breach by Lawlor pfodinhe provisions of Section 5 or 6 hereof, USkltbe entitled in addition to monet:
damages or other remedies and without posting bonelquitable relief, including injunctive reliefnd to the payment by Lawlor of all cc
and expenses incurred by USA in enforcing the gions thereof, including attorneyf&es. The remedies granted to USA in this Agree
are cumulative and are in addition to remediesretise available to USA at law or in equity.

SECTION 8. Waiver of Breach.The waiver by USA of a breach of any provisionti§tAgreement by Lawlor shall not operat:
be construed as a waiver of any other or subsedueath by Lawlor of such or any other provision.




SECTION 9. Notices. All notices required or permitted hereunder shalin writing and shall be sent by certified oristgyred mai
return receipt requested, postage prepaid, asisilo

To USA:

USA Technologies, Inc.

100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140

Malvern, Pennsylvania 19355

Attn: Stephen P. Herbert,
President

To Lawlor:

Mr. Michael Lawlor
131 Lisa Drive
Paoli, PA 19301

or to such other address as either of them mayudats in a written notice served upon the othetyparthe manner provided herein.
notices required or permitted hereunder shall leemgal duly given and received on the second daysuexeeding the date of mailing.

SECTION 10. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement or thgpkcation thereof to any person or circumsta
shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceatile,remainder of this Agreement or the applicatbany such term or provision to person
circumstances other than those as to which itld ingalid or unenforceable, shall not be affectieereby, and each term and provision of
Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to thiedtilextent permitted by law. If any of the prowiss contained in this Agreement shall
any reason be held to be excessively broad asratioi, scope, activity or subject, it shall be stoned by limiting and reducing it, so as t
valid and enforceable to the extent compatible Withapplicable law.
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SECTION 11. Governing Law. The implementation and interpretation of this Agneat shall be governed by and enforce
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth ohBglivania without regard to its conflict of lawsdachoice-of-law rules.

SECTION 12. Binding Effect and Assignability. The rights and obligations of both parties undés A&greement shall inure to t
benefit of, and shall be binding upon, their peedappresentatives, heirs, successors and as3igissAgreement, or any part hereof, ma'
assigned by USA without the consent of Lawlor. Thggeement, or any part thereof, may not be asdigpye.awlor.

SECTION 13. Entire Agreement.This Agreement constitutes the entire agreemeifht rgispect to the subject matter hereof bet
the parties hereto and, except as provided hettetne are no other agreements between the paetamg to the subject matter hereof. -
Agreement may only be modified by an agreementriting executed by both USA and Lawlor.




SECTION 14. Understanding of Agreement.Lawlor hereby represents and warrants each dbileving: (i) he has carefully rei
all of the terms and conditions of this Agreeméii};he fully understands the meaning and effecthid Agreement; (iii) the entry into, a
execution of, this Agreement by him is his own fee& voluntary act and deed; and (iv) he has redejor had the opportunity to receive)
advice of his own attorney, accountant, or otherisaats, concerning this Agreement and its meaning legal effect, and has fully a
completely discussed and reviewed (or has hadghertunity to fully and completely discuss and esv) the Agreement and its meaning
legal effect, with his own attorney, accountanothrer advisors.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettiis Agreement on the day and year first abovttem:
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/ Stephen P. Herbert

Stephen P. Herbel
Presiden

/s/ Michael Lawlor
MICHAEL LAWLOR




Exhibit 10.23

FIRST AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AND
NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to Employment and Non-ComjmetitAgreement is made this 2¥day of April 2012, by and betwe
MICHAEL LAWLOR (“Lawlor”), and USA TECHNOLOGIES, IXC., a Pennsylvania corporation (“USA").

Background

USA and Lawlor entered into an Employment and Namr@etition Agreement dated April 7, 2010, as amdnig the USAS
Performance Evaluation of Lawlor dated December2B10 (collectively, the “Agreement”)As more fully set forth herein, the parties de
to amend the Agreement in certain respects.

Agreement

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenastdarth herein, and intending to be legally botwedeby, the parties agree
follows:

1. Amendments

A.  Subparagraph (a) of Section 1. Employmehthe Agreement is hereby deleted and the follgwiew subparagraph (a)
hereby substituted in its place:

(8) USA shall employ Lawlor as Senior Vice Prestd&#inSales and Business Development commencingine 3, 2010
and continuing through June 30, 2013 (the “EmplayiReriod”). Unless terminated by either party teergoon at least 60-
days natice prior to the end of the original Emph@nt Period ending June 30, 2013, or prior to thet & any one-year
extension of the Employment Period, the Employniariod shall not be terminated and shall automlfticantinue in full
force and effect for consecutive one-year periods.



B.  Subparagraph (a) of Section 2. Compensation Bewkfits of the Agreement is hereby deleted and the follgwirew
subparagraph (a) is hereby substituted in its place

In consideration of his services rendered, USAlgte} to Lawlor a base salary of $179,800.00 per yiring the Employme
Period, subject to any withholding required by lawwlor's base salary shall be paid in equal bikdg@stallments. Lawlos bas
salary may be increased from time to time in theemition of USA.

C. Subparagraph (e) of Section 2. Compensatiah Benefits of the Agreement is hereby deleted and the follgwmew
subparagraph (e) is hereby substituted in its place

(e) USA shall issue to Lawlor an aggregate of 20 8l8ares of Common Stock of USA as an incentivauboprovided that
Lawlor is employed by USA on the respective vestlates set forth in the next sentence. These shiastss follows: 5,000
on September 30, 2012; 5,000 on December 31, Z)a@0 on March 31, 2013; and 5,000 on June 30,.2013

The shares, when issued, will be free-trading a&uistered by the Company on a Form S-8 registratiatement, and the
certificates representing the shares shall not &earestrictive legend or be subject to stop fexrigastructions.

Lawlor acknowledges that the issuance of any shtarbsm will represent taxable income to him andtthe (and not USA)
shall be responsible for the payment of any andnalbme taxes attributable to the issuance of arh shares to him.
Lawlor shall make appropriate cash payments to W§An demand to pay for any withholding tax liagildaf USA in
connection with issuance of any such shares.

D. Subparagraph (f) of Section_2. CompensationBemnkfitsof the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety.
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2. Modification. Except as otherwise specifically set forth indgaaph 1, the Agreement shall not be amended dlified in any
respect whatsoever and shall continue in full feed effect.

3 . Effective Time The amendments to the Agreement made in Patagrapreof shall be effective from and after thie deereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetthies Second Amendment as of the day and yedrafisve written.
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/ Stephen P. Herbert

Stephen P. Herbel
Chief Executive Office
/s/ Michael Lawloi

MICHAEL LAWLOR
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Exhibit 10.30

FIFTH AMENDMENT
TO
LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

This Fifth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreenismntered into as of September 26, 2013 (the ‘Waneent”),by and betwee
AVIDBANK CORPORATE FINANCE, a division of AVIDBANK(“Bank”), and USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (“Borrower”).

RECITALS

Borrower and Bank are parties to that certain Laad Security Agreement dated as of June 21, 20#2tlzet certain Fir:
Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement datedf @amuary 1, 2013, that certain Second Amendmehbsm & Security Agreeme
dated as of April 2, 2013, that certain Third Amerght to Loan and Security Agreement dated as ofl Apr 2013 and that certain Fou
Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement datedf aspdl 29, 2013 (collectively, the “Agreement”Yhe parties desire to amend
Agreement in accordance with the terms of this Admeent.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Borrower acknowledges that there are existing amtlired Events of Default arising from Borrovgefailure to compl
with Section 6.9 and Section 6.10 for quarter endlgte 30, 2013 (the “Covenant DefaultSubject to the conditions contained herein
performance by Borrower of all of the terms of kgreement after the date hereof, Bank waives thee@ant Defaults. Bank does not we
Borrower’s obligations under such sections after the dateofieand as amended hereby, and Bank does not waaiyeother failure k
Borrower to perform its Obligations under the Laaacuments.

2. Section 6.10 of the Agreement is amended in itsegytto read as follows:

6.10 Adjusted EBITDA. Borrower shathieve a minimum Adjusted EBITDA, measured oquarterly basis, in tt
following amounts:

Fiscal Quarter Minimum Adjusted
EBITDA
Fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2( $1,300,00(
Fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2( $1,600,00(
Fiscal quarter ending March 31, 20 $1,900,00(
Fiscal quarter ending June 30, 20 $2,200,00(

Borrower shall achieve a minimum Adjusted EBITDA fbe remaining fiscal quarters in 2014 and beyiorglich
amounts as may be mutually agreed upon by BorramdrBank with reference to Borrower’'s annual opegat
projections for such year(s) delivered to Bankdoaadance with Section 6.3(f).

3. Exhibit D of the Agreement is replaced in its egtijrwith Exhibit D attached hereto.

4, Unless otherwise defined, all initially capitalizéerms in this Amendment shall be as defined in Algeeement. Th
Agreement, as amended hereby, shall be and remdil force and effect in accordance with its resjive terms and hereby is ratified
confirmed in all respects. Except as expresslyas#t herein, the execution, delivery, and perfonceof this Amendment shall not operat
a waiver of, or as an amendment of, any right, ppaeremedy of Bank under the Agreement, as iac¢fprior to the date hereof. Borro
ratifies and reaffirms the continuing effectivene$all agreements entered into in connection wWithAgreement.



5. Borrower represents and warrants that the reprasens and warranties contained in the Agreementrae and correct
of the date of this Amendment, and that no Everdefawilt, other than the Covenant Defaults, hasiwed and is continuing.

6. This Amendment may be executed in two or more arpatts, each of which shall be deemed an origmalall of whict
together shall constitute one instrument. In thené¥hat any signature is delivered by facsimides$mission or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf”
format data file, such signature shall create advahd binding obligation of the party executing m whose behalf such signatur
executed) with the same force and effect as if ackimile or “.pdf’signature page were an original hereof. Notwithditzgn the foregoing
Borrower shall deliver all original signed docuneenb later than ten (10) Business Days followirgydhte of execution.

7. As a condition to the effectiveness of this Amendm®&ank shall have received, in form and substasatisfactory t
Bank, the following:

(a) this Amendment, duly executed by Borrower; and
(b) an amendment fee equal to $2,500.
8. Borrower shall promptly pay all Bank Expenses imedrby Bank in connection with the preparation, aiiagion, ani

execution of this Amendment.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executsdAmendment as of the first date above written.
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ David M. DeMedio

Title: Chief Financial Officer

AVIDBANK CORPORATE FINANCE,
a division of AVIDBANK

By: /s/ Jeffrey Javier

Title: Senior Vice President




EXHIBIT D
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

TO: AVIDBANK CORPORATE FINANCE, A DIVISION OF AVIDBANK
FROM: USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

The undersigned authorized officer of USA TECHNOLGS, INC. hereby certifies that in accordance wlith terms and conditior
of the Loan and Security Agreement between Borramer Bank (the “Agreement”), (i) Borrower is in cplete compliance for the period
ending with all required covenartept as noted below and (i) all representatimswarranties of Borrower stated in
the Agreement are true and correct as of the datoh Attached herewith are the required documsiniporting the above certification. The
officer further certifies that these are prepareddcordance with Generally Accepted Accountingépies (GAAP) and are consistently
applied from one period to the next except as éxpthin an accompanying letter or footnotes.

Please indicate compliance status by circling Yes@Nunder “Complies” column.

Reporting Covenant Required Complies
Schedule of Revenue Proceeds Weekly Yes No
Transaction Report of Cash Disbursements & Cablast Weekly Yes No
A/R & A/P Agings Monthly within 20 days Yes No
Borrowing Base Certificate and Compliance Certifica Monthly within 20 days
Monthly statements from JPMorgan Chase Monthly withdays of receipt Yes No
Monthly financial statements Monthly within 20 days Yes No
Annual financial statements (CPA Audited) FYE withi20 days Yes No
Annual Projections within 30 days of Fiscal Year beginning  Yes No
10K and 10Q (as applicable) Yes No
A/R Audit Semi-Annual Yes No
IP Notices As required under Section 6.11 Yes No
Financial Covenant Required Actual Complies
RML for month ended $ Yes No
When RML is negative, Minimum Liquidity of at least 6 months RML $ Yes No
When RML is positive, ratio of Current Assets tor@uat Liabilities of at least:  1.00 to 1.00 :1.00 Yes No
Minimum Adjusted EBITDA for quarters ending:

September 30, 2013: $1,300,000 $ Yes No

December 31, 2013: $1,600,000 $ Yes No

March 31, 2014: $1,900,000 $ Yes No



June 30, 2014:

$2,200,000

$

Yes

No



Comments Regarding Exceptions See Attachec

BANK USE ONLY

Received by
Sincerely, AUTHORIZED SIGNER
Date:
Verified:
SIGNATURE AUTHORIZED SIGNER
Date:
TITLE
Compliance Statu Yes No

DATE




Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (No. 333-184185) on ForBidsUSA Technologies, Inc. of ¢
report dated September 30, 2013, relating to oditawf the consolidated financial statements acttedule which appear in this Ann
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 303201
/sl McGladrey LLF

New York, NY
September 30, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

I, Stephen P. Herbert., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKISA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiordany untrue statement of a material fact or dmitate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ta under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeants, other financial information included in thisport, fairly present in all mater
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the issuer as of, and fier periods presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contawild procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresaused such disclosure controls and procedares designed under our supervis
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglaming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegatte reliability of financial reporting and thgeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadtsclosure controls and procedures and presemtéds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’'s internal control over financial reportintgat occurred during the issugmrnost recel
fiscal quarter (the issuerfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affected or is reasondikily to materially
affect, the issuer’s internal control over finamegporting; and

5. The issueB other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdraon our most recent evaluation, of internal rmbmtver financial reporting -
the auditors and the audit committee of the issusvard of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal costmler financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the issuabity to record, process, summarize and repadrftial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the issues’internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Date: September 30, 2013 /sl Stephen P. Herbe

Stephen P. Herbe
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

I, David M. DeMedio, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKISA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiordany untrue statement of a material fact or dmitate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ta under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeants, other financial information included in thisport, fairly present in all mater
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the issuer as of, and fier periods presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contawild procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresaused such disclosure controls and procedares designed under our supervis
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglaming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegatte reliability of financial reporting and thgeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadtsclosure controls and procedures and presemtéds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’'s internal control over financial reportintgat occurred during the issugmrnost recel
fiscal quarter (the issuerfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affected or is reasondikily to materially
affect, the issuer’s internal control over finamegporting; and

5. The issueB other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdraon our most recent evaluation, of internal rmbmtver financial reporting -
the auditors and the audit committee of the issusvard of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal costmler financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the issuabity to record, process, summarize and repadrftial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the issues’internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Date: September 30, 2013 /s/ David M. DeMedic
David M. DeMedia
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repdt/8A Technologies, Inc., (the “Company”) on For@H for the period ende
June 30, 2013 (the “Report”), I, Stephen P. Herb€hief Executive Officer of the Company, herelbytify that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Ex@eAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigsesents, in all material respects, the financimdition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Stephen P. Herbe
Stephen P. Herbe
Chief Executive Office




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repbty8A Technologies, Inc., (the “Company”) on For@HK for the period ende
June 30, 2013 (the “Report”), I, David M. DeMedighief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby ifgthat to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigsesents, in all material respects, the financtaddition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ David M. DeMedic

David M. DeMedioc
Chief Financial Office




